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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I would like to 2 

welcome you to -- this is not a regularly 3 

scheduled -- it's a special meeting of the 4 

District of Columbia Alcoholic Beverage Control 5 

Board.  Please know that today's hearings will be 6 

conducted in accordance with D.C. Official Code 7 

Section 2574 of the Open Meetings Act.  Today is 8 

January  29, 2016.  I would first like to 9 

introduce the members of the board with us today.  10 

To my far right is Ms. Ruthanne Miller, to my 11 

immediate right is Mr. Nick Alberti, to my far 12 

left is Mr. Mike Silverstein and to my immediate 13 

left is Mr. James Short.  My name is Donovan 14 

Anderson and I'm the Chairperson of the board.  15 

The board has five members in attended for 16 

conduct of business today and this constitutes a 17 

quorum.   18 

 I would like to mention two things before 19 

we get started.  First of all, if you have any 20 

electronic devices, pagers, cells phones or such, 21 

please make certain that they are turned off to 22 
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avoid any interruption of the proceedings.  1 

Secondly, there is a piece of paper on the table.  2 

When you come forward as this case is called, 3 

please take a seat at the table and please sign 4 

in.  This is to ensure the correct spelling of 5 

your name for the record.   6 

 Additionally, when you introduce yourself 7 

for the record, please spell your name aloud for 8 

the court reporter.  It is now 10:22 and I 9 

apologize -- this hearing was scheduled for 10:00 10 

-- so I apologize for the board's tardiness and 11 

not being here promptly at 10:00.  I did not 12 

realize that time -- we were all here and I did 13 

not realize that it was past 10:00, so I do 14 

apologize to the parties.  I do respect your 15 

time.  All right.  Today, the first case on our 16 

calendar today is a continuation of the protest 17 

hearing for Case #15-PRO-00096, The Alibi, 18 

License #97969.  I know the parties are at the 19 

table, but could you please identify yourself for 20 

the record, please? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Richard Traverso with HRH 22 
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Services. 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Rachel Traverso, the 2 

applicant. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Charles Parsons, 4 

protestant.   5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Good morning, sir.  6 

This case has started I think on January 6th, I 7 

think that we had started this case.  The 8 

applicant had presented his case in chief.  Mr. 9 

Bianco, since I could not find it in your 10 

service, I mean I know that when a motion is 11 

filed on the motion the certification it needs to 12 

state that you certify that the motion was filed 13 

and it was not on -- the date is not here -- so 14 

when did you file your motion to dismiss? 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  I believe I filed it the 16 

Monday afternoon prior to the hearing. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It can't be 18 

believed.  You have to let me know, because it's 19 

not -- I've reviewed your Certificate of Service 20 

and there's no date on it, so for the record I 21 

need the record to reflect. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  I understand.  If I could 1 

have your brief indulgence -- 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sure. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  I am going to check my 4 

calendar and I can make a specific representation 5 

definitively as to the date it was filed. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's very 7 

important for the record, so I need to have that 8 

information. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Monday, January the 4th. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  11 

All right.  On Monday, January 4th, 2016, the 12 

applicant had filed a motion to dismiss and the 13 

reasoning for the motion to dismiss the applicant 14 

stated that the protestant had not met the 15 

standard for a protest hearing.  Since this 16 

motion was filed on January the 6th -- I'm sorry 17 

-- January the 4th, this protest hearing had 18 

started on January 6th.  I -- Mr. Parsons at that 19 

time had not had an opportunity to respond to the 20 

motion.  I did raise a question with legal, why 21 

were we having a hearing if a motion was filed 22 
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and the other party did not have an opportunity 1 

to respond.  Mr. Parsons, therefore, responded to 2 

the motion on January 6th.   3 

 I had not -- the board had not had reason 4 

to review his response, and neither did the board 5 

have an opportunity to thoroughly review Mr. 6 

Parson's appli -- Mr. Parsons' response to the 7 

motion.  I just want to have the record reflect 8 

and just make a recommendation to the board.  Mr. 9 

Parsons had filed a petition in protest to the 10 

application of HRC and at the last portion of Mr. 11 

Parsons' response -- I'm sorry, Mr. Parsons' 12 

petition, what Mr. Parsons had stated:  13 

Wherefore, the protestants, Charles and Susan 14 

Parsons respectfully prays that the board be 15 

heard -- that they be heard at the [inaudible 1-16 

5:26] and that the board deny HRC's application 17 

for a new license class pursuant, CR license.  18 

That is the reason why -- it is my understanding 19 

that Mr. Parsons requested -- he wanted to be a 20 

party to this matter.   21 

 Mr. Bianco, in his first motion to 22 
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dismiss, he stated that the protestant had not 1 

complied with section 25.313 that had the 2 

appropriateness standard.  That was not addressed 3 

in his -- the law basically stated if you're 4 

going to have an appropriateness hearing, these 5 

are the reasons why you can have this hearing, 6 

that's section 25.313.  In reviewing Mr. Parsons' 7 

response, Mr. Parsons did not respond to Section 8 

25.313.  His response specifically went back to 9 

the qualifications hearing.   10 

 The board has scheduled today to continue 11 

the protest hearing to give the applicant an 12 

opportunity to present its case, and for this 13 

afternoon the board has scheduled a 14 

qualifications hearing.  I am making a motion to 15 

the board that we -- that Mr. -- that the 16 

applicant's motion to dismiss be granted and that 17 

we move to have an app -- that we move to have 18 

the qualifications hearing.  I know that the 19 

matter was scheduled for a qualifications hearing 20 

this afternoon, so I -- if the parties are not 21 

prepared at this period of time -- at this moment 22 
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-- to move forward, then we can either reconvene 1 

at 1:30 or we can reconvene at a later point, but 2 

this is the motion of the chair that I'm making.  3 

Is there a second for the motion? 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Second. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm going to ask -6 

- we're going to have questions, so I'm making 7 

the motion.    Mr. Alberti has seconded the 8 

motion.  Now we can have discussions.  Do we have 9 

any board members who have -- and I'm going to 10 

have responses -- any of the board members have 11 

discussions?  Yes, Ms. Miller? 12 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay, it appears to me since 13 

the -- it wasn't since the day of the hearing 14 

that we decided to have a qualifications hearing 15 

and based on what I've read in the record, and 16 

what I've seen so far, it seems that the 17 

protestant's case is about qualifications and, 18 

therefore, it doesn't make sense to have two 19 

hearings, to do a protest hearing and then do a 20 

qualifications hearing.  The one issue is 21 

qualifications that I can see.  So I just would 22 
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be interested in hearing just a little bit from 1 

the protestant mainly, but also the applicant, if 2 

that's -- if that's a correct assumption or 3 

characterization of the protest.   4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Umm -- 5 

 MS. MILLER:  You're not going to open it 6 

up for that?  Are you just opening it up for 7 

discussion among the board members? 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm going to have 9 

board members -- there's a motion on the table.  10 

Board members can respond to the motion that's on 11 

the table. 12 

 MS. MILLER:  But that's the assumption 13 

then that I'm going under to support the motion 14 

that the protest can be heard in full dealing 15 

with qualifications in the one hearing on 16 

qualifications? 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's - the motion 18 

that's on the table is that we're going to 19 

dismiss the protest, and that we would have a 20 

qualifications hearing.  That's the motion that's 21 

on the table and that's the motion that has been 22 
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seconded.  So, if you are asking for a friendly 1 

amendment then -- 2 

 MS. MILLER:  Nope. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But -- but the 4 

motion that's on the table -- at least the motion 5 

that's been presented and seconded is that the 6 

board would -- we're gonna have a vote whether or 7 

not we're gonna grant the petition by the 8 

applicant to dismiss the protestant and that we 9 

will move forward to a qualifications hearing 10 

that based on my reading of the petition -- based 11 

on my reading of the petition by the applicant, 12 

the applicant clearly requested a hearing on 13 

qualification.  That's just my reading and the 14 

response.  Yes, Mr. Silverstein? 15 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I 16 

strongly support your motion and it is a matter 17 

of both procedure and justice and equity.  First, 18 

procedure.  If we were going to have -- if we 19 

were going to continue this hearing, and then 20 

have a qualifications hearing, we would simply, 21 

in many cases be going over the same material 22 
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twice and making the same decision twice after 1 

hearing the same testimony twice.  As far as 2 

justice and equity, the protestant in his opening 3 

statement said that the really party in the case 4 

is not here today and then went on to basically 5 

state that his main concern -- he did not mention 6 

the magic words peace, order, quiet and the other 7 

things that are the appropriate standard, but he 8 

did raise serious issues of qualifications.  9 

Well, we can go forward and hear those 10 

qualifications.  The protestant can be heard, we 11 

simply do it in a logical transparent, sensible 12 

manner where we don't chase our tail twice the 13 

same day.  It makes sense for all of us, I 14 

believe. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Short, do you 16 

wish to speak?   17 

 MR. SHORT:  I concur wholeheartedly with 18 

my colleague who just spoke and that we should 19 

call vote on the motion that's on the floor. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Before the board 21 

votes, I'm going to give both parties and I want 22 
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to let Mr. Parsons know that in the 1 

qualifications hearing that was scheduled today 2 

the board did grant you standing that you can -- 3 

so you are not, as far as the board is concerned, 4 

you're still having your opportunity to address 5 

the issues that were your concerns so you're not, 6 

at least from our perspective, you're granted 7 

standing to begin the qualifications hearing and 8 

present your case in chief, and from the cross 9 

examination it appears that -- and in reviewing 10 

your response -- the response to Mr. Bianco's 11 

motion, at least to my reading, was -- went 12 

towards the qualification and did not address the 13 

appropriateness standard.  I know, Mr. Bianco, I 14 

know that you're not going to have much to say 15 

because the board -- the motion is to grant the 16 

motion, but you have an opportunity to speak.  17 

 MR. BIANCO:  I have nothing to say.  I 18 

think you're absolutely right and I think that 19 

you state our position fairly well on the issue 20 

and we'll allow Mr. Parsons to respond deferring 21 

to the board's kindness.   22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, Mr. Parsons. 1 

  MR. PARSONS:  You rested the many fears 2 

that I had.  When I hear dismissal my heart 3 

starts to flutter, but since I will be granted a 4 

standing for the qualifications then I understand 5 

the action taken and I can't say I agree 6 

necessarily out of fear, but necessarily, I 7 

understand the logic and the decision. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I just want to -- 9 

I'm looking for the order that went out for the 10 

qualifications hearing.  An order went out, a 11 

board order.  Yes, it was board order, I'm sorry 12 

-- Case #15-PRO-00096, board order 2016 0020, 13 

that border order granted notice of hearing and 14 

order granted rights to intervene to the abutting 15 

property owner's protestant.  So there was a 16 

board order that was issued -- that was issued on 17 

-- I don't see the date there.  We need to make 18 

sure the dates are on this order, but that board 19 

order was issued on January 13, 2016, granting 20 

the order.  So, the motion has been seconded.  21 

Those in favor -- those that are in favor of the 22 
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motion say aye. 1 

 [Chorus of Ayes.]   2 

 Those opposed?   3 

 No -- I'm sorry -- no one opposes, so the 4 

matter passes 5-zero-zero.   5 

 All right.  So, we have dismissed the 6 

protest.  This is something that was just sprung 7 

on both parties, because I know both parties, I 8 

know Mr. Parsons was prepared at this juncture to 9 

present his case and Mr. -- the applicant was 10 

prepared to defend the protest.  Are the parties 11 

prepared to move forward with the qualifications 12 

hearing or do you need a brief recess?  You let 13 

us know because this -- you let us know what it 14 

is that you want to do. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  We're prepared to proceed 16 

with presentation of evidence on the 17 

qualifications standard this morning.  I would 18 

like to take five minutes just to talk to my 19 

client before cross examination first, but I only 20 

have two witnesses, which will be Rachel Traverso 21 

and Richard Traverso.  I anticipate direct 22 
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examination on those two witnesses going very 1 

quickly as the board has already heard from them.  2 

We're going to go to great lengths to make sure 3 

that we don’t go over anything that we've gone 4 

over already, so we narrowly tailored the 5 

testimony to only address the qualifications 6 

issues. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Right, and I just 8 

want the record to also reflect that the board is 9 

taking administrative notice of the previous 10 

hearing that we have as part of the record, so 11 

we're taking administrative notice that it is 12 

part of the record what was previously presented.  13 

Mr. Parsons, your position regarding the 14 

timeline, please? 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  I am taken a little 16 

bit aback by this but first of all preliminarily 17 

when we were here last time all my exhibits, I 18 

didn't realize that only one copy  was there, so 19 

I have made copies of all of them -- 20 

 MS. MILLER:  Great. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- which would go to the 22 



17 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

qualifications as well --   1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Right. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- for each board member.  3 

I want to call attention to an event that 4 

occurred yesterday. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on -- hold on 6 

-- hold on.  The question that's on the table, 7 

Mr. Parsons, is how much time do you need to --  8 

are you prepared to move forward now or do you 9 

want some time to get ready?  That's what I'm 10 

asking you, so -- 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  I want some time to get 12 

ready in view of what is newly discovered 13 

evidence as of yesterday. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, how much time 15 

do you need, sir?   16 

 MR. PARSONS:  It -- in -- I'm going to 17 

ask for a week because there is a report floating 18 

around somewhere that bears directly on the 19 

qualifications issue that I just found out about 20 

yesterday.   And if you want me to summarize what 21 

the newly discovered evidence is, I will gladly 22 
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do so, 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, hold on.  Hold 2 

on a minute.  The problem that I'm having with 3 

this case is that we had a hearing scheduled for 4 

January 6th.  On January 4th a motion was filed 5 

and I'm not -- and since I'm not -- and I'm 6 

saying this on the record and maybe I shouldn’t, 7 

but since I don't know the timelines but I was 8 

troubled that a motion was filed two days before 9 

a hearing and that the party didn't have an 10 

opportunity -- and the other party still had an 11 

opportunity to respond.  So, then we had our 12 

hearing, I decided that the board would take the 13 

motion under advisement to allow it to go 14 

forward.  This is three weeks later.  I -- at 15 

this juncture we need to move forward.   16 

 My only -- my -- you have to be prepared 17 

to move forward with the qualifications hearing.  18 

It was scheduled, I think, for 1:30 this 19 

afternoon, I think.  It was scheduled for 1:30, 20 

for 1:30 -- we can be in recess and we'll have 21 

this hearing at 1:30, but I -- we're on a 22 
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timeline in the sense that a decision has to be 1 

made, so I -- I -- I, right.  So, you let me know 2 

how much time you need today to do this.  We can 3 

come back at 11:00.  We can come back at 1:30, 4 

because all parties know we're having this 5 

hearing at 1:30 today.  But I'm not inclined  to 6 

-- it took -- in fairness to all parties, newly 7 

discovered evidence the day before, I don't know 8 

what it is, I'm not sure they even know what is 9 

is, and so that's -- and I -- so. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I may make a proffer of 11 

what the new evidence is.  Because it gives rise 12 

to an altogether new witness and I think it goes 13 

directly to qualifications, but I leave it -- I 14 

await your ruling on that. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons, we 16 

have -- and one of the reasons why I spent the 17 

time to read the record --  18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm not trying to delay. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, I know and I'm 20 

saying and I think that you have abundance of 21 

information that you're presenting to us and I'm 22 
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not sure if -- well, I'm not inclined but I will 1 

ask my board members.  Mrs. Parsons, what were 2 

you asking for, sir?   3 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'd like to make a proffer 4 

of what newly discovered evidence I have. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, before that 6 

-- hold on -- you asked for -- you said you asked 7 

for a week extension, that's what you said you'd 8 

asked for. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Correct, to track down the 10 

incident report that I learned about this 11 

incident yesterday. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And so, what's on 13 

the table, and, of course, I know the applicant 14 

has stated that they opposed to that since he's 15 

asking for a week to come back, and so that's on 16 

the table, so I would like to entertain from 17 

other board members. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I am not predisposed to 19 

grant an extension.  What I would suggest is that 20 

-- Mr. Parsons, you don't have the documents to 21 

support the new evidence, but you could introduce 22 
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the allegation during the qualifications hearing 1 

and the board could then decide to hold the 2 

record open. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Fine, fine.  I -- 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But we wouldn't do that 5 

now. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But that could be done as 8 

an issue during the qualifications hearing but I, 9 

I mean that's the only avenue I would offer you 10 

but it's not a certainty what would happen. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  No. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Any other board 14 

members wish to be heard on this issue, on Mr. 15 

Parsons' request. 16 

 MS. MILLER:  I, I think similarly to Mr. 17 

Alberti, that you know, at some point I would of 18 

what this allegation is but -- and maybe if it 19 

was so important to keep the record open, but it 20 

seems like things can happen every day and so we 21 

can't keep extending this hearing and actually I 22 
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don't think there's that much time on the board's 1 

schedule and we're all here and I would say go 2 

forward and also I would hope that you might not 3 

need too much time to readjust here because what 4 

I envision is presenting your case in this 5 

hearing instead of the protest hearing, that it's 6 

the same case.  That's what I envision. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Any other board 8 

members?  So, I guess I'm not sure, are we 9 

supposed to vote on this?   10 

 MS. MILLER:  No. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I don’t believe there's a 12 

motion, I think we just -- 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right. So, the 14 

question that's still on the table, Mr. Parsons, 15 

Mr. Bianco says he wants five minutes to talk to 16 

his client.  I'm being fair to you, sir, so you 17 

tell me since you were prepared to do -- you were 18 

also prepared to do a qualifications at 1:30, 19 

since we're changing gear, how much time do you 20 

need to get ready to do the qualifications 21 

hearing, I think in light of what I'm hearing we 22 
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can go forward right now. Give them five minutes 1 

and then we start up. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right, the 3 

board will stay in recess until 11:00.  We will 4 

be back here at 11:00 to do this hearing and that 5 

should give each party sufficient time to shuffle 6 

the deck.  We've had some time, at least I've had 7 

some time to get up to speed on the record and to 8 

thoroughly review all the documents that were 9 

presented and to be fair to the parties we 10 

believe this is the best way to go. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Would you like me to pass 12 

forward the exhibits?  Last time we had some 13 

problems. 14 

 MS. MILLER:  Yeah. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  People weren't able to 16 

follow as I was going through exhibits.  I have 17 

them.  I copied them out. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I think what I 19 

will -- are these -- these are the documents? 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  When I filed the original 21 

exhibits, your Honor, I only filed one copy 22 



24 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

outside and as the proceeding was unfolding on 1 

the 6th a number of the board said that they were 2 

not able to follow my reference to -- 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Mr. Chairman, let's take 4 

this up at 11:00.  That will give them the 5 

opportunity. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, yeah.  I 7 

just want to, what I'm saying, is if these are 8 

the same exhibits because it's going to be a 9 

different case so, therefore, you can once we 10 

start the hearings, then you can provide us with 11 

a copy of it, so the board is in recess until 12 

11:00.   13 

[Off the record.]  14 

[On the record] 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's 11:00.  We're 16 

back on the record.  There are currently three 17 

members here so we do have a quorum.  So, we'll 18 

start the proceeding.  We are now -- we are 19 

having a contested fact finding hearing on The 20 

Alibi, License #97969.  And I will provide the 21 

parties some, some guidance.  This matter comes 22 
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before the board as a qualifications hearing or 1 

protested fact finding hearing related to 2 

application for a Retailer Class CR license filed 3 

by HRH Services, LLC, trade name, The Alibi, 4 

which has been designated Case #15-PRO-00096 at 5 

the Court of Appeals indicated in Craig Versus 6 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Board found at 7 

72182584, the board has an affirmative obligation 8 

to determine that an applicant qualifies for 9 

licensure.   10 

 In the vast majority of protest cases the 11 

qualifications can be dispensed with ease through 12 

a simple review of the application and 13 

accompanying documents.  However, based on the 14 

allegations made in this case by the protestant 15 

and the records possessed by ABRA, the board has 16 

come to believe that it cannot legally issue the 17 

applicant a license without making specific 18 

findings related to various matters that have 19 

been outlined in board order 2016-020.  The board 20 

has granted the abutting property owners, 21 

protestants, the right to intervene as described 22 
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in the order, because the protestant raised these 1 

issues in their initial protest letter.   2 

 At this stage in the proceeding it is 3 

important to emphasize that matters raised by the 4 

board are mere allegations and merely put forth 5 

in an order to provide notice to the applicant.  6 

The board further emphasizes that the board has 7 

not made a final determination regarding the 8 

facts or legal matters at issue in this case.  In 9 

the accompanying hearing, the board intends to 10 

focus on the matters raised in board order 2016-11 

060, specifically the issues that the board 12 

intends to explore are:   13 

 1)  Whether in compliance with DC 14 

Official Code Section 25.301-85, the applicant is 15 

a true and actual owner of the business, intends 16 

to carry on the business for themselves, or is 17 

the agent of another not disclosed in the 18 

application.   19 

 2)  Whether the application violated 20 

section 25.401C by failing to disclose the 21 

ownership or interests of Mr. Scahill and, if 22 
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true, whether this merits denial of the 1 

applicant.   2 

 3)  Whether the applicant violated 3 

Section 25.401C by filing a fraudulent lease 4 

agreement and, if true, whether it merits denial 5 

of the application.   6 

 4)  Whether the applicant otherwise fails 7 

to qualify for licensure based on remaining 8 

allegations made by the protestant abutting 9 

property owners which includes that:  10 

 1)  The alleged forgery of a District 11 

Department of Consumer and Regulatory Affairs;  12 

 2) The alleged effort to camouflage Mr. 13 

Scahill's participation in the business which 14 

overlaps with the first issue; and  15 

 3) The alleged failure to comply with an 16 

order of the D.C. Department of Transportation in 17 

violation of construction.   18 

 Finally, the board will consider whether 19 

the applicant lacks fitness for licensure under 20 

Section 25.301-A1.  If any or all the matters 21 

raised by the board or the protestants are 22 
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sustained, therefore the parties are urged to 1 

stick to these issues.  These are the procedures 2 

that we will follow.  The first, the board will 3 

formally take notice of various documents in the 4 

board's files.  The parties will then be afforded 5 

to raise preliminary matters.  The parties will 6 

be granted five minutes each for opening 7 

statements.  The applicant will then proceed with 8 

its case in chief followed by the protestant's.  9 

After that is done, after the parties' case in 10 

chief, the board -- I do not know if Mr. Scahill 11 

is going to be here because the board had 12 

initially planned to call Mr. Scahill as a 13 

witness, however because our files indicate that 14 

ABRA cannot complete service, the subpoena issued 15 

by the board on its counsel the board intends to 16 

deem him unavailable for evidentiary purposes.   17 

 Now, if Mr. Scahill appears, either he is 18 

called by the board, but we just wanted to take 19 

notice that since Mr. Scahill has been mentioned 20 

throughout all of these proceedings, the board 21 

thought it was important to have him here, but 22 
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since he has not been formally served or been 1 

called, he is unavailable.  All right, after the 2 

parties' case in chief we will then permit the 3 

applicant to engage in a rebuttal followed by the 4 

protestant.  Once rebuttals are finished, we will 5 

allow 10 minutes each for closing statements with 6 

the applicant going first followed by the 7 

protestant.  Before moving to preliminary matters 8 

and opening statements, the board will begin by 9 

taking official notice of the following:  All 10 

records referenced in Board order 2016-020 11 

furthermore, because both parties were present 12 

and entitled to cross examination at the protest 13 

hearing, the board takes official notice of all 14 

records related to the protest hearing case #15-15 

PRO-00096.  Now, we will turn to preliminary 16 

matters, if any, and opening statements.  Are 17 

there any preliminary matters?  Yes, Mr. Parsons? 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I do want to pass forward 19 

these notebooks so that the -- when, I guess is 20 

there an appropriate time to do that?  Do you 21 

want to hear the opening statements and -- 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yeah, let's hear 1 

the opening statements and what I will do is when 2 

you present your case in chief then you can 3 

provide us, the board, with a copy of the 4 

documents.  Let me just ask preliminary, how many 5 

witnesses does the applicant have?  Two 6 

witnesses?  And what about the protestant, how 7 

many? 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Two. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Two witnesses.  We 10 

only have two witnesses.  Maybe we can go home by 11 

dinnertime today.  Okay. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  A question if I may. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, sir.  Yes, 14 

Mr. Parsons.   15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Since we've now moved into 16 

the qualifications hearing and we're going to 17 

give opening statements again, do I take it that 18 

they will then proceed again, or will we start 19 

with me? 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  There's, I 21 

remember I just gave the directions.  They're 22 
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going first.  They're going to present their 1 

case. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Sorry. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And of course 4 

you'll have the opportunity to cross examine the 5 

witnesses as you did in the earlier case and the 6 

motion was granted so, they're going to present 7 

their case and you're going to have an 8 

opportunity to cross examine.  You can bring in 9 

documents, and I know that, again, this is an 10 

administrative hearing, that we're not going to -11 

- in administrative hearings the rules are 12 

evidence are not strictly complied with but I -- 13 

I -- I do have a cheat sheet here so if you're 14 

going to raise objections and stuff you need to 15 

give me the basics and I'll try to rule on it but 16 

I will, I'm not going to strictly interpret the 17 

rules of evidence because this is an 18 

administrative hearing, it's not a court of law, 19 

but as I stated before, since we have lawyers 20 

sitting over there in front of us, so as lawyers 21 

we know how to do these types of things and I'm 22 
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going to hold -- since everyone -- since folks 1 

are lawyers I'm going to hold you to -- and I'm a 2 

lawyer myself, I'm going to have that expectation 3 

that we will conduct ourselves appropriately, 4 

okay?  Thank you.  Yes? 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  As a preliminary matter we 6 

just want to confirm that the rule on witnesses 7 

leaving the room? 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Bianco, who 9 

are the witnesses that you plan to call? 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Rachel Traverso and Richard 11 

Traverso. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And who are the 13 

witnesses you plan to call, Mr. Parsons? 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  At this point, myself and 15 

Mr. Smith. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Smith? 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Christopher Smith. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Who is your, I 19 

think the problem I have is that since they are 20 

joint owners I can't really tell joint owners, 21 

your two witnesses are owners of the property, so 22 
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I can't tell them that they can't be here, so Mr. 1 

Smith is the only person that has to leave the 2 

room. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes.  They are parties, so, 4 

yeah. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Right.  Yeah.  I.  6 

You don't have to take your coat with you.  7 

Everything is recorded, we can see everything 8 

that's happening unless you're going to be in 9 

that cold section or unless you're going outside.  10 

But I'm just saying.  Everything is recorded so 11 

if someone moves along with your coat we'll know 12 

who moved it.  All right.   13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and 14 

members of the board.  At the conclusion of the 15 

evidence today we think the board will have no 16 

choice but to agree with us that my clients are 17 

qualified to [inaudible 2-11:08] they have 18 

applied.   19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I -- speak up. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Sure, we think there's no 21 

question that once the evidence is heard today my 22 
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clients will be found by the board to be 1 

qualified to run the establishment that they have 2 

applied to run.  As you succinctly noted in your 3 

opening remarks, what we're really here to 4 

consider today is four issues that are set forth 5 

in the board's order.  I think the first two are 6 

very similar, boiled down even further.  I think 7 

we could just say the first two counts are 8 

whether or not Mr. Scahill is involved in the 9 

running of this business.  That appears to be the 10 

bottom line that the board is trying to get to.  11 

And I can say after having viewed the evidence 12 

presented by my client definitively that he is 13 

not, and the evidence that we're going to present 14 

today is going to demonstrate that. 15 

 The evidence that we specifically intend 16 

to put before the board are items such as a 17 

schedule at the Alibi that has been in place 18 

since it has opened and began operating.  The 19 

payroll journals from the Alibi.  Mr. Parsons has 20 

made suggestions in this case that Rachel 21 

Traverso and Mr. Scahill's personal relationship 22 
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have led them to maintain a joint bank account, 1 

somehow comingled with business funds.  And bank 2 

records demonstrate that those accounts have been 3 

closed.  We have -- we'll be presenting evidence 4 

of Mr. Scahill's residence separate and apart 5 

from Ms. Traverso's residence where he works now.  6 

And most importantly, I think, we're going to be 7 

presenting evidence to the board today that Mr. 8 

Scahill has been legally barred from the premises 9 

and served with a barring notice.  We're going to 10 

put that before the board.  His presence at 237 11 

Second Street Northwest will result in his 12 

arrest.  At the end of the case today, we think 13 

it will be crystal clear that Mr. Scahill is not 14 

involved in the running of this operation and 15 

will not be moving forward.  The third count that 16 

we're here to consider today is whether or not 17 

the applicants made a false statement in their 18 

initial applicant by filing a fraudulent lease 19 

agreement and I think the evidence will 20 

demonstrate that they, in fact, did not file a 21 

false lease agreement. 22 
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 MR. SILVERSTEIN: I'm sorry? 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  They did not file -- they 2 

did not make a false statement by filing a 3 

fraudulent lease agreement.  The facts of this 4 

will be explained by my clients through their 5 

testimony and we think we'll pretty clearly 6 

demonstrate that the lease agreement entered into 7 

was for consideration, Rich Traverso paid a 8 

substantial amount of money for the lease 9 

assignment that was filed with the board to HRH 10 

Services and at the time that was signed in 11 

January of 2015, they had no way -- no way of 12 

knowing that Mr. Scahill did not have the 13 

authority to act on behalf of the Melles 14 

Hospitality Group.  So, if ultimately, after the 15 

applicant was filed, my -- the board or the court 16 

made the determination that the lease assignment 17 

was invalid at the time of the application, my 18 

client had no way of knowing that that lease 19 

assignment was invalid.   20 

 The fourth and final count that the board 21 

has included in its notice of today's hearing is 22 
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sort of the amorphous category of rumor, the 1 

reasons cited by the protestant to three 2 

subcategories but what will be -- the first being 3 

the alleged forgery of the D.C. application of 4 

the roof permit.  It simply didn't happen.  Did 5 

not happen.  My clients didn't forge anything, 6 

the evidence will demonstrate that.  The effort 7 

to camouflage Mr. Scahill's participation.  8 

Again, I think we'll be addressing that right up 9 

front as part of the first two counts being Mr. 10 

Scahill's involvement in the business which is at 11 

this point no involvement at all.   12 

 And, finally the alleged failure to 13 

comply with an order of DDOT, and again we think 14 

that the evidence today, at the conclusion of our 15 

presentation today, you will find that there was 16 

no failure to comply with the order of DDOT nor 17 

continuing failure to violate any of the 18 

construction codes of the District of Columbia. 19 

And I want to caution the board on this 20 

particular point.  Having reviewed the evidence 21 

presented by Mr. Parsons it seems to be his 22 
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intention to present a bunch of evidence about 1 

what he contends are historical construction code 2 

violations from 2013, 2014, during the period 3 

which Melles Hospitality Group controlled the 4 

premises, but the reason why I want to raise this 5 

in my opening is because the board has already 6 

ruled on this specific issue in the Melles 7 

Hospitality case.   8 

 Mr. Parsons cannot present evidence of 9 

violation of DCRA construction codes unless he 10 

has a citation from DCRA.   On  January -- I'm 11 

sorry -- in October of 2014 the board issued an 12 

order consistent with the board's -- consistent 13 

with the Court of Appeals holding a Dupont Circle 14 

Citizens Association versus the ABC Board  15 

talking about when the board is -- which 16 

specifically stated when the board is confronted 17 

with an alleged violation of statutes you're 18 

bound by what the agency charged with the 19 

oversight and enforcement of those statues says, 20 

and in the absence of a finding of a violation 21 

you don't have the authority to find a violation 22 
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yourselves.  So, that's the reason why I bring 1 

that up front, historical and narrative evidence 2 

about what Mr. Scahill was doing in the property 3 

in 2013 is simply not relevant to these 4 

proceedings and I don't think any evidence should 5 

be taken on those facts.   6 

 Once we present our case, we think the 7 

conclusion will be clear. My clients are 8 

qualified. My clients should be granted the 9 

opportunity to move forward and to run their 10 

business that has been delayed and contested long 11 

enough.  We're ready to move forward and ready to 12 

call our first witness. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  We are somewhat duplicating 15 

what was said in the opening statement before, 16 

but the thrust of what their argument is remains 17 

the same.  They claim that HRH Services is 18 

separate and distinct from Mr. Scahill's 19 

involvement at 237 Second Street starting in 2013 20 

and carrying forward to 2015 and to the present.  21 

They -- they -- they claim they are now going to 22 
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offer a bar notice and you have to ask yourself 1 

as you consider this evidence is this really 2 

tantamount to shuffling the lawn chairs on the 3 

Titanic or is this a genuine effort to try to 4 

show a separation between Mr. Scahill's ongoing 5 

involvement with the business there at 237 Second 6 

Street. 7 

 I'm going to touch briefly, since we had 8 

an extended hearing -- I don’t know if you've had 9 

an opportunity to read the transcript from the 10 

January 6th, 2016, hearing but the board probably 11 

recalls that based on the testimony of Ms. 12 

Traverso at that hearing that she made -- that 13 

Mr. Scahill is still coming to the premises four 14 

days a week working five hours a day, that he 15 

oversaw the demolition of the exterior sidewalk 16 

café, that he did the construction of the second 17 

floor that they now are using for business.  The 18 

involvement of Mr. Scahill makes a mockery of 19 

claiming that HRH Services is separate and 20 

distinct from business operations that he 21 

controls or at least has controlling ability in.   22 
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 As far as the other issues we will -- I 1 

will develop for you a forgery.  We have the 2 

admission of Ms. Traverso at the hearing on the 3 

6th that her handwriting is on a document filed 4 

in order to get a roofing permit and it was -- it 5 

contains a forgery of my signature.  They both -- 6 

Ms. Scahill -- Mr. Scahill and Ms. Traverso knows 7 

that I would have not have consented to having 8 

that roof, having the damage that they had 9 

already done to it.  There are alleged, and we 10 

will show evidence that after the public space 11 

committee of the Department of Transportation on 12 

January 27th of 2015 issued an order to demolish 13 

the extension that was illegally over the 14 

sidewalk, that Mr. Scahill and Ms. Traverso 15 

continued to serve business in that extension, 16 

deriving revenues from an area where they did not 17 

have proper permit and this bears directly on the 18 

qualifications of these people to operate in 19 

accordance with this board's statutory and DCMR 20 

requirements.  21 

 And as far as lacking fitness, we will 22 
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show aside from the forgery in which Ms. Traverso 1 

at the very least participated, that throughout 2 

Mr. Scahill was, at the time he operated there 3 

and continues, he was using cocaine and that he 4 

was -- this was making him belligerent, he was 5 

attacking not just myself but others around the -6 

- around me when he would get into his cocaine-7 

induced rages. This -- because they lived 8 

together and were engaged, and in fact yesterday 9 

Ms. Traverso testified she's never given the 10 

engagement ring back to Mr. Scahill, that she is 11 

very much -- 12 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Could you repeat that, 13 

sir? 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes.  In a deposition 15 

yesterday taken of Ms. Traverso, she of course 16 

admitted that she and Mr. Scahill had gotten 17 

engaged in November of 2013 when they were 18 

undertaking this construction and when I asked 19 

her 'well you claim you've broken it off and 20 

you're no longer together, did you give him back 21 

his engagement ring?' and she said 'no I still 22 
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have his engagement ring.' 1 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: That's okay, I'm not 2 

asking for further clarification.  I just didn't 3 

hear you.   4 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry, I'm sorry.  So, 5 

the fact is that Ms. Traverso condones the 6 

belligerence and the outrageous conduct of Mr. 7 

Scahill and they -- she is still under his 8 

control.  So we are going to hear evidence that 9 

one of the employees, well after HRH Services was 10 

supposed to be running the business, Mr. Scahill 11 

was the one that fired that employee, not Ms. 12 

Traverso.  You've already heard that -- and you 13 

have the transcript from the hearing at the DDOT 14 

Public Space Committee -- that it was Mr. Scahill 15 

who recited "I'm the one who paid for that 16 

architect to do the work" and that Mr. Scahill 17 

also testified "come on, Rachel, we've gotta go 18 

back, we have to fire these employees."  Mr. 19 

Scahill never let go of control of the operations 20 

at 237 Second Street.  There is no separate and 21 

distinct entity before you.  The matter before 22 
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you is the alter ego of Mr. Scahill and the Mr. 1 

Traverso and Ms. Traverso have not been candid 2 

with this board as to where the actual control of 3 

the business operations are.  Thank you very 4 

much. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you. Mr. 6 

Bianco, your first witness? 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Rachel Traverso. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Can you raise your 9 

right hand?  Do you swear or affirm that you'll 10 

tell the truth and nothing but the truth?   11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I do. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Can you state your name for 14 

the record and spell your name please. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Rachel Traverso.  R-A-C-H-16 

E-L, Traverso is T-R-A-, V as in Victor, E-R-S-O. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Chair I have a packet of 18 

tabbed exhibits that I'd like to pass up to the 19 

board and a copy for each board member. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you Mr. 21 

Bianco, I appreciate that.  I like to have 22 
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documents in front of me so I can follow along, 1 

so I appreciate that.  And I know that Mr. 2 

Parsons has his package too so I don't want to 3 

act like I'm being favoritism to the other side, 4 

so I know that the board will be provided 5 

evidence in due course when you present your 6 

case, so. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  To my knowledge I have 8 

additional copies for the first time, but you 9 

gotta be nimble, I guess. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go ahead, Mr. 11 

Bianco, whenever you're ready. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  I think I may have an 13 

additional copy here for your counsel.  I'm just 14 

going to try to make it [inaudible 2-25:12] for 15 

you.   Ms. Traverso, I know we were here a couple 16 

of weeks ago and, correct me if I'm wrong, it was 17 

your testimony that you're responsible for 18 

running the day to day operation of The Alibi? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you're presently 21 

operating, right? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you're presently 2 

operating serving lunch only and no alcoholic 3 

beverages? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct.   5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And you do that five 6 

days per week? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And we've had some 9 

discussion on the record last time about the 10 

scheduling of employees. You're responsible for 11 

scheduling the employees? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you have a written 14 

schedule that you developed? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay. And if I could direct 17 

your attention to the packet in front of you, tab 18 

#6 specifically, it is one, two, three, four 19 

pages of documents.  You see where we're talking 20 

about? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, mm hmm. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And can you please 1 

describe for the board what that first document 2 

is? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That's a screen shot of my 4 

sent box and it's got circled is the schedule 5 

that I send out to the staff. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  And what date is that from? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is, one of them is 8 

April 13th of 2015 and the other one's May 3rd of 9 

2013. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, and who were they sent 11 

to? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It shows Brian Betrand 13 

because he's the first alphabetical order but 14 

it's sent to all the, all the front of the house 15 

staff. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Who's Brian Betrand? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  One of the servers. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry, one of the? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Servers. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  And flipping to the next 21 

page, can you please describe what that is?   22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  That is the actual e-mail 1 

dated April 13, 2015, just little notes about the 2 

week to come or what happened the previous week, 3 

and attached is the schedule for the next week. 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And the third page, 5 

is that the attached schedule? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That's a different -- the 7 

third page is a different schedule but the 8 

schedule actually appears on that e-mail so 9 

that's January 7, 2016, same thing, notes and 10 

then the schedule. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay and who's scheduled for 12 

the January 2016 schedule? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Front of house we have 14 

Brian, Aston and Mike and Selena is the 15 

dishwasher.  Then in the kitchen we have Ingrid, 16 

Mayra and Joseu and I'm listed as the manager.   17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Is Martin Scahill on that 18 

schedule? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Turning over to the last 21 

page, what's that document? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  That is actually the 1 

attachment to the previous one that's attached is 2 

April 13th, that's what I sent out. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  And is that the schedule 4 

that you used for that particular day? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm sorry -- that week. 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes that week, yes. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you're on that schedule? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Martin Scahill is not on 11 

that schedule? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Has Martin Scahill ever been 14 

on one of these schedules that you developed for 15 

work? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  I move admission of what is 18 

marked as Applicant group #6. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.    21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Flipping to tab #7, do you 22 
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see a document there that's 8 pages, is that 1 

correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Would you describe what that 4 

is? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's two months of payroll 6 

records.  One is for [inaudible] 2015 and one is 7 

December 2015. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  And is Martin Scahill 9 

reflected on those payroll records? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No.  11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now there's something else I 12 

noticed about this particular one.  I don't see 13 

your name on there.  Is there a reason for that? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I don't pay myself, 15 

so -- 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Why not? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't make enough money 18 

to take a paycheck from the restaurant. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Do you hope one day to do 20 

that? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Of course.  It would be 22 
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nice. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  I move admission of 2 

Applicant #7. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Turning your attention to 6 

tab #8, it's two pages. 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Do you recall the last time 9 

we were here Mr. Parsons presenting you with some 10 

evidence that you maintained a joint bank account 11 

with Mr. Scahill? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Did you identify what 14 

you see there as tab #8? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is another statement 16 

from that same account dated June - July of 2015 17 

and then July to August of 2015.  June to July 18 

shows a negative balance and July to August shows 19 

the account has been closed. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move admission of Applicant 21 

#8. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.  2 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm sorry, I have one more 3 

question on Applicant #8.  Looking back on the 4 

first page, what address does the bank statement 5 

show as of July of 2015 for Martin Scahill? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's Martin Scahill's 7 

residence in Sterling, Virginia. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Moving now to tab #9.  Can 9 

you describe what is included in tab #9? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is a connected 11 

account to tab #8 so that tab #8 was the savings; 12 

this is the checking of that same account since 13 

it's a joint account, TD Bank. 14 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Please speak into the 15 

microphone. 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Sorry.  The statements 17 

here are from June 2015 to December 2015.  It's 18 

less than $100.00 from June, the account has less 19 

than $100.00 from June to September and then 20 

there's a negative account -- negative balance in 21 

September, October, November and December it's 22 
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closed.   1 

 MR. BIANCO:   And what address does that 2 

show for Mr. Scahill as of the date of these 3 

statements? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The same address in 5 

Sterling. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move admission of Applicant 7 

#9. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection.  9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.  10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, does HRH Services LLC 11 

maintain a bank account for its business 12 

operations? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, and when was that bank 15 

account opened? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think it was opened in 17 

December or January of -- December of 2014 or 18 

January of 2015. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And who are the 20 

signatories on that account? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Just me. 22 
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 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Can you repeat the last 1 

answer? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Just me.   3 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: No, but, the one that's 4 

before that. 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Oh, I think it was opened 6 

sometime in December of 2014 or January of 2015, 7 

somewhere around there. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  And turning your attention  9 

to tab #10.  Could you identify that document, 10 

please? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is the application to 12 

open up a business account at Wells Fargo for HRH 13 

Services. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  And who does that 15 

application show as the customer name and the 16 

only signer on the account? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Myself. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move admission of Applicant 19 

#10. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Now, Ms. Traverso, there was 1 

some evidence and testimony the last time we were 2 

here about an entity known as HRH LLC, as opposed 3 

to HRH Services, LLC.  Do you recall that 4 

testimony? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  And to your knowledge, was 7 

funds from the HRH LLC and HRH Services LLC bank 8 

accounts ever co-mingled? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Were you ever a signer on 11 

the HRH LLC account? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you open that account? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Is that account still open 16 

to your knowledge?   17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Turning your attention to 19 

tab #11, two pages.  Do you recognize that 20 

document? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  What is that? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The first page is 2 

basically a summary of what's in the account from 3 

November of 2015 to January of 2016 and it shows 4 

less than $200.00 and then it shows the account 5 

being closed in February of 2016. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  And the second page? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The second page is part of 8 

the application to open up the account and it 9 

shows Martin Scahill as the only signer on the 10 

account. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It shows Martin Scahill as 13 

the only signer on the HRH checking account. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move admission of Applicant 15 

#11. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Just so I understand it, I 17 

think the testimony is is that Mr. Scahill's 18 

signature --  19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- on Exhibit #11? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you.  No objection to 1 

these. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, there was -- the last 4 

time we were here there was also some testimony 5 

about you living with Mr. Scahill on G Street 6 

southeast in the District of Columbia.  Do you 7 

recall that testimony? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  And do you, in fact, still 10 

live with Mr. Scahill on G Street Southeast in 11 

the District of Columbia? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  To your knowledge, where 14 

does he live? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Sterling. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And flipping to tab 17 

#13, not tab #12, #13, do you recognize that 18 

document? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  What is that? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is Martin Scahill's 22 
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driver's license for Virginia. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  And where does it show his 2 

address? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  101 South Cameron Street, 4 

Sterling, Virginia. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  And what's the date of 6 

issuance of that license? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  July 1st, 2015. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  I move admission of 9 

Applicant #13. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  The last time we were here 13 

there was testimony about where Mr. Scahill 14 

worked other than the Alibi.  Do you have 15 

knowledge of where he works? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Where? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He works at his wife's 19 

hair salon in Sterling, Virginia. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Does he get paid for that 21 

work? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  Directing your attention to 2 

Applicant for tab #14. 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Oh, ex-wife, sorry.  Not 4 

wife, ex-wife yeah.  If I didn't say that. 5 

 MS. MILLER:  I'm sorry, where does he 6 

work?  I couldn't hear you.  7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  His ex-wife's hair salon, 8 

Artisan something Hair Design, I think, in 9 

Sterling, Virginia. 10 

 MS. MILLER:  Thank you.  11 

 MR. BIANCO:  And directing your attention 12 

to tab #14, what is it? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's a pay stub made out 14 

to Martin Scahill from Artisan Hair Design at 107 15 

East Holly Avenue, Sterling, Virginia, and it's 16 

dated January 22nd, 2016, so this is the latest 17 

pay stub. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, and then turning to 19 

the second page, can you describe what that is, 20 

please? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is a report on Martin 22 
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Scahill's earnings for 2000 -- when he first 1 

started 2015 at Artisan Hair, or when he first 2 

started getting paid. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  What pay period was that one 4 

for? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was June 7th to June 6 

20th, 2015. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  And turning to the last page 8 

would you please describe it? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is payroll register 10 

for Artisan Hair Design dated June 26, 2015.  And 11 

it shows Martin Scahill on this payroll register. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move admission of Applicant 13 

#14. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.  16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now -- 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. -- just maybe 18 

you want to make some corrections in document 19 

#14, the one that was just moved.  I know it's a 20 

public document but on review of the document it 21 

appears that there are the social security 22 
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numbers of 30 employees and maybe you need to 1 

remove these documents and replace them because 2 

they're, the social security numbers of all of 3 

the employees are here in a public record. 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  I can present a redacted 5 

copy following a break. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I should ask you 7 

to do that. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm sorry, maintain 9 

something among the public records a redacted 10 

copy would probably be appropriate.  Thank you 11 

for pointing that out.  Now, when you formed HRH 12 

Services, do you recall entering into a lease 13 

assignment? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  And do you remember when 16 

that was? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That was in January 2015. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Can you please 19 

describe the facts and circumstances surrounding 20 

the entering into of that lease? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Melles Hospitality was on 22 
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the verge of getting evicted.  We had discussions 1 

with Melles Hospitality through Martin Scahill 2 

and the landlord about taking over the 3 

obligations of the lease and taking over the 4 

lease and the day before it was scheduled to go 5 

to trial, the landlord was ready to go forward 6 

and evict Melles Hospitality Group who paid 7 

$27,000 plus lawyer's fees to enter into a lease 8 

assignment drafted by the landlord to take over 9 

the lease. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  So who did you pay the 11 

$27,000 plus legal fees to? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The landlord. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And at the time you 14 

entered into that agreement, did you have an 15 

understanding that Mr. Scahill didn't have 16 

appropriate authorization? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you have a copy of the 19 

Melles Hospitality Group [inaudible 2-40:45] 20 

agreement?   21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Had you reviewed it? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Reviewed it -- after the 2 

fact but not at that point. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  At that time in January. 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No.  Yeah. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Were you familiar with what 6 

corporate formalities had to be followed for that 7 

entity to make decisions?   8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you see Mr. Scahill make 10 

unilateral decisions with regard to that entity. 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  All the time, on a daily 12 

basis.   13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Can you speak up?  14 

There is a lot of chattering, at least from this 15 

end Ms. Traverso I got lots of board members -- 16 

that is -- so I can't hear well. 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Okay, sorry. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  And approximately two weeks 20 

later you filed that lease assignment with the 21 

ABC board as part of your application? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  At the time of your 2 

application were you aware of any disputes 3 

between Mr. Scahill and his business partners 4 

about the assignment of the lease? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No.  6 

 MR. BIANCO:  No, I would like to discuss 7 

for a moment the alleged forgery.  Are you 8 

familiar with what Mr. Parsons is talking about 9 

when he says you forged a document? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I've seen the allegations, 11 

yes. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And we had some 13 

testimony here last time about the specific 14 

document that he alleged you forged, correct? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  And he showed you a copy of 17 

that document? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He showed me the first 19 

couple of pages -- yeah, I think I saw the 20 

document, yeah. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  You remember specifically 22 
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what that document was? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  What was it? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's a application for a 4 

roof permit. 5 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: What was it? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Application for a roof 7 

permit.   8 

 MR. BIANCO:  And did you, in fact, forge 9 

his name on that document? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Why, what is your 12 

understanding why Mr. Parsons' signature would be 13 

required for a roof permit?   14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There's a notification 15 

form that is something they request you -- when 16 

you're doing something like roof work it could 17 

potentially damage a neighbor's property, so you 18 

have to get a notification form to show the DCRA 19 

that you have informed that neighbor that work is 20 

going on.  And either they sign it and they say 21 

"yes you can enter my property to protect it if 22 
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something happens" or they don't sign it and you 1 

wait ten days or 30 days, it depends on what type 2 

of work, you show proof that they were given the 3 

notice and you get the permit but you can't enter 4 

their property to protect their property. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  So, what you're 6 

describing is -- sounds like a notice pursuant to 7 

12A 3307 of the D.C. Municipal Regulations.  Are 8 

you familiar with that? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, I suspect Mr. Parsons 11 

will be showing you a copy of that document at 12 

cross examination, we'll get there when we get 13 

there, but based on what you described it sounds 14 

to me like you're in a stronger position if he 15 

doesn't sign it because you don't have to 16 

safeguard his property, is that your 17 

understanding? 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm going to object to that 19 

question. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  What's the basis 21 

of your objection? 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  They -- it's first of all 1 

it suggests -- it's a -- it's leading the witness 2 

to be specific, but it's also asking her to give 3 

an expert opinion on something she's already 4 

conceded she has no expertise in. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  What was the 6 

question again? 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm asking her about her 8 

understanding  of the significance of his 9 

signature on the notice.  And the proffer is 10 

specifically she's in a better position if he 11 

doesn't sign it and she knows this so why on 12 

earth would she forge it?  That's really the 13 

proffer that we're trying to get to. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And your objection 15 

to it? 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  It is -- obviously he is 17 

assuming she has expertise, knows the benefits of 18 

forging my signature -- of not forging my 19 

signature.  I -- I -- I don't believe this 20 

witness is qualified to be commenting on this 21 

particular area. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  I'm not asking her about her 1 

expertise, I'm asking her about her 2 

understanding.  If it's her understanding that 3 

she's in a stronger position, whether or not it's 4 

actually true, but if it's her understanding that 5 

she's in a stronger position if he doesn't sign 6 

it, then it goes -- it goes specifically to the 7 

motivation behind her actions -- actions that 8 

have been attributed to her. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'll allow her to 10 

answer the question but the board will -- for 11 

whatever it means. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But can you clarify?  13 

Clarify the question. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Sure. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Because it's not the 16 

question I heard.  So, restate your question, 17 

please. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Is it your understanding 19 

that Mr. Parsons' signature was required for an 20 

initial incident? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, you did not need the 22 
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signature. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  What is your understanding 2 

of the significance of Mr. Parsons' signature on 3 

the document? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The only thing that 5 

signature does would be to protect him. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, in the course of the 7 

extensive litigation both in this case and in the 8 

Superior Court do you have any reason to believe 9 

that Mr. Parsons himself [inaudible 2-46:55] the 10 

document? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   Repeat the question.  12 

Sorry. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Do you have any reason to 14 

believe that Mr. Parsons does not believe the 15 

allegation that you forged the document? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Do I?  Do I have any 17 

reason to believe that he doesn't believe his own 18 

allegations? 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Correct. 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know what he 21 

believes.   22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Has Mr. Parsons produced to 1 

you the results of a handwriting analysis of that 2 

particular document? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.   4 

 MR. BIANCO:  And were there any 5 

conclusions that his own expert made with regard 6 

to whether or not you signed that document? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, his expert 8 

determined that it was probably my handwriting on 9 

some of the blank parts of the form at the top 10 

but not conclude that I did the signature, said I 11 

didn't do the signature. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Now, there's been an 13 

allegation in this case that you -- that your 14 

sidewalk café is not in compliance with D.C. Code 15 

or DOT regulations.  Is that true? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There's allegations, yes. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, but are you in 18 

compliance to your knowledge? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, and what is the basis 21 

of your belief that you're in compliance? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  I have obtained a COU and 1 

a permit from DDOT. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Directing your 3 

attention to tab #12 of the packet in front of 4 

you. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry, what number? 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  #12.  Could you identify 7 

that document? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That is a certificate of 9 

use, issued on January 8, 2016, for 237 Second 10 

Street unenclosed sidewalk café for The Alibi. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  And at some point this was 12 

an enclosed sidewalk café, correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Can you please describe for 15 

the board how it became an unenclosed sidewalk 16 

café? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It came up for review 18 

before DDOT.  It was a structure that was there 19 

for over 30 years.  We were trying to bring it 20 

into compliance, it was the first time DDOT was 21 

dealing with something like this.  First it was 22 
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MHG attempting to do different things to bring it 1 

into compliance, then we took it on and attempted 2 

to do things to bring it into compliance, decided 3 

it wasn't in compliance, stopped using it and 4 

tore it down and then applied for an unenclosed 5 

sidewalk café. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Which was in June -- 7 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Please repeat the last 8 

thing that you said.    9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We stopped using it when 10 

we were told to stop using it and then we tore it 11 

down after getting the proper permits and then we 12 

applied for an unenclosed sidewalk café in a 13 

redefined square footage. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, as of now what you would 15 

have us know an approved sidewalk café that would 16 

be operating. 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, with regard to the 19 

enclosed sidewalk café, you stated that you were 20 

directed to stop using it.  When did that happen? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  End of 2014, I think it 22 
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was like, it was the end of 2014, I can't 1 

remember the exact date. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay and did you in fact 3 

stop using it at the end of 2014? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  And did there come a time 6 

when you started using it again? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, because it got taken 8 

down. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, Ms. Traverse the last 10 

time we were here we went into a little bit your 11 

qualifications in the bar/restaurant industry.  12 

You remember doing that? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, I would like to cover 15 

that in a little bit of detail.  Have you -- how 16 

has -- do you have a business plan for The Alibi? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  And what is that? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  What is it?  It just kind 20 

of defines what my vision and goals -- what I 21 

want to create with the restaurant.  How my 22 
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passion for the restaurant is going to come 1 

through and what I'm trying to create. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  And is that a written 3 

document, that business plan? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  And directing your attention 6 

to tab #1 of the packet that's in front of you. 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  Yeah, that's the 8 

business plan.   9 

 MR. BIANCO:  That's your written business 10 

plan? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 12 

 MR. BIANCO: And who wrote that? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I did.   14 

 MR. BIANCO:  And when did you write that? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I started writing it end 16 

of 2014 and I think I, this is the final version 17 

that was completed around January of 2015. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  And is that about when you 19 

started operation at the establishment? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Beginning of 2015 was when 21 

we were starting to train and figure out the menu 22 
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and direction we were actually going to go.  The 1 

renovations were pretty much done so we opened by 2 

March, so yes. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  And what was this written 4 

for?  Was this business plan written for 5 

financing or for some other reason? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mostly for myself, just to 7 

keep myself on track and make sure I was staying 8 

true to what the original vision was. 9 

 MR. BIANCO: I move the admission of 10 

Applicant #1. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, as you were engaged in 14 

this planning process for the restaurant did you 15 

deal with the issue of alcohol awareness? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 17 

 MR. BIANCO: How did you deal with it? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Did a lot of research into 19 

training and created policies and procedures and 20 

training manual. 21 

 MR. BIANCO: Did you yourself complete any 22 
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training? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  How many times? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Taken alcohol awareness 4 

course I think four times now. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  And when you were developing 6 

policies and procedures, did you do that in 7 

writing? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 9 

 MR. BIANCO: When did you do that? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I started it in 2013, and 11 

I've been updating ever since.  I think the last 12 

update I did was actually a couple of weeks ago, 13 

actually, because I took another test so I 14 

updated it a little bit based on that test. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  HRH Services didn't 16 

exist until late 2014.  Why were you drafting 17 

alcohol safety training manual in 2013?  Because 18 

I was going to be the bar manager originally so 19 

that was part of my overarching duties was going 20 

to be make sure that the law was followed and 21 

alcohol was properly served and legally served 22 
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and safely served. 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Okay. 2 

 MR. BIANCO: And when you say you were 3 

going to be the bar manager originally you're 4 

referring to the Melles Hospitality Group 5 

application? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct, yeah. 7 

 MR. BIANCO: And directing your attention 8 

to tab #2 of the documents that are in front of 9 

you, can you describe what that is? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is an alcohol safety 11 

training manual that I wrote up.  This is what I 12 

started in 2013 and have been kind of updating 13 

ever since and it's based on my personal 14 

experience, information I've found online and the 15 

information that I've gathered from tests and 16 

it's basically what I would pass on to all my 17 

employees and have training over, and they all 18 

have a copy. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, you drafted this 20 

beginning to end.  This wasn't a form given to 21 

you by somebody.  22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, this was completely 1 

all me.   2 

 MR. BIANCO:  And do you use it for 3 

training now? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Not yet, because -- I'm 5 

waiting to see what's going on with the liquor 6 

license but yeah this is the first thing that 7 

people are going to get trained on. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Move admission of 9 

Applicant #2. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.  12 

 MR. BIANCO:  In addition to your alcohol 13 

awareness manual, do you have any other policies 14 

and procedures in place at your restaurant now? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 16 

 MR. BIANCO: And, turning your attention 17 

to tab #2 would you please describe what they 18 

are? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  These are posted policies.  20 

This is just -- they're kind of like my main 21 

concerns that are delineated down to always 22 
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constantly remind people, because I find that to 1 

be helpful at least for me, because giving 2 

someone a big manual you're not always going to 3 

remember everything all the time, so these are 4 

the points I want all my staff to always have in 5 

mind and the most important things to me in terms 6 

of house policies and bar follow-through. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  And this is currently posted 8 

on the wall at the establishment?   9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Where? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There's an employee wall.  12 

It's not really an area, but it's a wall.  It's 13 

where the schedule and labor posters are and it's 14 

right behind the bar.  It's between the bar and 15 

the dishwasher area 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  How long has it been up 17 

there? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  House policies have been 19 

up there since February, and then the bar 20 

policies I think I put up there about six months 21 

ago.   22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  And it looks like the bar 1 

policies addresses the issue of ID.  If you can't 2 

serve alcohol, why is that on there? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Because eventually that 4 

will be a part of it.  I had them written up a 5 

long time before I posted them, because they were 6 

supposed to be mostly in terms of cocktail 7 

creation and actual serving liquor, but we 8 

started a pretty intense nonalcoholic beverage 9 

program for lunch, so that's why the first four I 10 

felt were pretty important to put up there 11 

anyway, so that's why it got posted six months 12 

ago. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  And in turning to the third 14 

page of that particular tab, there is a document 15 

called Employee [inaudible]  What's that? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That's something for our 17 

current employees to sign just to say that they 18 

understand policies and also it goes over they 19 

can't use illegal drugs, if they've been 20 

convicted of a crime they are obligated to notify 21 

me because legally I'm obligated to notify the 22 
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board once I have a liquor license.  General -- 1 

just make sure they're all on the same page and 2 

they understand what's expected. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  And this is in use now? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  All right and is there a 6 

provision in here that requires staff members to 7 

pass an alcohol safe services program? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  I've waived that for 9 

the moment.  It's going to be thirty days from 10 

the day I basically get the liquor license. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move for admission of 12 

Applicant #3. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  And turning your attention 16 

to tab #4, do you recognize that document? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, what's that? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is my employee 20 

manual.  This goes out to every employee, it's 21 

both in English and in Spanish. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Did you write this one from 1 

scratch too, or was this a chug n plug. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This one took about three 3 

different handbooks I found online and used as 4 

like a guideline, basically for topics, but then 5 

adjusted all the information to fit my business, 6 

basically.  I used an outline for this one as 7 

opposed to other documents. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, and without [inaudible 9 

2-58:43] is there a section of that that deals 10 

with alcohol training requirements? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Would you please direct our 13 

attention to where that is?  14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think it's page -- yeah, 15 

it's under employee training, so that is page 6 16 

and it goes over the fact that all back of house 17 

is going to have to take a Safe Serve course and 18 

front of house I'll eventually get them to do 19 

that as well and then all front of house must 20 

pass an ABRA approved Safe Service training 21 

within 45 days of hire.   22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Correct --  1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  And it must be renewed 2 

every three years. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move for admission of 4 

Applicant #4. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Turning your attention to 8 

tab #5, now you mentioned that you had taken some 9 

alcohol training courses.  I want to briefly go 10 

through the documents that are in tab #5.  What's 11 

the first page there? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This was an intensive 13 

program I took -- it was an online course, it 14 

took about two or three weeks.  It goes into 15 

history of alcohol, the details about gin and the 16 

types of like bourbon, and it's very -- it was 17 

more like a mixology course I guess you could say 18 

but also went into how to properly serve, a 19 

little bit, and it went into how to create an 20 

atmosphere and what to put on a cocktail list to 21 

create that atmosphere, so it was a very, very 22 
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involved program and it's called Bar Smarts and 1 

its actually something that I want to -- there's 2 

a program where you contact them and they'll 3 

provide it for free if you require all of your 4 

bartenders to take it and that's what I hope to 5 

do in the future.  It is very informative. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  And the next page? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is when I attended 8 

the ID compliance course ABRA held.  This was in 9 

2014. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  And the next one? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That's another  ID 12 

checking -- checking course recently just to 13 

refresh my memory.  That was online with 360 14 

Training.  15 

 MS. MILLER:  I'm sorry, where was this 16 

course? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  360 Training.  It's 18 

online. 19 

MS. MILLER:  Okay. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you completed that in 21 

January 2016?   22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, Mm hmm. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  And the last page of that 2 

particular tab? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is -- I took another 4 

-- this is the last time I updated the alcohol 5 

safety training was after I took this.  This was 6 

another Safe Serve course that was online.  Again 7 

this was through, I think this was through 360 8 

Training as well. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  I move admission of 10 

Applicant #5. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.  13 

 MR. BIANCO:  And, Ms. Traverso, we just 14 

talked about your training, but have you put any 15 

measures in place with regard to training other 16 

employees when you get a license? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, they're gonna have 18 

to do this, the approved Safe Service test 19 

online, also I've been talking with Phil Tendley 20 

about coming in and doing essentially ID, helping 21 

people understand ID, because even I -- I took 22 
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the ID course online and it was okay, but the one 1 

that ABRA gave was ten times better and he's an 2 

ex-cop so I hope to show, you know, I learned 3 

things at the ABRA course that I didn't learn 4 

online that I wish was in a manual that you could 5 

pass along and that's actually in my training 6 

manual for the ABC, but things to look for like 7 

keys, and eagles, and locks and words like 8 

"authentic" and "real" and they don't tell you 9 

that in the manual.  And same thing to turn it 10 

over and look at the bar code, even.  You don't 11 

get that in a manual so that's why I hope to have 12 

Phil Tendley help me with that and also to help 13 

train the staff on actually practicing.  I have 14 

the ID Eye -- practicing using that. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  What's an ID Eye? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  ID Eye is like a Swiss 17 

Army Knife for ID checking so you've got the 18 

magnifying glass, light and the UV light and it's 19 

all in one. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  All right and you have one 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, it's actually -- 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  You brought it with you. 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I did.   2 

 MR. BIANCO:  How about software that will 3 

allow you to scan? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I've got something  5 

on my -- I heard some bad things about it from 6 

other people in the industry.  I've got a thing 7 

on my phone called Bars Applicant.  I don't 8 

really trust it.  The only way I would trust it 9 

is if it said it was fake, then I'll trust it 10 

then but I wouldn't trust it if it said it was 11 

real.  12 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm just curious.  This is 13 

the ID applicant? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep, you gotta hold down 15 

the power button and then there's a button for 16 

the light and a button for the UV. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Oh, I see.  Interesting. 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah.   19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Sorry, I got preoccupied 20 

with that toy there, I lost my train of thought. 21 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: We all love our toys. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  I don't have any further 1 

questions, thank you.  2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Your witness, Mr. 3 

Parsons. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you, your Honor.  Ms. 5 

Traverso, you were here in this room on January 6 

6, 2016. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I've told the 8 

board, and Mr. Parsons, you probably need to sit 9 

so you can be next to a microphone. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Oh, sorry. 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And I'll also 12 

remind my board members there's a lot of papers 13 

and there's a lot of rustling up here, too, so we 14 

need to be careful if we're all rustling papers 15 

at the same time. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But I'm not -- I'm 18 

just saying there's a microphone so if you're not 19 

going to use a microphone, if you're going to 20 

stand, then you need to raise your voice so it 21 

can actually record it. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Gotcha.  Yes, sir.  Thank 1 

you.  Ms. Traverso you were here on January 16, 2 

2016, and gave extensive testimony, correct?  3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was here on January 6th, 4 

yes. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  January 6th, I'm sorry.  6 

And you -- is it fair to say you tried to be as 7 

honest and accurate and candid as you could in 8 

giving your testimony? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now as I understand 11 

it, you formed HRH Services in December of 2014, 12 

correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  And if I understand it, you 15 

did so at a time when there was an eviction 16 

action brought by the landlord against the 17 

existing tenant in the building, correct? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  And so you, is it fair to 20 

say that you wanted to move in and take over the 21 

operation by the formation of this entity? 22 



90 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

  MS. TRAVERSO:  I didn't want the business 1 

to be -- my family had donated a lot of money 2 

into that business.  I didn't want it just to 3 

disappear, so it was an option.  In order to be 4 

prepared for the option a business had to be set 5 

up in case that option came around. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  So, you knew that 7 

Mr. Scahill -- well first of all, not to repeat 8 

this too much but at the time that this happened, 9 

you and Mr. Scahill were engaged, correct?  10 

Engaged to be married.   11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  At that time we were 12 

officially engaged.  I don't remember. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, am I correct?  He 14 

bought you an engagement ring in November of 15 

2013? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, August, 2013. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  He bought a ring for you in 18 

August of 2013? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Which the significance of 21 

that was that you at some point in the future 22 
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planned to be man and wife, correct? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Now, my 3 

question is you, you're -- in moving -- you were 4 

still engaged when the HRH Services was created, 5 

correct? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't remember. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  But you were still living 8 

together at 708 G Street, correct? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He moved out over a course 10 

of several months, I don't remember when he was 11 

officially out, so, I don't remember. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Was he paying rent 13 

towards the premises there at 708 G? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was paying rent. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  You paid all the rent? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  From what I recall, yes. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  And Mr. Scahill lived with 18 

you? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  At some point. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  In other words, if I 21 

understand it, and you gave testimony on this 22 
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yesterday, correct? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, you asked me about 2 

this, yes. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  And did we not establish 4 

that you rented the apartment from a Ms. Bellow, 5 

correct? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  The building from Ms. 8 

Bellow.  And then Mr. Scahill, and I think you 9 

said 2008 was when you moved into 708 G, correct? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was 2008-2009.  It was 11 

so long ago.  It was around then, yes.  It was 12 

probably 2009, maybe 2010. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you lived there 14 

continuously until sometime in 2015 is your 15 

testimony, correct? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I still live there. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  You still live there and 18 

Mr. Scahill resided with you there until sometime 19 

in 2015. 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was staying there up 21 

until the beginning of 2015, yes.   22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Now, when did this -- when 1 

in fact officially did your engagement to get 2 

married to Mr. Scahill end? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't remember.  It 4 

didn't happen in one single day. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  How did it happen?  Did you 6 

sit down and say, "no, I just don't think we 7 

should get married."  Tell me how it happened. 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was a slow breakup, Mr. 9 

Parsons.  It was not easy, but it happened, okay?  10 

It happened. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right, well let's go 12 

back to when you formed HRH Services because your 13 

family had already invested a lot of money in the 14 

business operation, correct?   15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 16 

  MR. PARSONS:  All right.  In fact, am I 17 

correct that your father and mother had written 18 

checks to you totaling $287,000.00 in the course 19 

of from April of 2014 until June of 2015? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don’t remember.  I don’t 21 

remember the exact number. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  You were show the exhibits 1 

yesterday weren't you? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was shown an exhibit you 3 

made up. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm gonna give you 5 

some, I don't have any documents in front of me 6 

stating that -- and I know that there's another 7 

proceeding going on but, and if the witness 8 

testified that she doesn't have it, it's not in 9 

the record here, I think we have to move on from 10 

there, sir.  If you have it here -- 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm going, can I ask leave 12 

to get the exhibits from the deposition because 13 

she's testifying under oath now directly contrary 14 

to what she testified yesterday. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  I would ask for a proffer of 16 

where this is going with the relevance of her 17 

father -- her father and her giving funds to a 18 

previous applicant, the application of which is 19 

not before the board.  If that's what he intends 20 

to establish, I don't know that we have a dispute 21 

about that and I don't know that we need to go 22 
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into that either, I don't see how it's relevant. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Let me ask you this.  As I 2 

understand it-- 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Well, wait a minute, we're 4 

still having an argument over exhibits as I 5 

understand. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I -- I 7 

guess, I'm just saying that my position is that 8 

if, sir, if you've asked the question and she 9 

doesn't answer the way you want her to answer, 10 

because there's no document here for us to -- 11 

there's no document at least in this proceeding, 12 

for us to confront her with so we have to move 13 

on.  But I'm -- I don't think -- I don't think 14 

it's -- I don't think I'm going to allow you to -15 

- you've asked the question and she has answered 16 

it in the way that -- we have to move on from 17 

there, that's just my. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct, Ms. Traverso, 19 

that when your parents would give you money, you 20 

would -- it was in the form of a check. 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Usually, yes. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  And then you would convert 1 

the check to cash. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Usually, yes. 3 

  MR. PARSONS:  In other words, you were 4 

receiving checks in the neighborhood of 5 

about$10,000 every two weeks which you converted 6 

to cash, correct? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  And then 9 

overall you convert -- you of the monies provided 10 

to you by your parents, am I correct that it was 11 

approximately $287,000.00 over that two year 12 

period? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't remember the exact 14 

amount.  That's your calculations, not mine.  So 15 

I can't testify to that amount. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  When you say it's my 17 

calculations, not yours, did you keep a log of 18 

the money that you were given? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I kept a record of it, 20 

yes. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Where did you keep the 22 
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record? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  In files. 2 

  MR. PARSONS:  Sorry? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  In files.  4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Are those the folders that 5 

you have at the office you referred to yesterday? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I have them somewhere, 7 

yes. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now then, in any 9 

event you were afraid that the eviction would 10 

have the effect of wiping out the investment your 11 

parents had made, so you created the new HRH 12 

Services, correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was an option.  The 14 

landlord was open to the option of assigning the 15 

lease in December. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, but in doing so 17 

you kept Martin off the new entity correct? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now, did you sit down with 20 

Martin and say, "Look, I know you have worked 21 

here for 18 months, but I'm going to take over 22 
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the lease and I'm going to have the control and 1 

you're not going to have any more say in this 2 

business"?  Did you have that conversation? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It wasn't my decision to 4 

make.  He still had the lease.  I couldn't just 5 

kick him out. 6 

 MR. PARSONS: So you needed to negotiate 7 

with him in order to get HRH Services the lease, 8 

is that? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  MHG and the landlord had 10 

to agree that HRH Services could take over the 11 

lease. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so that's where Mr. 13 

Scahill came in.  He assigned the lease over to 14 

HRH Services. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  MHG had no other option, 16 

they were going to get evicted the next day. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think we're saying the 18 

same thing, but the answer is yes, he signed it 19 

over, correct? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He acted as MHG's agent, 21 

yes, and he assigned. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  And assigned the lease to 1 

HRH Services.  2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   Yes, he assigned the 3 

least assignment as MHG's representative, yes. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you announce to him 5 

that from that day forward he had no more 6 

involvement in the running of the restaurant and 7 

that you were going to run it? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Did I have that specific 9 

conversation? 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm trying to understand 11 

what you were trying to accomplish with your new 12 

entity.  You're taking over a lease, you're 13 

entering with direction to the landlord, and now 14 

you've got Mr. Scahill who's not going to be a 15 

part of HRH Services.  Did you announce to him 16 

"I'm running the show from now on"? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I didn't have to, I was 18 

running the show. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, when HRH Services began 20 

you were running the show? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  And so, Mr. Scahill I think 1 

by your testimony earlier this month, was coming 2 

over four days a week, five hours a day, and not 3 

being paid to be there, correct? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, I guess what I'm asking 6 

is again, in your testimony, let's see if I -- 7 

have you had an opportunity to read the 8 

transcript of the January 6th hearing? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO: No.   10 

MR. PARSONS:  Mr. Scahill also coordinated the 11 

contractors for the upstairs construction that 12 

was being done? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  And that was done in, what, 15 

November of 2015?  November-December? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Around then, yes. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  So, he, when you say 18 

coordinating the work there, what was he doing? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He had contacts with 20 

contractors because he had been doing the 21 

previous work and he helped advise on -- I'm not 22 
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very good at construction, I don't know what can 1 

and cannot be done, sometimes I want something 2 

done and I'll be told by a contractor, "Oh, you 3 

can't do that" or "that's going to cost this much 4 

money."  He knows what can and can't be done and 5 

he knows if I'm gonna get screwed, so he was 6 

there as an advisor as to talking with 7 

contractors, yes.  8 

 MR. PARSONS:  And not being paid. 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No.   10 

 MR. PARSONS: And then you also testified 11 

that he oversaw the tearing down of the patio or 12 

this enclosed sidewalk café, correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  That was something, again, 15 

you delegated to him. 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I asked for his advice on 17 

that, yes. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  And so he oversaw the 19 

demolition, correct? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was there as an advisor 21 

and he was there making sure everything went -- 22 
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was legally followed yes. 1 

 MR. PARSONS: And then you said that aside 2 

from controlling the contractors, he also seated 3 

customers in the restaurant. 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO: When he was there, yes. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And that went on up 6 

until when? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Last month. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so this is January, 9 

so he was seating customers in December. 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, let me just ask 12 

you, where is Martin Scahill right now?   13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No idea, don't care.   14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did -- you don't care? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Nope. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you give him back his 17 

engagement ring? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection, relevance. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  When you say you don't 21 

care, what do you mean you don't care? 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  On that last question, she 3 

doesn't care? 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, I guess that's your 6 

answer.  I want to ask you, you were shown some 7 

exhibits.  We have here a -- a driver's license, 8 

tab #13 of Mr. Scahill.  You saw that, correct? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  How did you get that 11 

driver's license? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I requested it to present 13 

as evidence from Mr. Scahill. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  And when did you ask for 15 

this evidence? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  After the hearing on 17 

January 6th.   18 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, these documents would 19 

have been compiled after January 6th, correct? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Then let me ask you 22 
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this, turning to tab #14, your -- it's your 1 

testimony that as far as you know Mr. Scahill 2 

lives out in Sterling, Virginia, correct? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  And yet, as of January -- I 5 

mean, as of December he was coming from Sterling 6 

to 237 Second Street Northwest correct? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Sometimes, yes. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, he had to if he was 9 

going to be there four times a week -- 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Five hours a day, correct? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Now, how did 14 

you come to have possession of tab #14?  Who gave 15 

that to you? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Same thing, I asked Mr. 17 

Scahill for it after the hearing on the 6th. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that that 19 

hearing on the 6th in this room, while the 20 

witnesses were outside waiting to come in and 21 

testify, Mr. Scahill was outside walking around? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:   I have no knowledge of 1 

that. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  You didn't discuss that 3 

with him?   4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, turning to tab 6 

#10, this is, as I understand it, you set up a 7 

bank account for HRH Services LLC with Wells 8 

Fargo, correct?  9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Looking at the second page, 11 

did you deposit $50,000.00 into that new bank 12 

account.  13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That's what it says, 14 

that's what I must have done, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  You don't recall whether 16 

you deposited $50,000.00 into that account? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   I'm sure I did, yes. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now, then, are you still 19 

receiving money from your parents?  Checks? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Personally, no. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, all of the money that's 22 
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coming in now is going to HRH Services from your 1 

parents? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  HRH Services isn't 3 

receiving any direct money from my parents.  It's 4 

supporting itself. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  When you say it's 6 

supporting itself, how is it supporting itself? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   It's paying the utility 8 

bills and it's paying payroll and it's buying 9 

food and it's paying taxes. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  So that's what your -- is 11 

HRH Services profitable then? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you know what -- I think 14 

you said that Mr. Scahill was working for his ex-15 

wife as a bookkeeper, correct? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you know what he does? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I know he's a bookkeeper. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  You testified, I believe, 20 

at the last hearing  that if you get your liquor 21 

license for The Alibi, that if Mr. Scahill works 22 
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there you were not going to let him work at the 1 

door, correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you weren't going to 4 

let him work at the bar, correct? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  And so that you expect Mr. 7 

Scahill would be able to bus tables after you get 8 

your license, correct? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He's not allowed in the 10 

bar anymore, but if he is physically in the bar 11 

he is physically capable of busing a table.  I 12 

would not tell him to stop busing the table at 13 

the time, but now he's not allowed in the bar, so 14 

he will not be at the bar. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  At all? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  At all. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  There was reference in 18 

opening statement to a bar notice.  Did you 19 

actually go out and get a bar notice from the 20 

police?   21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I didn't. 22 



108 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you know anything about 1 

a bar notice from the police on Mr. Scahill?   2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Tell me what you know. 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  My father got a barring 5 

notice. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And how did he do 7 

it? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  You'd have to ask him. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  You don't know? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He got a barring notice, 11 

that's what I know. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you know what a bar 13 

notice is? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It means he can't set foot 15 

on the property. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, now, may I pass these 17 

exhibits forward at this time?  Or I'm going to -18 

- All right I see what we need.  Okay.  I'm going 19 

to hand you --  20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons, 21 

remember you are cross examining her on questions 22 
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that Mr. Bianco asked, so therefore in your case, 1 

so if these are not documents that he raised, he 2 

asked her on direct question then I can't allow 3 

you to.  4 

 MR. PARSONS:  They are related to a 5 

question. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But -- I think 7 

part of which -- we probably needed to -- you 8 

have occasion sheets and I guess I need to -- let 9 

me see -- she was not listed as -- she was not 10 

listed as a witness to be called  and I guess 11 

part of the problem is that it's -- procedurally, 12 

no, he can't do what he's trying to do. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Let me see if I can "un-14 

muddy" the waters here if I can.  As I understand 15 

it, Ms. Traverso, you were asked a number of 16 

questions on direct examination relating to your 17 

knowledge about notification forms at DCRA 18 

regarding a building permit, correct? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And you gave your 21 

best statement about what you thought 22 
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notification forms were, correct? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  I want to show you 3 

what I have marked as Exhibit #8, which is a -- 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Can you -- 5 

remember we don’t have a document list, you can 6 

give us your document so we can look -- the board 7 

can also look at the documents.  And the 8 

assumption, and why I'm allowing this, is you're 9 

trying to impeach her with the document based on 10 

her previous testimony.  You can give.  And so 11 

what I will -- if you have a document that you're 12 

trying to impeach based on her direct testimony 13 

then you're allowed to do that, but please do not 14 

-- please do not use documents that were not 15 

admitted or documents that she didn't testify to 16 

during her direct testimony.   17 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I may, and just a point 18 

of clarification.  I'm sort of used to this 19 

procedure and I just want to make sure that this 20 

squares with what -- 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm also new, too, 22 
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all right? 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  What I'm saying is that 2 

when we have a pretrial conference and all the 3 

exhibits are identified in the pretrial 4 

conference then they're usable for any purpose 5 

during trial.  I mean, they're stipulated to as 6 

admissible, as authentic, genuine -- 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But remember, you 8 

are, and in a court of law, and I mean Mr. Bianco 9 

hasn't objected to and that is decision, and I'm 10 

staying out of it, but in a court of law you are 11 

cross examining her and so, therefore, you are 12 

strictly supposed to ask her questions based on 13 

what she previously testified to.  You cannot 14 

bring new evidence or you can't -- it can't be 15 

new.  I mean, there's been a lot of new things, I 16 

mean I know there's references about yesterday.  17 

I don't know what it is, and since counsel hasn't 18 

cross examined -- hasn't objected -- I'm not 19 

going to -- I'm not going to say anything, but 20 

the only part of it that I can control is that if 21 

she testified, for example the document that 22 
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you're trying to talk to her about was testified 1 

to on direct, I have no problem, you have a 2 

document, try to impeach her, but it can't be new 3 

evidence.  So, if it's not in reference to 4 

before, then at this juncture you can't question 5 

her on a document that he never -- because you're 6 

cross examining her. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yeah, but --  8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Chairman, we had -- I -- 9 

if I understand where he's going, he's going to 10 

talk about his Exhibit #8, which is the 11 

construction application and I don't have a 12 

problem with it. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And I'm fine with 14 

it. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  And I-- 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And I'm fine with 17 

that document, no I said I'm fine with that 18 

document because she was asked about the 19 

document, Mr. Bianco opened the door and she was 20 

asked about certain documents and so, therefore 21 

you're going to try to -- you're going to show 22 
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her the document and -- and from your 1 

perspective, and I'm fine with that document.  2 

I'm just saying, though, it can't be a new 3 

document that was not brought up under direct 4 

testimony, that's all I'm saying.  But I don't 5 

have a problem -- I -- I'm perfectly fine with 6 

#8, that's one of the reasons I said, give it to 7 

us so we'll know, so I'm perfectly fine with that 8 

document.  I'm just saying, I just want to 9 

caution you that any document that you're going 10 

to show her that's in your exhibit make sure that 11 

it was testimony that was brought out on direct 12 

today and not yesterday in the deposition because 13 

I have no idea what was -- I don't know anything 14 

about this other case, I don't want to, it's not 15 

relevant here so just -- so, you have a lot of 16 

latitude because a lot of things were said and 17 

you're a good lawyer, I know that any document 18 

you pull out you can probably tie it to some 19 

statements that were made on the direct.  All 20 

right. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm going to hand you this 22 
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--  1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Is that the 2 

document, so okay go ahead.  And this is #8.  I 3 

want the record to be clear that this is a 4 

document that Mr. Scahill -- I'm sorry -- that 5 

Mr. Parsons wants to introduce at a later point, 6 

so okay go ahead, sir. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Turning to Exhibit #8, am I 8 

correct that a permit was issued on February the 9 

14th of 2015 for 237 Second Street Northwest?  10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Now you were 12 

working at 237 Second Street at that time, 13 

correct? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was helping out, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS: Okay, I mean, were you 16 

regularly helping out or were you just -- what 17 

were you doing? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was painting, brick 19 

pulling, there was still brick pointing, coming 20 

up with menu ideas.  I was there. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  In other words, you wanted 22 
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to see The Alibi get off and get moving, so you 1 

were working there to try to get it on track. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was supposed to be the 3 

bar manager, yes. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so you wanted the 5 

business to open. 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   Correct. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now then, there came a time 8 

on December the 17th of 2013 that a stop work 9 

order was issued regarding some roof leak on my 10 

side of the common wall, correct? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   Yes.  That was dismissed, 12 

yes. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And so, the purpose 14 

of this particular application for roof materials 15 

was in order to try to get a permit to get back 16 

to work on the roof, correct? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, yeah.  Let me ask you 19 

to turn to page #19 of Exhibit #8.  Now then, you 20 

were asked some questions about a notification 21 

form, do you recall that? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 1 

 MR. PARSONS: And part of the requirements 2 

for getting a building permit to do that roof 3 

work is you needed to get the notification form 4 

signed by --  5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection, that's an 6 

inaccurate statement. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Can I finish my question? 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Let him finish the 9 

question and I'll -- let him finish the question.  10 

Go ahead, sir. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Part of the reason for the 12 

notification form was so that you could get the 13 

building permit, correct? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  You have to present a 15 

notification form to a neighbor to get the 16 

building permit, at that time, yes.   17 

 MR. PARSONS:  And I think that was -- 18 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: We can't hear. 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  You have to present a 20 

notification form to a neighbor at that time to 21 

get particularly a roof permit. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS: Now, looking at page #19 of 1 

Exhibit #8, am I correct madam that the signature 2 

down at the bottom where it says signature of 3 

owner, that's Mr. Scahill?  4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It seems so.  I wasn't 5 

there for him to sign it but yeah that looks like 6 

his signature, yes.  7 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That looks like his 9 

signature, yes. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, having been engaged 11 

and living with him for some time you know his 12 

signature I take it.  13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That's why I said it looks 14 

like his signature, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now then, up on the 16 

right hand side where it says "Charles C. 17 

Parsons" there's some scratching out, that's your 18 

handwriting isn't it? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, I filled out a lot of 20 

the application, yes. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And so you knew when 22 
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you filled it out that you needed this document 1 

in order to get the building permit, correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   No. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Why did you fill it out?  4 

Was it because Mr. Scahill asked you to? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   It was to make your life 6 

easier so you wouldn't have to fill it out, you 7 

just had to sign it.  8 

 MR. PARSONS: So, did you come around and 9 

talk to me and tell me that you were going to 10 

fill out the notification form? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It wasn't my business, it 12 

wasn't my job, that Mr. Martin Scahill came 13 

around and told you. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  So did you fill this out 15 

for Mr. Scahill then? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I filled out a lot of 17 

things for the business, so yes, I filled out the 18 

rest of the application.  You can see my 19 

handwriting throughout the application.   20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now then, at the bottom 21 

there is a place for the adjoining owner, myself 22 
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from what you identified up at the top, for his 1 

signature, correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now then, is it your 4 

position that the signature that appears on page 5 

#19 as the adjoin -- as the owner -- is my 6 

signature? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I never saw you sign so I 8 

can't say that you signed it, I can't say who 9 

signed it. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you accompany Mr. 11 

Scahill down to the DCRA building to file the 12 

permit? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was present; I wanted to 14 

see how it worked, yes.   15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so when you went with 16 

Mr. Scahill you had a number of papers in order 17 

to seek to get a copy of the building permit for 18 

the roofing, right? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's called the 20 

application, yes. 21 

 MR. PARSONS: The application, in other 22 
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words you do the application, submit the 1 

notification form, and then you try to sway the 2 

people at the DCRA counter there to issue a 3 

permit, correct? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I wouldn't say persuade.  5 

You present the application and if the 6 

application follows all the rules and regulations 7 

they issue a permit. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  So, is it your 9 

understanding that they issued the permit because 10 

you had all the papers correctly in place. 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 12 

 MR. PARSONS: Okay.  Now, did you have any 13 

-- when you say that you went with Mr. Scahill to 14 

find out how the -- how the procedure works, you 15 

were present with him when this building -- the 16 

roof permit -- was granted? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think I came down with 18 

him once and I think we were missing something, 19 

it was a long time ago.  I think we were missing 20 

something, but I wasn't there when he actually 21 

got the permit.  I don't think I was there when 22 
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he actually got the permit.  He had to go down 1 

and get them a second time. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, you were there when the 3 

papers for the permit were filed.   4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, I think I was there 5 

for the first trip to DCRA, it takes a long time, 6 

it takes several hours.  I think we left and I 7 

think he went back and got the permit at a later 8 

date, I don't think I was present for it because 9 

I don't remember actually getting the issued 10 

permit. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Where were you when you 12 

filled out the information on page #19? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know, probably in 14 

the office at work.  Well, it wasn't our office 15 

probably at 237 -- 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  At 237 Second Street? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, Mm hmm. 18 

 MR. PARSONS: And how was it that the 19 

document came to be present -- I mean, am I 20 

correct that in the upper left hand corner, 21 

that's Mr. Scahill's  handwriting? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  It looks like it, yeah. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Why did Mr. Scahill 2 

not just fill in the whole notification form?  3 

Why did he turn to you to fill in that part of 4 

it?   5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He started some things, 6 

there's other -- there he is here on another 7 

page, but sometimes he got distracted and had to 8 

go do something else, so I finished filling it 9 

out for him.  His handwriting is on page 16, my 10 

handwriting's on page 17, so. 11 

 MR. PARSONS: Let's see -- I'll follow you 12 

so I can follow that.  So, page 17, that's your 13 

handwriting. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And where were you 16 

when you filled out page 17? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I filled it out all at the 18 

same time, I imagine. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, but so that would 20 

have been at 237 Second Street? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Probably, yep. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  There was a sense of 1 

urgency was there not to get the roofing permit 2 

because you already had a stop work order in 3 

place. 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   The stop work order was 5 

dismissed on December 24, 2013.  Dismissed. 6 

 MR. PARSONS: It was an urgency to get the 7 

permit.  You wanted to get the roof fixed didn't 8 

you?  9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The roof was leaking, so 10 

yes, it would have been nice to get the roof done 11 

yes, but it was the landlord's responsibility on 12 

the lease to get the roof done, we were simply -- 13 

MHC was helping --- 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  The landlord? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  -- the landlord get the 16 

permit yes.   17 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, you would have been 18 

helping the landlord as well. 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, by helping him issue 20 

to fill out the application, yes. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so my question is 22 
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where were you when the signature was affixed 1 

where the adjoining owner's name appears. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know.  I didn't 3 

see it get signed.  I have no idea. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  You don't even know if it's 5 

genuine then, if I understand what you're saying. 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Well, I didn't see -- I 7 

don't know who signed it, Mr. Parsons, I was not 8 

present for the signing of this document. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  I think we can move 10 

some things rather quickly.  Under Exhibit #1, 11 

you were aware that Mr. Scahill had been cited 12 

for [2-inaudible 1:36:40]  13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Hold on, Exhibit #1, where's 14 

Exhibit #1? 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I think what you 16 

should do Mr. Parsons to keep the record straight 17 

then  18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think can speed this up. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, no, no, no -- 20 

I'm just saying when you're trying to remember, 21 

Mr. Bianco has the Exhibit #1 and you have the 22 
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Exhibit #1 so you have to identify that what 1 

exhibit -- whose exhibit #1 you're speaking 2 

about, that's all I'm asking. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, I apologize.  At this 4 

time I'm going to move -- I'm going to ask the 5 

court to take judicial notice of Exhibit #1, one 6 

of its own orders related to 237 Second Street.   7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I think that 8 

was already -- If I -- If I know correctly that 9 

probably was in Board Order, our board order, I 10 

think there might have been reference there, but 11 

we'll take notice. ABRA will take notice of one 12 

of its own orders. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Turn to Exhibit #2 14 

please.   15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And again, for the 16 

record, this is -- you need to say whose Exhibit 17 

#2 you're -- 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yeah.  Remember to 20 

keep the record so we'll know what Exhibit -- 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  I -- I -- I apologize.  22 
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Turning to exhi --  1 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Say Parsons. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Turning to Parsons Exhibit 3 

#2, do you recognize Exhibit #2 Ms. Traverso. 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I've seen this 5 

before, yes. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  And in fact it is a 7 

certifica -- the HRH, LLC was created on August 8 

20th of 2012, with its principal place of 9 

business at 708 G. Street Southeast, correct?   10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I see HRH --  11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Second page. 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  You were living 14 

there. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  In August 2012?  Yes. 16 

 MR. PARSONS: Okay, and did you discuss 17 

this at all with Mr. Scahill? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We discussed working on 19 

creating a new restaurant, yes. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes.  In fact, you were 21 

going to call that new restaurant My Place, I 22 
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believe, correct? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, not in 2012. 2 

 MR. PARSONS: But, so in any event the -- 3 

it was -- and HRH stands for Her Royal Highness, 4 

correct? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, the thinking was when 7 

you discussed it with Mr. Scahill at some point 8 

we're going to have a restaurant.  9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  And use HRH, LLC. 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I came up with the name 12 

HRH, yes, correct. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Oh, you did.   14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, Her Royal Highness was 16 

your idea? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm.  18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, then let me 21 

change, ask you to turn to page 18, or tab, my 22 
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Parsons Exhibit #18.  I think you've seen that 1 

before, correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct, Ms. Scahill, 4 

I mean Ms. Traverso, that you, that your father 5 

wired $70,000.00 on July 31, 2013 into the new 6 

bank account HRH LLC doing business as My Place 7 

at TD Bank? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, and throughout the 10 

document there, there's a lot of hand -- there's 11 

handwriting with as an effort to try to determine 12 

where the money was going, correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  That's your handwriting, 15 

isn't it? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  And so this was part of the 18 

plan that you and Mr. Scahill had to have a 19 

restaurant, correct? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO: What was part of the plan? 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  The -- the bank account 22 
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under HRH, LLC was part of your plan for a 1 

restaurant. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Well, there is a climate 3 

for money to build the restaurant, so yes. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so you got your 5 

father to contribute $70,000.00 at that time -- 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- and the restaurant was 8 

to be at 237 Second Street Northwest. Correct? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO: Yes. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you initially started 11 

off, it was going to be called My Place? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That was the first name 13 

that Abraham and Martin Scahill were thinking 14 

about, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  But then who came up 16 

with the idea of The Alibi?   17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think actually it was 18 

Martin Scahill's sister that suggested it and I 19 

really liked it as well, and so I think we both 20 

actually convinced Abraham and Martin to change 21 

it to The Alibi.   22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  In any event, so for 1 

a time it was My Place and then you convinced 2 

Martin and  to change it to The Alibi. 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  All the while, your father 5 

was sending money and you were using money to 6 

renovate 237 Second Street. 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The money was being used 8 

to renovate 237 Second Street yes. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was some of it coming from 10 

your parents? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Some of it coming from my 12 

parents, yes.  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Where was the other coming 14 

from? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It wasn't really any of my 16 

business.  It wasn't my business.  I imagine some 17 

of it came from Abraham, some of it came from 18 

Martin. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was it any of your business 20 

that your parents were paying money toward the 21 

renovation? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, it was part of your 2 

business to know where -- 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I wasn't -- I didn't have 4 

any -- I didn't have any control of the business, 5 

I didn't have any access to bank accounts, I 6 

didn't have any access to -- I couldn't make 7 

decisions officially.  Everything had to go 8 

through Martin and Abraham.   9 

 MR. PARSONS:  How did you take your 10 

parents to keep advancing money towards this -- 11 

this restaurant? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Because Martin Scahill was 13 

my fiancé at the time. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm talking about your 15 

parents.  Did you take Martin as your fiancé to 16 

your parents and say, "look, I need you to 17 

advance $287,000.00 toward the renovation of this 18 

building --" 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, that was never said. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Tell me how you convinced 21 

your parents to induce them to start turning over 22 



132 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

money for this restoration? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This was going to be my 2 

livelihood.  I was going to live off of working 3 

at this restaurant and my fiancé was the owner of 4 

this restaurant and he was going to be part of my 5 

family.  My family was investing in my future. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  And they did. 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  They did, yes. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  $287,000.00 worth. 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  As your accounting, again. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  What's your best 11 

accounting? 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  We've been over 13 

this three or four times at this point, the 14 

question has been answered to the extent the 15 

witness can answer it. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  In any event, do you know 18 

based on the money that's been put into this 19 

restaurant on the basis that your parents were 20 

relying upon Martin Scahill, do you know how much 21 

money was put in? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  I have an estimate, yeah. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  What is your estimate? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  More than $287,000.00. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now then, I want to 4 

show you, ask you to please turn to Parsons 5 

Exhibit #17.  By the way, I'm going to ask you if 6 

your parents put in more than $287,000.00 on this 7 

restaurant based upon your relationship with Mr. 8 

Scahill have you ever had a discussion with your 9 

parents about getting rid of Mr. Scahill from the 10 

operation? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  When did you have that 13 

conversation? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Several times. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  When is the first time? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't remember. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  When was the last time? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Couple of weeks ago. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And, what was the 20 

upshot of the discussion you had with your 21 

parents after they had invested so much money in 22 
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this restaurant based upon your relationship with 1 

Mr. Scahill? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know what you mean 3 

by upshot.   4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Pardon? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know what you mean 6 

by upshot. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  You had a discussion with 8 

your parents and did you tell them that you and 9 

Martin were no longer engaged? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Not when it initially 11 

happened, no. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm talking about -- what's 13 

the -- you said a couple of weeks ago you had a 14 

conversation with your parents about the money 15 

that they had put into the restaurant based upon 16 

your affiliation with Martin Scahill. 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, I said I had a 18 

conversation with my parents about removing 19 

Martin Scahill from the premises.  20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Aha, okay, different.  All 21 

right.  So, tell me what that conversation 22 
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consisted of. 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We decided the best 2 

decision for the business was to make sure that 3 

Martin Scahill couldn't enter the premises. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  That was your idea or 5 

theirs? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was both. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Whose idea was it? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know where it 9 

originated from but that's the decision that was 10 

made. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  When was the last 12 

time that Martin -- I think you testified on June 13 

the 6th -- did this conversation take place after 14 

the January 6th hearing here? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  yes, I had another 16 

conversation with them, yes. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so you testified on 18 

January 6th that Mr. Scahill was still coming to 19 

the restaurant, he was overseeing construction 20 

and he was there four days a week, five hours a 21 

day, correct? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, then after this hearing 2 

on January 6th you and your parents sat down and 3 

talked that over, correct? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  And did you say, "I don’t 6 

think it looks good in trying to say that we're 7 

separate and distinct from Martin Scahill to 8 

concede that he's coming to the restaurant four 9 

days a week five hours a day?  Did that 10 

conversation come up? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  In some respects. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Sure. 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Martin Scahill came up in 14 

conversation, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, did you and your 16 

parents say, "it would make good window dressing 17 

if we get a bar notice after January 6th " -- 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- "so that Martin Scahill" 20 

-- 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained.  You 22 
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need to rephrase.  We sustain the objection.  You 1 

can -- yeah.  You can ask the question another 2 

way but just your characterization that's why -- 3 

that's why I sustained it -- the objection, sir.  4 

So --  5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was the decision to get a 6 

bar notice -- what date was the bar notice? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know, I don’t 8 

recall. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you participate in 10 

getting it? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was there when it was 12 

signed, yes. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Where did you go to get it?   14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I didn't get it, my father 15 

got it. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, I mean but some -- 17 

somebody -- you were there when it was signed? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, who did the signing 20 

for a bar notice?   21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  My father. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Is a bar notice an 1 

application to the police department? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know, Mr. Parsons.  3 

I really didn't want to get too much into the 4 

details of the barring notice.   5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Was the decision to 6 

get a bar notice sometime after January 6th 7 

accompanied by a decision to return the 8 

engagement ring to Mr. Scahill? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  You still have the ring, 11 

don't you? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, I mean you're -- I'm 16 

trying to -- I'm trying to see the steps you took 17 

to sever the connection between Mr. Scahill and 18 

yourself in your role as the running of the 19 

restaurant at 237 Second Street.  Why don't you 20 

just summarize that?  21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I take any step I possibly 22 
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can for the best of my business, always have and 1 

always will.   2 

 MR. PARSONS:  And that means? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  And that means sacrificing 4 

personal relationships sometimes and that's what 5 

I did, Mr. Parsons.  Martin Scahill wasn't 6 

necessary to run my business, I run my business -7 

- I'm not a -- I don't need anyone to tell me how 8 

to run my business.  I run my business -- I don't 9 

need Martin Scahill, so the best thing for my 10 

business is to run it myself. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Let me ask you, if you had 12 

construction work that needed to be done at 237 13 

Second Street would you again turn to Martin 14 

Scahill to over -- to coordinate the contractors? 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance.  16 

Calls for speculation.  Assumes facts not in 17 

evidence.   18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry? 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  The -- when is the last 22 
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time you drew upon Martin Scahill's expertise in 1 

construction at 237 Second Street Northwest? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was probably the tear-3 

down of the patio.   4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Which would have occurred 5 

in December of 2015, correct? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was around then, yeah. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Had you already 8 

finished the upstairs construction by the time 9 

you tore the patio down?   10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  His role in the 11 

construction was finished, yes.  We were done 12 

painting I think by then.  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  When you decided to get a 14 

bar notice to keep him away from the premises, 15 

did you take the action of trying to settle up 16 

with him for all of the hours of work and 17 

construction expertise that he had entered into 18 

with the restaurant? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was there any discussion 21 

about paying him off and just having him out of 22 



141 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

your hair? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think you testified that 3 

if you get your liquor license you're still going 4 

to allow him to work at the restaurant, correct? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That was on January 6th.   6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Something's happened since 7 

then I guess.  Is that what you're saying? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We have a barring notice 9 

now, so he's not allowed to work at the 10 

restaurant.   11 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, did your father tell 12 

you unequivocally "Rachel, I want Martin out of 13 

here."? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was a decision we made 15 

as partners.   16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did anybody else 17 

participate -- where was Martin Scahill when this 18 

decision was made? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Not present.  He's not a 20 

partner, he's not a part of the business.  It's 21 

my father's and my business, it's our decision. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  So, you went and got a bar 1 

notice and, of course -- is the bar notice served 2 

on Mr. Scahill? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  And did you serve the bar 5 

notice on Mr. Scahill before you got him to give 6 

you copies of his driver's license and his wife's 7 

-- this slip from his wife saying the money that 8 

he works there at her hair salon? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think I got -- I think I 10 

got some of the evidence before and that's all of 11 

the evidence when the barring notice was signed. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, which did you get 13 

before the bar notice and which did you get 14 

after? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't remember. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  But, in order to get them 17 

you would have met with Mr. Scahill, correct? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  He handed them over to you. 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I can still see him 21 

outside the restaurant, he's just not permitted 22 
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at the restaurant, yes. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  How often do you see him 2 

outside the restaurant? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Since the barring notice 4 

I've seen him maybe twice. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  But -- so -- when -- 6 

how -- did he acknowledge receipt of this bar 7 

notice? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  To you? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  To my father. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  But, I mean you saw him and 12 

got the materials from his -- either his driver's 13 

license copy or the statement from this financial 14 

statement from his wife.  One before and one 15 

after, correct? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Something like that, yeah. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, if you saw one after 18 

the bar notice presumably you had a conversation 19 

with him about the bar notice did you not? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I understand your 22 
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testimony, Mr. Scahill has put in many, many 1 

hours over the years at 237 Second Street.  2 

You've now barred him and you had no conversation 3 

about the existing indebtedness or obligation you 4 

had for his work? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Nope. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  How long was the 7 

conversation? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  What conversation?  There 9 

was no conversation. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  The conversation  you had 11 

after he had the barring notice and he was going 12 

to provide you with some of these exhibits that 13 

you needed for today's proceeding, how long was 14 

that meeting in which you got the -- you got the 15 

statement from him? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think I went to go see 17 

him at his house in Sterling and I think I stayed 18 

there maybe an hour.   19 

 MR. PARSONS:  And during that time you 20 

talked about the bar notice, correct? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Well, the two occasions you 1 

say you've spoken to him outside of the 2 

restaurant, did those occur after you had been 3 

out to Sterling and gotten the forms you needed 4 

for this proceeding? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  One of the occasions was 6 

when I went to Sterling.  I really don’t 7 

understand your question.   8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, let me see if I can 9 

clarify for you.  I'm sorry.  You got one or the 10 

other of the documents, either Exhibit #13 or #14 11 

before Mr. Scahill was served with the barring 12 

notice, correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think so, yes. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yep.  So, then you would 15 

have gotten the other one from Mr. Scahill after 16 

he was served the barring notice, correct? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  From my recollection of 18 

the timeline, yes. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:   Okay.  And so the second 20 

occasion when you got it after the barring notice 21 

you had traveled to Sterling, Virginia to meet 22 
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with him, correct? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  And that's when you said "I 3 

need this other form for this proceeding today" 4 

correct? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I requested that he 6 

provide evidence for this proceeding, yes. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  So, so you went out 8 

and got it from him. 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct.  10 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you spent an hour with 11 

him. 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct.  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  And this was after the 14 

barring notice. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct.  16 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, what did you talk 17 

about?   18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  How he was doing, his 19 

sister is over there, some dogs, how are the 20 

dogs, his ex-wife has two kids, how are the two 21 

kids?  Had dinner. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Did you tell him, "you 1 

know, don't ever come back to the restaurant 2 

again"? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, he's not coming back 4 

to the restaurant.  There's a barring notice. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  But I mean, when I say 6 

coming back, he's obviously been back, he just 7 

hasn't gone in the restaurant, correct?  You said 8 

two occasions he came back after the barring 9 

notice. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.   11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, I didn't say that. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  What did you say? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There was an objection. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I know you're  -- 15 

the witness. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  My objection is the 17 

characterization Mr. Parsons is making up 18 

testimony, telling her that she said it and 19 

asking her to comment on it.  It's not 20 

appropriate. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And you need to 22 
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tell your witness that if there's an objection 1 

she should not say anything, because by the time 2 

I'm supposed to say something the answer came 3 

out, so -- so I -- I'll just let the witness 4 

know, if there's an objection, let the lawyers 5 

fight it out and then I will let you continue to 6 

answer the question, so - All right. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  When you were at Mr. 8 

Scahill's home after the barring notice did any 9 

discussion come up about Mr. Scahill being still 10 

on the hook for the lease? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Nope. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that January 13 

6th when the question came up about why he was 14 

there, you said, "he still was on the lease."  15 

That was at page 194 of the transcript.  You said 16 

that didn't you?   17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't recall saying that 18 

but yes, he's still on the lease 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, when you're -- you've 20 

got him barred from a property in which he still 21 

holds a lease, correct? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 1 

 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did that come up in your 3 

conversations? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did he try to assert his 6 

right to come to the premises and be there? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- based on the fact that 9 

he's still on the lease. 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Nope. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you recall testifying on 12 

January 6th, you were asked a question "why does 13 

Martin keep coming to the restaurant?" and you 14 

said, "because there's a whole lot of history 15 

there."  Do you remember that testimony? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  What do you mean by a whole 18 

lot of history of him being at the restaurant?   19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's been a long time and 20 

his vision was very similar to my vision, to turn 21 

this college dive bar into an outstanding 22 
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restaurant that was going to benefit the 1 

community, and that's a lot of sweat and a lot of 2 

time and a lot of sweat and a lot of tears and a 3 

lot of things sacrificed in order to get it where 4 

it is today. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  And did that come up in 6 

your conversation? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No.   8 

 MR. PARSONS:  I want to ask you to please 9 

turn to page -- Parsons Exhibit #13.  Do you 10 

recognize -- 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  There's no Parsons 12 

Exhibit #13 in my documents, so does everyone 13 

have that? 14 

 MS. MILLER:  A photo? 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yep. 16 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Yep. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  You don't have it? 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's not in mine 19 

but everyone else has theirs so go ahead. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  I don't have #13 either. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You -- hold on Mr. 22 
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-- 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry.  It was a black 2 

and white originally, correct, and it was outside 3 

the packet.   4 

 MR. BIANCO:  Correct. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  What we tried to do, you 6 

don't have it? 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I said everyone 8 

else did, I don't have it in my package.  In my 9 

package there's nothing in #13 but we now have it 10 

so go ahead. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you have it, Ms. 12 

Traverso? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you recognize who's 15 

depicted in Exhibit #13? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Is that you and Mr. 18 

Scahill? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that that was 21 

a picture that was taken on August 27th, 2015? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that that was 2 

a picture that was taken when you and he appeared 3 

at the hearing before the Public Service, before 4 

the DDOT Public Space Committee? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We were at the DDOT 6 

hearing, yes. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And he appeared and 8 

gave testimony on your behalf at the hearing, 9 

didn't he?   10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was there to help out, 11 

it was technical questions I couldn't answer in 12 

terms of structural construction.   13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And, did you pay him 14 

for being there to help out? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Nope. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, if I could ask 17 

you to please turn to tab #14, the transcript of 18 

the proceedings that took place at the Public 19 

Space Committee.  You gave testimony at the 20 

Public Space Committee didn't you? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  And Mr. Scahill gave 1 

testimony there, correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was there, yep. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  And gave testimony. 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, I ask you to 6 

please turn to page 84.  Mr. Marcou was the 7 

chairman of the committee wasn't he? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  And this had to do with the 10 

discussion about the enclosed sidewalk café, 11 

correct? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct.  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  And Mr. Marcou was 14 

considering a motion and then looking at page, 15 

line 17 on page 84, Mr. Scahill pointed out that 16 

he was paying for the extension, correct? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  MHG had paid the rent for 18 

the previous year and to D.C. so, yes he had paid 19 

for it previously, the new tax rent wasn't due 20 

yet. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  The new tax rent? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  There is a tax, there is a 1 

rent you pay the government for public space, 2 

it's over $1000, you pay it once a year and so 3 

the last person to pay that had been MHG, it 4 

hadn't come around yet to be due for HRH Services 5 

to pay. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  When is it due? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think it's due sometime 8 

in, sometime in April, I believe. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, if it's due in April, 10 

now this is August 27th of 2015.  You had already 11 

created HRH Services in December of 2014.  You 12 

were continuing to -- you got -- you opened up 13 

your restaurant in March of 2015, correct? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct.  15 

 MR. PARSONS:  So when Mr. Martin says -- 16 

Mr. Scahill says he's paying for this extension, 17 

it's after April and he says, he's telling them 18 

that "I'm paying for it" meaning that he's still 19 

part of HRH Services. 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Speculation.  22 
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She doesn't know what Mr. Martin Scahill meant by 1 

something that he said.  She can't possibly 2 

testify to that. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you, in fact, madam, 4 

correct Mr. Marcou or Mr. Scahill and say "You 5 

don't have anything to do"  -- 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons, an 7 

objection so you need to say why -- why the 8 

objection should -- so have you withdrawn your 9 

question or rephrased? 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  No.  Let me argue it.  11 

We've got a restaurant that opens up in March of 12 

2015.  We've got a bill she says is due in April 13 

of 2015.  You've got a man appearing and 14 

testifying before the Public Space Committee in 15 

August of 2015 and on the issue of this enclosed 16 

sidewalk café he said "I'm paying for it."  I -- 17 

I -- I submit that is consistent with the -- 18 

there's no distinction between Scahill and HRH 19 

Services. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, I'm gonna 21 

overrule the objection, but on that, the 22 
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characterization, I'm not -- 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  To whatever extent this 2 

evidence is persuasive, it's -- 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  The witness should 4 

answer the question. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that as of 6 

August 27th, Mr. Scahill did testify that he was 7 

paying for that extension. 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I believe he was mistaken 9 

because I paid for that.  Mr. Scahill never paid 10 

any money for HRH Services on behalf of HRH 11 

Services. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you attempt to correct 13 

him when he made that statement? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It wasn't important in the 15 

course of that proceeding, it was an off 16 

statement that he made, it wasn't important to 17 

correct him, there was no reason to, there had 18 

been two previous DDOT hearings I had been to 19 

before then just myself because I was on the 20 

application, it was my application, it was my 21 

business, there was no reason to correct him. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  So you didn't correct him. 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There was no reason to, 2 

no. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now then, turning to page 4 

88 -- 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Which page? 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- page 88, Parsons Exhibit 7 

#14.  There came a point when it was apparent 8 

that you were not going to be able to keep your 9 

enclosed sidewalk café, correct? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so when that came out 12 

you said, looking before, on page 87, "all right, 13 

I'm going to have to sell the business."  That 14 

was your testimony, correct? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, it was very 16 

emotional, I was very ticked off with your lie to 17 

the DDOT, yes, yeah. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  But what you're saying is, 19 

what's recorded there is correctly transcribed, 20 

correct? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I probably said something 22 
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like that, yes. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And Mr. Scahill 2 

said, "sell it, sell it, thank you," I'll let 3 

both employees make another payroll, then I'll 4 

give them seven days then I'll see if they can 5 

get done.  Thank you very much have a good day."  6 

So, he is stating to Mr. Marcou, is he not, that 7 

he's controlling the employees? 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object again.  9 

The transcript speaks for itself.  Ms. Traverso 10 

can't comment on what was in Mr. Scahill's mind 11 

in the time that he made statements or what he 12 

intended by those statements.  Mr. Scahill is not 13 

here to testify about what he meant. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you ask Mr. Scahill to 15 

-- 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Wait.  17 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- come to testify? 18 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: I'm going to ask you to 19 

rule on his objection.  Sustain his objection. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, it's all 21 

right.  Go ahead, Mr. Parsons.  There's an 22 
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objection.  Mr. Bianco made the objection.  Am I 1 

to assume that because you have moved on, since 2 

you have not responded to the objection and you 3 

have asked another question that you're 4 

withdrawing your question and going to ask 5 

another question, because since there was no 6 

response, you moved on, so there really wasn't an 7 

opportunity for me to say anything, because I'm 8 

not sure if you have decided that you're going to 9 

withdraw your question and rephrase it to ask 10 

another one. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  No, please don't make -- 12 

I'm moving on and I'm withdrawing it.  Here's 13 

what's going on -- 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well if you  15 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm going to tell you 16 

honestly. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, but -- but -- 18 

but the document speaks for itself so I'm going 19 

to sustain the objection and the reason why, I 20 

mean, we can't speculate what was meant.  This -- 21 

this -- we have a transcript, we have a statement 22 
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that speaks for itself and I think that -- so 1 

I'll sustain the objection. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  You were present when Mr. 3 

Scahill made that comment at lines 3 to 8 on page 4 

88 of Parsons Exhibit #14, correct? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, it was my hearing. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Your hearing.  And did you 7 

have an understanding of what he was saying? 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  He's asking the 9 

same question, he's asking what Mr. Scahill 10 

meant, he's just asking it in a different way.   11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It -- it's the 12 

same question, I mean you're asking -- I think  13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  She said no. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No but, I think 15 

the issue that you're asking what he meant, what 16 

was in his mind and I don't think that she's in a 17 

position to state what's in his mind and so I'm 18 

going to sustain the objection. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Line 10, Mr. 20 

Scahill said "come on, Rachel, we've got some 21 

fuckin' people to fire, come on."  Do you know 22 
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what he meant by that? 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.   2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's the same. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Why are you doing the same 4 

thing over and over again? 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons, I 6 

mean I said the issue is I -- you can't ask 7 

another witness what someone has meant by a 8 

statement.  So, I'm going to sustain, because 9 

she's -- she's not in his mind, she doesn't know, 10 

so if you want to ask the question, maybe there's 11 

a different way to ask it, but you can't ask her 12 

if she knew what he meant.  So, I'll just leave 13 

it at that. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir.  Okay --  15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And I think for 16 

your purpose whatever point you're trying to 17 

make, the board is now familiar with the 18 

statement and whatever it hears, the board is 19 

going to make its decision about what it is that 20 

they might think or might not think, so you don’t 21 

necessarily have to divulge there, because I 22 
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probably was not going to read the transcript 1 

before but now you've brought it to -- and I 2 

think all the board members have now seen it and 3 

so this will go in our decision about what it is 4 

-- and we'll take it for what it -- for what it's 5 

worth. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you, sir.  Can I ask 7 

you to please turn to Parsons Exhibit #17.  Do 8 

you recognize Exhibit #17?   9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  It's a joint account that 11 

you and Mr. Scahill had at TD Bank, correct? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  And that bank account went 14 

from -- by the way, is that bank account still 15 

open?   16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Nope. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  When did you close it? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I didn't close it, it was 19 

-- I haven’t had access to the account -- I can't 20 

remember the last time I had access but it was -- 21 

it was closed by Martin Scahill. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Let me ask you this.  You 1 

had signatory authority on that, correct? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  And throughout the document 4 

I see your handwriting, is that your handwriting? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you were making efforts 7 

to try to ascertain how much of the monies spent 8 

was on work done at the restaurant, correct? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was auditing bank 10 

statements to correspond with receipts. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  For work at 240 -- for 237 12 

Second Street? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The receipts were for 237 14 

Second Street, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  I'm not going 16 

to revisit altogether areas that we have already 17 

covered because I don't need to redevelop a 18 

record that, that -- does what took place on the 19 

6th, does that subsume into this hearing?  20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That's a part of 21 

our record.  I did make the notice that ABRA will 22 
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take administrative record of that we had a 1 

hearing and certain testimony that was presented. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That was a part of 4 

my opening of this case. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  You were shown a number of 6 

photographs of Mr. Scahill working at 237 Second 7 

Street, for example, can I ask you to turn to 8 

Parsons Exhibit #23.  I think you recognize 9 

what's depicted in #23 correct? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It looks to be the 11 

enclosed patio. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  And that's Mr. Scahill with 13 

is back to you? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think you don't know what 16 

date it was but if I represented that was in 17 

October of 2015, would you agree that he was 18 

working there at that time? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was coming there at 20 

that time, yes. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  And not working, serving 22 
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people? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, he wasn't serving. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  What was he doing in there? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was at the front door 4 

helping to seat people.  He was, I don't remember 5 

exactly in October, but he was dropping off, I 6 

would tell him to go get some food and he would 7 

pick up food from the market, so yeah, he was 8 

present. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Let me ask you this.  10 

Have you made any effort at all to have Mr. 11 

Scahill appear for this protest hearing? 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'll overrule the 14 

objection.  The witness can answer. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I have thought about 16 

asking him to come here but I have not requested 17 

he come here. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Have you discussed with 19 

your father about Mr. Scahill coming here? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We discuss Martin Scahill 21 

a lot, yes. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Would you agree with me 1 

that you, of course, take the position that he 2 

has nothing to do with this building, but we know 3 

that he comes there all the time.  Would it have 4 

been a good thing to have Mr. Scahill come here 5 

and explain how he has no longer any relationship 6 

with 237 Second Street? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't know. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  No further questions. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You have no more 10 

questions?  We're going to take like a five 11 

minute recess.  I know that you're still under 12 

oath and you're still -- what's going to happen 13 

is that, and that's being going on for over an 14 

hour, the cross.  We are going to take lunch but 15 

I'm going to allow, before we take lunch, I'm 16 

going to be finished with this witness before, so 17 

we'll just take a five minute break since this 18 

has been going on for over an hour and I think 19 

some of us need to -- Ms. Traverso you're still 20 

under oath, so please do not have conversations 21 

with your attorney or your dad regarding your 22 
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testimony.  You can talk about other things but 1 

not regarding the testimony, okay?  All right.  2 

[On the record 1:21:38 p.m.]  3 

Okay we're back on the record and we -- we have a 4 

quorum.  What my goal is that is once this 5 

witness is done.  So we're gonna have the board 6 

members will ask some questions and then we'll 7 

take a lunch break, because I think it's been 8 

going on -- I had stated before we might leave in 9 

time for dinner but maybe I spoke too soon.  But 10 

-- but -- but yeah, all right.  Do we have any 11 

board members?  I think we have board members 12 

that want to ask questions.  Yes, Mr. Short. 13 

 MR. SHORT:  I have one.  Ms. Traverso, 14 

how are you doing this afternoon ma'am? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Okay. 16 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay. You've been in the bar 17 

business how many years?  18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  About nine, I think. 19 

 MR. SHORT:  Nine years, okay.  And in 20 

that nine-year period have you, this is to your 21 

knowledge, have you or anyone who's ever worked 22 
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with you, to your knowledge, any employee that's 1 

worked with you or any boss that you worked for, 2 

served underage or permitted underage sales or 3 

service to minors?  In all your nine years have 4 

you ever witnessed it or have you ever -- and I'm 5 

thinking about some of the testimony you gave on 6 

January 6th.  I just want on the record for this 7 

particular set, have you ever to you knowledge 8 

known of anyone who's served underage people?  9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I've -- I was present for 10 

a sting that another employee failed and I was -- 11 

 MR. SHORT:  What was that again?  I --  12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I was present for a sting 13 

that another employee failed.  It wasn't a sting 14 

on me.  Actually I've had a sting during those 15 

nine years and passed that sting. 16 

 MR. SHORT:  What were those 17 

establishments?  Which were the names? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was My Brother's Place 19 

both times. 20 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay. 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  And there was several 22 
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violations for underage drinking at  My Brother's 1 

Place that employees that I worked with on other 2 

dates, not those dates, had served to minors, so 3 

yeah. 4 

 MR. SHORT:   Okay.  That's all I have, 5 

Mr. Chair, thank you. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. 7 

Alberti, do you have any questions? 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Several.  Okay.  So, Ms. 9 

Traverso, well I'm just going to continue on -- 10 

since Mr. board member Short opened the can of 11 

worms on this issue of sale to minors I'm just 12 

going to step right down that path.  So, are you 13 

-- were you, or have you ever been aware that Mr. 14 

Scahill was involved in an incident at My 15 

Brother's Place where he was accused of being 16 

knowledgeable that sales to minors was occurring? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I'm aware of that 18 

allegation, yep. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, and when did you 20 

become aware of that? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I became aware that he was 22 
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being accused of it I think it was 2014. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  2014?  2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Were you aware that My 4 

Brother's Place had been  cited for sale to 5 

minors? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And when did you become 8 

aware of that? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think, I think 2012 10 

there was an incident that happened.  I think 11 

both Martin and I were away on vacation in Denver 12 

and I think that was a big incident involving 13 

underage drinking. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Do you remember one 15 

in 2014 that you became aware that -- that Mr. 16 

Scahill was alleged to have knowledge -- 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  2014?  That was I think 18 

when the -- I think it was the middle of 2014, I 19 

think it was several months after the fact 20 

finding hearing for MHG. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, thank you.  You 22 
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currently live at 708 G Street? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  A point of 3 

reference, all right?  How long have you lived 4 

there, since when? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think I moved in -- it's 6 

been  a long time but I think --  7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Approximately. 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  2009 I would say. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, 2009.  Is Mr. -- I 10 

think you testified that Mr. Scahill lived there 11 

for a while. Is that correct? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Do you remember when he 14 

began to live there? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We moved in together. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  About 2009? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  And approximately 19 

when was the -- when was the -- the subject of 20 

him possibly moving out, because you said that 21 

was a long --  22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  -- breakup, you, you know, 2 

so when did that happen? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There were discussions 4 

probably the end of 2014, some stuff was moved I 5 

think end of 2014, a lot was moved beginning of 6 

2015, and by the middle of 2015 he was pretty 7 

much moved out. 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, great.  So, you were 9 

living together when you -- when did you create 10 

HRH?   11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  HRH was created by Martin 12 

in 2012. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It was created by Martin. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  HRH.  There's HRH and HRH 15 

Services.  HRH was created first in 2012, it was 16 

to do a restaurant that had nothing to do with My 17 

Brother's Place, it was supposed to be a 18 

different location.  19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, you're HRH Services? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I'm HRH Services, correct. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And when was that created?  22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  That was created the end 1 

of 2014. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Which one was 2014? 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  HRH Services. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Do you have a more accurate 5 

date on the HRH Services?   6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I think she said. 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  December.  I think it was 8 

the middle of December 2014. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  If you -- not to interrupt 10 

-- but if you look at Parsons exhibits 2 and 3 11 

the dates are there. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, there's 13 

direct testimony. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  In December?  All right. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  December, yeah. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  December 2014, all right.  17 

And when did you open bank account for HRH 18 

Services? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was around the same 20 

time I think.  Maybe a couple of weeks after I 21 

got all the paperwork sorted out it was 22 
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officially LLC. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think I had to wait for 3 

the federal tax ID before I opened up the bank 4 

account. 5 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I'm going to sort of switch 6 

subjects here.  When I go to tab 6 of -- which is 7 

your schedule of employees would have worked, all 8 

right tab 6 is the schedule of employees, is that 9 

correct? 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, Mm hmm.    11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And does this give the 12 

names of the employees that are scheduled?  It 13 

does, doesn't it? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah it's the next several 15 

pages, yeah. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, are you on the 17 

schedule? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, actually it's hard to 19 

see with this copy.  It has the managers are 20 

highlighted in a different color.  So, if you 21 

look underneath, like the last -- the Monday for 22 
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example you have Brian, then Selena, Mayra and 1 

Joseu, if you look a couple of rows down, you 2 

have two shaded things I'm listed under manager, 3 

front of house. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Very good.  So, I'll 5 

get back to that.  Well, I -- since you mentioned 6 

HRH, it looks like some of these bank statements 7 

that we have in -- that you showed us in -- okay, 8 

with these bank statements that you showed us 9 

from 2015 in tab 9, who are -- what is that -- 10 

what is that bank account all about? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Tab 9, that's a personal -12 

- 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Who does that belong to, 14 

what business?  Does that belong to a business? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, that's personal, 16 

that's a personal bank account. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That's personal for you and 18 

Martin. 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, Mm hmm. 20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, so you had a joint 21 

account all the way through July of last year, is 22 
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that correct? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Actually it was -- this 2 

one was closed in December but it had a negative 3 

-- I wasn't -- it was changed to his address in 4 

July, I didn't use it and it didn’t have any 5 

substantial money in it.  It had a negative 6 

balance. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When was it changed to his 8 

address? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It would have -- I think 10 

it was probably around May or April 2015. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And what was the address 12 

before that? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  708. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Did you -- were you -- what 15 

was your involvement in HRH? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was my fiancé’s 17 

business legally, I mean I was, I was not an 18 

owner. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You were not a co -- you 20 

were not listed as corporate officer -- 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  -- or a member? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.  Were you a 3 

signature to any of the bank accounts for that? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 5 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.  I'm a little 6 

curious because you say -- I'm sorry -- you said 7 

under questioning from Mr. Parson, you said -- 8 

and you were talking about when you formed HRH 9 

Services in December of 2014, and you were 10 

talking about -- I guess the reason why -- you 11 

said something to the effect that 'well, I did 12 

this because my family had donated a lot of money 13 

into that business and I didn't want to see it 14 

fail.'  So, what business were you referring to?  15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  A business that I believed 16 

was MHG -- it was --  17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So --  18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  The rest -- I meant  19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  -- your parents had MHG.  20 

So your parents had donated money to MHG. 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Not directly.  It was more 22 
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-- it was money to -- by business I meant the 1 

restaurant, to get the restaurant open.  Because 2 

there was never any loan agreement, there was 3 

never any "here's money and I get this amount of 4 

shares" -- I mean I get --there was never any. 5 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But they -- but they put 6 

money in the account to capitalize -- 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  -- the MHG, all right? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  To capitalize, yeah, the 10 

restaurant. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And this was Martin 12 

Scahill's 49% of that business -- 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Is that correct? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, you had a vested 17 

interest in that business, right? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I had a vested interest, 19 

yeah that was going to be my future livelihood, 20 

yeah.   21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.  And so again 22 
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your motive for starting HRH was what? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  HRH Services.  MHG was 2 

constantly in need of money, couldn't continue to 3 

contribute money with no control over the 4 

business, no say in the business, so money 5 

stopped and then they couldn't afford to pay 6 

their rent and the landlords were prepared to 7 

evict.  They were willing to negate the eviction 8 

which would have caused not only losing the 9 

business but I think it was like $900,000.00 in 10 

rent due because they canceled the lease.  So, 11 

they were open to that idea.  MHG still had the 12 

opportunity to find money elsewhere, investments, 13 

so they went about doing that, but as a failsafe 14 

option, if that came about that they were going 15 

to sign the lease I needed a company in order to 16 

-- you know, personally you can't take on a 17 

commercial lease, so there had to be a company.  18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, why were you so 19 

concerned about MG - MHG? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  MHG? 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Was that the company.  22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah that was the -- 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Why were you so concerned 2 

about the money that they were losing and 3 

continuing that business?  Why were you so 4 

concerned? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Concerned that they were 6 

going to lose their lease?  Because then it could 7 

have been given to somebody else that -- and they 8 

might not have hired me -- you know -- it wasn't 9 

-- it could have gone to anybody and then all the 10 

work -- 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But why was that of 12 

interest to you? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Because my family put all 14 

this money in to help get the restaurant -- the 15 

restaurant had a lot of work done to it, a lot of 16 

renovations and this was my career path, so my 17 

career path would have been over, my investment, 18 

my family's investment would have been gone. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Do you know how much money 20 

they invested?   21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  About, yeah --  22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  How much? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's upwards of 2 

$600,000.00 after everything's said and done. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Wow.  And what was your 4 

arrangement?  So your families invested 5 

$600,000.00.  What was your sort of legal 6 

arrangement with -- with -- with MHG.   7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It wasn't $600,000.00 at 8 

that point, but there was a lot more money put 9 

into it since HRH Services took over. 10 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I asked you how much money 11 

they put into MGH? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Okay, MHG -- 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  MHG rather. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  -- I think it was about -- 15 

it's a little -- probably $300,000.00 at that 16 

point. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  And what the legal 18 

arrangement?  What was the legal understanding?  19 

What was -- what was -- was there a legal 20 

understa -- arrangement? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No.  22 



182 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Was there sort of an 1 

understanding at all? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  There was an understanding 3 

that when the money could be paid back, it would 4 

be paid back, but there was nothing in writing.  5 

It was not supposed to be based on profit. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, why did you trust them 7 

to pay it back? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Why did I what? 9 

  MR. ALBERTI:  Why were you -- why were 10 

you so trusting of them to pay it back? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Because my fiancé was a 12 

49% owner, so. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And he, Mr. Scahill was 14 

still your fiancé when you formed HRH, right? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  HRH Services?   16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  HRH Services. 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I wasn't wearing the ring 18 

at that point, I know that.  We were -- we had 19 

kind of broken up and gotten back together a 20 

little bit and it was very fuzzy around that time 21 

but we were pretty much done by the beginning of 22 
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2015. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So when -- so when Mr. 2 

Scahill assigned the lease over to you --  3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  If I remember correctly, if 5 

I still have it.  I've got so many pieces of 6 

paper here, I just wanna.  So according from our 7 

orders so I'm pretty sure this is correct.   8 

 MR. SHORT:  Which order, Mr. Alberti?   9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  This is the lease that 10 

Martin Scahill assigned over to HRH Services. 11 

 MR. SHORT:  Which one?  Which board 12 

order? 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  This is a board order from 14 

2015, order on granting a motion for 15 

reconsideration and stay of consideration of all 16 

the applicants at 237 Second Street.  So, it says 17 

in here that the lease -- in the lease it says 18 

all trade fixtures and restaurant equipment 19 

existing in the lease premises were assigned to 20 

you, to HRH Services. 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't remember the 22 
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details, but yeah. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, it wasn't just the 2 

lease.  You were getting -- you were getting 3 

everything in the restaurant, all the 4 

furnishings, is that correct? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And what were you giving 7 

Mr. Scahill, or sorry -- what were you giving MHG 8 

in return? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  At that time it was to not 10 

be sued and have to pay $900,000.00. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Not being sued for what? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Not being evicted by the 13 

landlord. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But you weren't being 15 

evicted. 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  MHG.  So, MHG was going to 17 

be evicted the very next day, and on top of that 18 

the landlord wanted to collect $900,000.00 19 

because of the way the lease is structured, if 20 

you fail to pay the rent they are allowed to 21 

collect up to $900,000.00 based on the, kind of 22 
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like when you, I forget what the name of it is, 1 

but -- 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, did you discuss this 3 

with the other two partners in MHG besides Mr. 4 

Scahill?   5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I hadn't seen the other 6 

two partners for about a year at that point. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You hadn't seen them for 8 

about a year? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 10 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And during that year you 11 

were investing money -- 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  -- in the business?  14 

Through your parents.  So, really, I'm getting -- 15 

can I conclude that your interest here was in 16 

some ways to preserve Mr. Scahill's interests in 17 

this establishment? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was mostly my family's 19 

interests, my family put probably about 90% of 20 

the money into that renovation. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I'm a little confused on 22 
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one of the documents that was presented.  Let's 1 

see which one it is.  Tab #11 is a document that 2 

says new account.  What's the significance of 3 

that?  I missed the significance of that when you 4 

testified. 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This is because Mr. 6 

Parsons presented accounts for HRH, which is 7 

Martin Scahill's business, and it just shows that 8 

the account's closed, there's no money in the 9 

account and that Martin Scahill is the only 10 

signature on that business. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Oh, okay, okay, I gotcha.  12 

Now I understand. Just out of curiosity, why did 13 

you continue with such a similar name? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I came up with the name 15 

because it was supposed to be British-American 16 

pub and people don't really know what HRH meant -17 

- I didn't want something that said, oh food, 18 

hospitality, I wanted something a little clever, 19 

so -- and it fit because it.  20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, you're claiming -- 21 

you're claiming the origin -- you're claiming 22 



187 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

that you were the impetus behind the name for 1 

HRH. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:   Yeah, I mean he was my 3 

fiancé, I came up with -- yeah -- 'what do you 4 

want to name your company?' There's a couple of 5 

names that were thrown out -- 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  So. 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.   9 

 10 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When's the last time you -- 11 

hang on -- skip that.  So, we have a -- we have a 12 

check here in exhibit 14 made out to Martin 13 

Scahill. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  yes. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When did you acquire that 16 

check?  A copy of that check? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  This was I think earlier 18 

this week - yeah I think it was earlier this 19 

week. 20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When would that have been? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Actually I think it was 22 
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over the weekend, yeah it was over the weekend, I 1 

think it was Sunday. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Sunday, okay.  So that's 3 

did you acquire this from Martin directly?  Mr. 4 

Scahill directly? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was there, I went down 6 

to see him at home in Sterling.   7 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Excuse me? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was present -- I went 9 

down to see him at his home in Sterling and I 10 

guess I got it from both him and his ex-wife. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And when did you get the 12 

copy of his driver's license?  Do you remember?  13 

I know you testified earlier but I was just 14 

curious. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think that was before, I 16 

think that was maybe two weeks ago. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, when did you open the 18 

bank accounts for HRH Services? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think it was January 20 

2015. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  January 2015.  So, I'm just 22 
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-- you know -- we've been over this ground but I 1 

just -- I have to ask, I'm just curious.  You 2 

know -- you're breaking up with Mr. Scahill in 3 

December of 2014 and you're starting a new 4 

business and all through 2015 you testify that 5 

he's been showing up pretty regularly, so -- I 6 

mean I get the impression that your relationship 7 

with him hasn't, hasn't ended, that you're pretty 8 

-- you're still -- that you're very close friends 9 

at the very least. 10 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I would say the same 11 

-- it's a very close relationship and it's been 12 

very hard to separate and it's been a slow 13 

process. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Other than personal 15 

reasons, is there some reason why it's so hard to 16 

separate? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No, okay.  You said you 19 

were there for the barring, when the barring 20 

notice was obtained? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm.  No, when -- I 22 
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think when it was signed, yeah. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When it was signed. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  By my father, yeah. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When it was signed by your 4 

father.   5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Were you there when 7 

Martin. Scahill signed it? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.  Was your father 10 

present when Martin Scahill signed it? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, he brought it to 12 

Martin, yes. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, so you went together. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And when was that, that it 16 

was signed? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I honestly don’t remember.  18 

A couple of days ago. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  A couple of days ago. 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, Mm hmm. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.  What was the 22 
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impetus of getting the barring notice? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was a tough decision 2 

but basically it's more important to run my 3 

restaurant than to have Martin there and martin 4 

doesn't -- I don't need martin there, so, no 5 

reason for him to be there.   6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Would he not have agreed to 7 

not come by if you had just asked him? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Maybe, I don't know. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But you wanted to 10 

guaranteed that --  11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah -- 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That Martin wouldn't refuse 13 

not to come by.  What's your understanding of the 14 

bar notice?  How it gets used? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That if he shows up, the 16 

police get called. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, if Mr. Parsons sees him 18 

there, he can call the police? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't believe that's -- 20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Is that your -- is that 21 

your impression of  how it can be used? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't believe so.  I 1 

think it has to be someone from the business has 2 

to call. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, so this board would 4 

have to rely on you to make sure that Mr. Scahill 5 

isn't there.  Even with this barring notice it 6 

gives you the ability, the authority to tell him, 7 

"oh get lost, you can't be here" but, you know I 8 

get the impression that you're trying to assure 9 

the board that he's not going to be there, and I 10 

get that, but we still have to rely on you to 11 

say, "Martin stay away" because if he comes in 12 

and you don't call the police, nothing happens, 13 

that's what you're telling us. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I guess it’s the same way 15 

you have to rely on my not to serve underage.  16 

Why would any applicant? 17 

 MR. SHORT:  What was that answer? 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No, no, no, no, it's not 19 

the same way because we have -- we have other 20 

tools -- 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  -- to make sure that you 1 

don’t serve underage.  I have no further 2 

questions right now. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Any other board 4 

members? 5 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Oh, actually I do.  Okay.  6 

So, we have this transcript from DDOT where Mr. 7 

Scahill appears to be speaking on your behalf. 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He was there because first 9 

of all, my hearing was supposed to be scheduled a 10 

month later and two days before I find out it's 11 

scheduled then, I couldn't get the architect 12 

there, the last time I had been railro-- I'd been 13 

there twice by myself -- I'd been railroaded with 14 

questions I couldn't answer because I don’t know 15 

about grade and weight and structure, I couldn't 16 

get anyone else there.  He had been through the 17 

previous applications for MHG.  I asked him to be 18 

there to help explain what the structure was.  He 19 

knew.  He had been working on a similar 20 

structure, I asked him to be there and it got 21 

very emotional and -- because I was trying to -- 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  I mean, yeah, you have to 1 

agree that that's the impression that Martin -- 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes, it comes off that 3 

way, yes. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Speaking on behalf of the 5 

business as if he has some control. 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He did get up at the end 7 

of the hearing and left when the decision was 8 

made, though. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That's -- that's fine -- 10 

that's not really what I'm asking, but it does 11 

appear as if he's -- right, right. 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It does appear that way, 13 

yes. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And did you -- did you 15 

interject at any point during those -- 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  At that point it wasn't 17 

important who all -- who was doing what.  It 18 

wasn't important for -- it wasn't the most 19 

important thing.  The most important thing was 20 

trying to get my application approved, so that 21 

was not my utmost concern in speaking to DDOT at 22 
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the time, no. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But you were concerned 2 

about DDOT's decision. 3 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  and did you -- did you 5 

recognize that Mr. Scahill's comments were not 6 

going to win you favors with the DDOT officials 7 

at that point? 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  We had  been before -- I 9 

had been before DDOT four times, he had been 10 

before DDOT five times.  It was -- I was trying 11 

everything possible. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  He had been there with you 13 

four or five times? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He had been there 15 

previously for MHG.  There had been at least 16 

three applications.  I had been there with HRH 17 

Services I believe with another three 18 

applications, so, he had tried every avenue to 19 

work with them on getting a compromise in terms 20 

of adjusting the billing to come into compliance.  21 

I did the same thing and that was the final 22 
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decision to have it taken down.  It's hurt my 1 

business but we've gotten through it, so, it was 2 

-- that was the main concern was to try to 3 

benefit the business as much as possible by not 4 

having this structure taken down. 5 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, am I correct -- and I'm 6 

just a little confused by this -- so your lease 7 

with the property owner for 237 Second Street.  8 

Is Mr. Scahill still on that lease?   9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He's a guarantor on the 10 

lease.  They didn't release him as a guarantor. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Based on an interest in 12 

seeing this business succeed, correct? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  If the business goes 14 

under, we don’t pay the lease, yes he would be 15 

held liable as a guarantor, yes. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Have you attempted to 17 

renegotiate with the landlord to get him off the 18 

lease? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes and they do not want 20 

to remove any guarantors from the lease. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Have you offered to have 22 
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someone else be a guarantor? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I took on -- I came on as 2 

a guarantor, but no, other than that they don't 3 

want to change any guarantors. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Did you offer to have 5 

another guarantor? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I offered myself and they 7 

took me but they didn't remove him. 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Yourself -- 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 10 

 MR. ALBERTI:  -- or your business.  Was 11 

it you or your business? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Me personally I believe is 13 

what the paperwork is. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But not your business. 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't think they have -- 16 

I don't think they take -- 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Did you offer your father, 18 

the person who invested $600,000.00 into this 19 

business, did you offer him as a guarantor? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I didn't personally offer 21 

him, no. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  All right, thank you.  No 1 

further questions. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, Mr. 3 

Silverstein. 4 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Very briefly, Ms. 5 

Traverso, you -- you say that this check on I 6 

believe it's Exhibit #14 from D.J. Scahill to 7 

Martin Scahill, you received that check on 8 

Sunday?  Was that what you -- 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I think it was 10 

around then. The weeks have been all -- 11 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: I'm sorry? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Let me think.   13 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Did you -- 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah -- 15 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Did you say you went out 16 

to his home in Sterling? 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I think it was 18 

Sunday. 19 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: On Sunday. 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, yeah. 21 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: What can you tell me 22 
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about that trip? 1 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Um -- 2 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: And how long you spent 3 

with him and all that? 4 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was about an hour.  I 5 

went over there to do a tradition where they have 6 

family.  It's like a roast.  I know his sister 7 

very well.  She was visiting.  I went over.  I 8 

know his ex-wife very well, as well, the 9 

children.   10 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: You went over in the 11 

morning or the afternoon? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It was the afternoon, like 13 

2:00-3:00 and had -- 14 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: How far away was it from 15 

where you live? 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  It's about -- about an 17 

hour.  It takes about an hour. 18 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: From D.C. to -- 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I think -- actually, 20 

it wasn't Sunday because there was snow.  Yeah.  21 

My week has been all crazy. 22 
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 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Yeah, that's what I was 1 

getting at ma'am. 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No, you know why, it's 3 

because we were closed on Monday, that's what it 4 

was, so it was Monday.  It got pushed back, we 5 

went out on Monday because the restaurant was 6 

closed because of the snow, that's why I thought 7 

it was Sunday.  So, it was actually Monday, yeah. 8 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: No further questions. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Did you have, Ms. 10 

Miller? 11 

 MS. MILLER:  Yeah, I just have a couple 12 

because I think most of mine have been answered, 13 

but.  With respect to the barring notice.  How 14 

long is that in effect? 15 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't really know. 16 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay. 17 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think it's a year. 18 

 MS. MILLER:  So, can you ask that it be 19 

lifted? 20 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I don't think I can.  I 21 

think my father would have to. 22 



201 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MS. MILLER:  His signature's on it.  1 

Okay.  And I appreciate that it was a business 2 

decision and when you're partners and I'm not 3 

going to probe that except I'm going to ask you, 4 

did you think that Mr. Scahill posed any danger 5 

to the public by his coming, being on the 6 

premises? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 8 

 MS. MILLER:  So, and I don't think this 9 

is a bad thing it's just I'm getting the 10 

impression that the reason for the barring was 11 

you thought it would be beneficial for getting 12 

your license. 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think it's a sign of 14 

goodwill, yeah, I think that's what it was meant 15 

-- 16 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay, okay.  And just as one 17 

board member, I mean I would say there are a lot 18 

of allegations circulating around Mr. Scahill, 19 

obviously, and but he hasn't been found 20 

unqualified at this point or a danger to the 21 

public, so  to me personally, I mean if you, 22 
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you're having all these questions about you know 1 

-- you were engaged, etc., are you still friends, 2 

and so it's like -- you know, to me I guess I 3 

sympathize a little bit and I personally don't 4 

think that you can't be a friend with somebody in 5 

this situation, so.  Okay, that's really all I 6 

have to say.  Thank you. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. 8 

Short? 9 

 MR. SHORT:  Yes, how would you describe 10 

Mr. Scahill's current -- how would you make me 11 

know him?  Describe him in his current -- 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Him personally? 13 

 MR. SHORT:  Yes. 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He is a very hardworking, 15 

honest, individual.  He doesn't shy away from 16 

hard work.  He wants to do everything to the best 17 

of his ability.  And he's always trying -- he 18 

goes out of his way to help people sometimes to 19 

hurt himself, unfortunately. 20 

 MR. SHORT:  How can you describe his 21 

honesty? 22 



203 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Exceptional. 1 

 MR. SHORT:  Exceptional? 2 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 3 

 MR. SHORT:  You might not know this, 4 

maybe you do, maybe not.   What year was he 5 

divorced? 6 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  His son was -- I think was 7 

two.  His son is now 25, so I guess it -- short 8 

of subtracting I guess it would be 23 years ago. 9 

 MR. SHORT:  Twenty-three years.  How 10 

would you describe your relationship with his ex-11 

wife? 12 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Great. 13 

 MR. SHORT:  Great? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yep. 15 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: That's all I have Mr. 16 

Chair. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  I'm 18 

going to ask -- and then Mr. Parsons and we want 19 

to take a lunch break so please keep your 20 

questions short.  You don't have to ask any, if 21 

you don't need to, if it's not pressing, but, yes 22 
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Mr. Bianco? 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  There were some board 2 

questions about sales to minors and you had some 3 

testimony about a couple of stings that you were 4 

the subject of and I just want to make sure that 5 

the record is clear.  How many stings were you 6 

subject to in your career? 7 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Subject to -- I was 8 

present for two.  One, I was actually the subject 9 

to. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  You were subject to one? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  And what happened with that? 13 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I passed the sting. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  So you asked for ID and 15 

didn't serve a minor. 16 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Correct, yeah. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And where was that? 18 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  That was at My Brother's 19 

Place. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  When was that? 21 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I think that was 2012.  22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  And the other thing I just 1 

wanted to ask you for clarification purposes is 2 

you had some testimony about Mr. Scahill being 3 

"on the lease" -- what did you mean by on the 4 

lease? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  He's still listed as a 6 

guarantor. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  A guarantor, okay. 8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Mm hmm. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Not as a lessee or tenant or 10 

anything? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  There was some 13 

testimony, you were shown an exhibit from the 14 

Department of Transportation Public Space 15 

Committee Hearing where Mr. Scahill was saying 16 

"come on we have to go fire some people" -- did 17 

you really thought he would have fired people at 18 

The Alibi? 19 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did he ever fire anybody at 21 

The Alibi? 22 
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 MS. TRAVERSO:  He insisted on helping to 1 

fire one employee that wouldn't leave before we 2 

opened in January of 2015. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  But, who made the decision 4 

to terminate that person? 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I did. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Who makes the 7 

decision to terminate all employees whenever such 8 

a decision is necessary? 9 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I do. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  How about hiring decisions? 11 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  I do. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Does he have anything to do 13 

with hiring or firing anybody? 14 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  No. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Thanks.  That's all I have.  16 

Thank you. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you, no questions. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you.  All 19 

right, it's 2:00.  How long do you guys need for 20 

lunch? 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  45 minutes. 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay, we'll take 1 

an hour.  And we'll come back here and we'll 2 

start at 2:00.  I'm sorry, we're already, I'm 3 

only giving you four seconds for lunch.  Okay, 4 

I'm sorry so we're in recess until 3:00. 5 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Do I leave these here? 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  They are your 7 

lawyer's exhibits, you -- you're free.   8 

 MS. TRAVERSO:  Okay. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Before we go into 10 

recess I'm sorry, I forgot that you're over 11 

there, it's been so long, so you are free. 12 

MS. TRAVERSO:  Okay. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You can step down 14 

and you're free to do whatever you need to do but 15 

we'll be in a recess for lunch and we'll be back 16 

here at 3:00 promptly.  Please be back here 17 

promptly because we want to make sure that we 18 

wrap this up.  All right.  Thank you.  19 

 [Off the record.] 20 

 [On the record] 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  We're 22 
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back on the record.  It's 2:59 p.m. and 36 1 

seconds and we're here to continue on The Alibi 2 

Qualification -- Fact Finding and Qualification 3 

Hearing.  And, Mr. Bianco do you have another 4 

witness? 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Richard Traverso. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Will you raise 7 

your right hand, please.  Do you swear or affirm 8 

to tell the truth and nothing but the truth? 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  [inaudible 00:37] 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you, sir. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  State your name and spell 12 

your last name for the record. 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Richard Traverso, last 14 

name is T-R-A-V- as in Victor - E-R-S-O. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Traverso, can 16 

you pull the microphone closer to you? 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Okay.  How's that?  Okay. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  And, Mr. Traverso, you were 20 

here this morning for all of the testimony about 21 

this barring notice that was issued to Mr. 22 
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Scahill, correct? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes, I was. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  And do you know who issued 3 

that barring notice to Mr. Scahill? 4 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I did. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  And if I can direct your 6 

attention to tab #15 of the exhibits. 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes.  This the barring 8 

notice that I executed and served on Martin 9 

Scahill. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  And directing your attention 11 

to the third page of that document at the bottom 12 

where it has the signature of the authorized 13 

agent in the corner, is that your signature 14 

there, sir? 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes it is. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  And above your signature 17 

there's a line that states barred individual's 18 

signature and there's a signature there.  Can you 19 

say whose signature that is? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  That was Martin Scahill's.  21 

I witnessed him executing this. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Could you -- was the 1 

decision to bar Martin Scahill from the premises 2 

one that you made lightly? 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Absolutely not.   4 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, can you describe how you 5 

came to that decision? 6 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, after much 7 

consideration and discussion with my daughter, we 8 

realized for the sake of the business this was 9 

just absolutely necessary. 10 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Please speak up, sir. 11 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Okay.  We decided it was 12 

absolutely necessary for the business was going 13 

to succeed, or -- and get a license, so because 14 

of concerns apparently from Mr. Scahill's past, 15 

we had to basically make sure all -- The Alibi -- 16 

had all ties severed from Mr. Scahill.  17 

 MR. BIANCO:  And did that decision to 18 

issue this barring notice to Mr. Scahill cause 19 

you personal strife between the members of your 20 

family? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes it did. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Now, there were some 1 

questions of your daughter about whether or not 2 

individuals other than you or your daughter can 3 

inforce this barring notice.  What's your 4 

understanding of that? 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  My understanding is that 6 

anyone can -- who sees Mr. Scahill on the 7 

premises can call the police and report that a 8 

barred individual is on the premises. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Including Mr. Parsons? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Including Mr. Parsons.   11 

 MR. BIANCO:  When did -- when did you 12 

deliver this document to him? 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I believe it was two days 14 

ago -- we had discussed it on the phone, long 15 

before that I had arranged to meet him two days 16 

ago so that he could execute it. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you have any discussion 18 

with him when you took him the document? 19 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  On the phone we did, but 20 

not when -- not at the time of signing.  It was 21 

more or less a done deal when we met.  And we met 22 
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at The Alibi, at the restaurant. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  Was that the last time 2 

you've seen him? 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  That's the last time I saw 4 

him, yes.  5 

 MR. BIANCO:  How about when you told him 6 

that this was the action that you were going to 7 

take?  Did he seem [inaudible] at all? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, no he didn't   9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Did he attribute -- I 10 

could understand he had strong ties to the 11 

restaurant, but I think he understood the 12 

situation that we're in, and he's always been 13 

supportive of getting the restaurant started, so 14 

he was understanding of the fact that it was time 15 

for us to part ways. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Are you committed to 17 

enforcing this by calling the police if he does. 18 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes, I am. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Move admission of Applicant 20 

#15.  21 

 MR. PARSONS:  No objection.   22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So moved.  1 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, Mr. Traverso, there was 2 

a great deal of discussion about financing -- 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes --  4 

 MR. BIANCO:  -- for the Melles 5 

Hospitality Group application -- the previous 6 

applicant.  Do you recall that testimony? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes, I do. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay, can you please 9 

describe for the board why you gave such a large 10 

sum of money to the previous applicant? 11 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, it started out as a 12 

loan to Martin and Rachel, more or less to get 13 

them initially invested in MHG, and the 14 

$70,000.00 that you heard me testify with respect 15 

to at the previous hearing. From then I -- my 16 

wife was lending money to my daughter about every 17 

two weeks or every month, something like that, 18 

and I really wasn't paying much attention but one 19 

time my wife came to me and told me "we're about 20 

to be evicted, we have to wire the rent to the 21 

landlord" and -- you know -- the status of 22 
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everything was a complete shock to me, I had 1 

assumed that the partnership was going well, that 2 

the -- that Abraham Melles was contributing his 3 

share to the business and what I realized was 4 

"no," that we were the primary -- primary people 5 

funding this operation.  So, at that point in 6 

time I stopped funding the organization and then 7 

the MHG went into arrears in the rent and 8 

eventually they did end up facing eviction 9 

proceedings.  And I had presented at the time "I 10 

really don't want to -- you know -- I really 11 

don't want to step in here, I'll give you time to 12 

get another investor but if worse comes -- if you 13 

can't find another investor, I will -- I will 14 

agree to assume the lease and take over the 15 

business, but I want both Mr. Scahill and Mr. 16 

Melles to be out of it, it's just going to be my 17 

business and my daughter's business because we 18 

had contributed most of it already.  So, on the 19 

day before the eviction proceedings were going to 20 

proceed, I got a call that the landlord was 21 

willing to cede that we would get the lease 22 
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assigned to us and Rachel and I proceeded to 1 

start with HRH Services. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  And did you pay 3 

consideration in exchange for the assignment of 4 

the lease? 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes, we did.  It was 6 

basically back due rent from the time we had 7 

stopped paying.  We paid that rent.  We also -- 8 

there were also attorney's fees involved and 9 

getting the assignment prepared.  We -- I paid 10 

that as well. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, all in, what was the 12 

total consideration that you paid in exchange for 13 

assignment of the lease for HRH Services? 14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Cash was about $35,000.00 15 

but again it was my understanding they were 16 

concerned about their both being guarantors on 17 

the lease, so at least Mr. Scahill was concerned 18 

about being liable.  The landlord was threatening 19 

to accelerate the rent and charge them, I don't 20 

know what the total was, but charge them for the 21 

complete term of the lease as damages, and that 22 
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was pretty clear and he had laid out almost a 1 

strategy on how he was going to do that, so it 2 

was almost certain.  So, basically the 3 

consideration was to avoid that eviction 4 

proceeding. 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  And Abraham Melles, was he a 6 

guarantor on the lease, do you know? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  He was a guarantor on the 8 

lease. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, by you accepting 10 

assignment of the lease it was saving it from 11 

default proceedings? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  A question has been raised 14 

in these proceedings about whether or not you 15 

fraudulently presented an invalid lease 16 

assignment which is what is admissible here I 17 

court.  So, I want to focus on specifically the 18 

days surrounding the lease assignment in January, 19 

2015. 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Okay -- okay. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  At that time when you signed 22 
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the lease assignment, were you aware of the 1 

corporate formalities that had to be followed by 2 

Melles in order for that to be done validly. 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No.   4 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you know that Mr. 5 

Scahill on the day that you signed the lease 6 

assignment hadn't followed those appropriate 7 

formalities? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I did not know. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  And had you known that the 10 

purported assignment was invalid, do you think 11 

you would have paid the $35,000.00? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I would not.  I had --  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Objection. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Had you known the lease 15 

assignment was invalid what would you have done? 16 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I wouldn't have signed it. 17 

I mean I retained the landlord's lawyer to 18 

basically prepare a valid assignment.  I assumed 19 

he had done so.  I relied on their expertise on 20 

the effectiveness of that document. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  And later, once you learned 22 
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there was an allegation that the assignment was 1 

invalid, what did you do? 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, basically, we went 3 

to -- you know -- we stopped paying the rent.  We 4 

went to landlord-tenant court to basically fight 5 

over the validity of the assignment of the lease. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you eventually reached a 7 

compromise with all of the partners of Melles 8 

Hospitality Group? 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes we did. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  And paid additional 11 

consideration for that as well? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Quite a -- yes, quite a  13 

bit.  I think the total settlement was 14 

$165,000.00.   15 

 MR. BIANCO:  And, at the time you 16 

submitted your application to the board to 17 

continue the lease assignment, did you know that 18 

there were any issues outstanding with regard to 19 

the assignment? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I did not. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  All right, no further 22 
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questions.  Thank you.   1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons. And 2 

remember, Mr. Parsons, when you're cross 3 

examination is on questions that were asked or 4 

other questions that [inaudible 4-11:50].   5 

 MR. PARSONS:  You were asked, Mr. 6 

Traverso, about the barring notice which is 7 

Exhibit #15, is that correct? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  That's correct. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you know where that 10 

barring notice came from? 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Calls for 12 

Privilege.  The objection makes the answer 13 

apparent. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm sorry? 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  I objected on the grounds 16 

that the answer would call for information 17 

protected by the attorney client privilege. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think we're confusing the 19 

privilege with fact.  We presented this as being 20 

a bona fide step on his part, I want to know 21 

where he got it. 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I-I-I -- I guess 1 

he means where did you get it? 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'll rephrase it.  I 3 

noticed that this bears the signature of Cathy 4 

Lanier, the Chief of Police.  Did you go to the 5 

Metropolitan Police Department and obtain this 6 

barring notice to carry out your intent? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  How did you come to be in 9 

possession of the document of Exhibit #15? 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Calls for 11 

information protected by the attorney-client 12 

privilege.  I think the objection makes the 13 

answer apparent.  14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do I take it that you had 15 

the form and gave it to him? 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Calls for 17 

information protected by the attorney-client 18 

privilege. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  If your Honor, please.  One 20 

of the most blatantly violated discovery rules 21 

has to do with the privilege.  And the courts are 22 
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very clear that you're entitled to inquire on 1 

matters of fact.  They've offered this barring 2 

notice as some kind of proof of a sword coming 3 

down to split the baby, and I want to know the 4 

facts that how this man, who's the one carrying 5 

out this object, comes to be in possession of 6 

what he claims will effectively achieve that 7 

goal.  It's a fact. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  It's an irrelevant fact.  It 9 

doesn't matter how he came into possession of it 10 

and it's also -- if it involves a matter of 11 

attorney-client communication it's not only not 12 

discoverable, it's not admissible.  You can't 13 

even inquire about it. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Mr. Chairman, may I speak 15 

with my opinion here?  I mean we're not asking -- 16 

he's not asking how did -- he's not asking you if 17 

he was advised by anyone to get a barring notice?  18 

He just asked where did you obtain the form? 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But -- but -- I 20 

don't, that's a matter, I don't see how that's 21 

attorney-client privilege.   22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  These are public documents 1 

that you can get off the website. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But, hold on.   3 

 MR. BIANCO:  I don't see -- 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I don't think it's 5 

relevant.  I mean the bottom line is if you're 6 

saying that the document is not -- is a fraud or 7 

the problem is that they're just giving us a 8 

document that's not real in fact, fine.  But 9 

where they got it from?  I mean, it's a bar 10 

notice.  I mean -- I - I -- don't know where 11 

you're going.  So, if you -- if -- if you I don't 12 

know where you're going so that’s part of the 13 

problem that I'm having.  My first inclination is 14 

that it's -- I would agree with counsel, for me 15 

it's not relevant where -- the document speaks 16 

for itself.  But if there's something else that 17 

is not apparent to me that you're trying to prove 18 

with that I'm -- maybe you can just give us some 19 

more information. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, let me see if I can -21 

- I gather Mr. Traverso there came a time after 22 
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January 6th of this year that you decided that 1 

you wanted to prove -- 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on a minute -3 

- hold on a minute, Mr. Parsons, and maybe -- 4 

this is what the document says.  And so, I'm not, 5 

so maybe if you can tell me something else.  This 6 

says, "reason for issuing: Bar notice.  Barred 7 

individual has been accused by the D.C. ABC Board 8 

of being unfit for license due to his character.  9 

Owner of the Alibi does not wish the barred in 10 

the field to be in or near his business to avoid 11 

the appearance of impropriety.   12 

 So, basically the document says that one 13 

of the reasons why they requested it, it is 14 

because the ABC Board is concerned about the 15 

appearance of Mr. Scahill on the property, so -- 16 

so if -- if there's more to it than that -- so I 17 

mean, why they got it, where they got it from, 18 

but the document states that they are giving it 19 

to the ABC board because the ABC Board, and as 20 

you are aware one of the reasons why we're having 21 

this hearing is because we've stated that Mr. -- 22 
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that this is -- and you have also stated that -- 1 

that Mr. Scahill is the owner of the 2 

establishment and that these owners are a fraud.  3 

And so they are stating to us -- they are saying 4 

to us "okay, this is what you think, we're going 5 

to get a bar notice that's good for five years, 6 

that's good for five years -- and that clearly 7 

you can call, anyone can call, so therefore if 8 

it's a fraud, if Mr. Scahill is running the 9 

business -- based on what I've seen so far I know 10 

that you will know that Mr. Scahill is -- is -- 11 

is -- if there's more to it than that, let me 12 

know.  13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Mr. Traverso.  You said 14 

that Mr. Scahill came to the Alibi 237 Second 15 

Street two days ago to execute this?   16 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It had more to do with -- 17 

there was a number of drafts, not drafts but I 18 

think it was a version that was unsigned by him 19 

that I proffered to my lawyer and then it was 20 

said it was better if Martin signed it, so then 21 

we subsequently met at the restaurant. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  So this was a matter of 1 

some to-ing and fro-ing as far as getting this 2 

document, it being in place.  Is that correct? 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Absolutely. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, so it's doesn't bear a 5 

date on it, does it? 6 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It doesn't ask for a date.7 

 MR. PARSONS:  There's no witness. 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It didn't need a witness 9 

because the witness is only if he didn't accept 10 

the signature.  And if he didn't accept the 11 

notice -- and he did accept it. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Today is the 29th, so I 13 

gather this transaction took place on the 27th.   14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes, yes. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, let me ask you.  How 16 

much discussion had there been?  You said there'd 17 

been one and to and fro and didn't follow -- you 18 

were obviously intent on getting a barring notice 19 

but roughly on leading up to this document that's 20 

now been presented. 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, on where at the 22 
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meeting?  Or else at -- the phone calls or what? 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was it your idea to bar him 2 

from the premises? 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Was it my idea? 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yeah. 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I had -- I had basically 6 

conferred with counsel on -- after the meeting we 7 

had in the protest hearing and said we have to 8 

somehow show that we're not associated with 9 

Martin Scahill. And a number of ideas were 10 

proposed.  One was -- 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- a [inaudible 4-19:00]  12 

 MR. BIANCO:  I realize I can't really 13 

object to an answer but I am going to ask for the 14 

ABRA to instruct the witness that he does not 15 

have to answer Mr. Parson's questions about the 16 

specifics of conversations between attorney and 17 

client, not to mention it has nothing to do with 18 

these proceedings.   19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Does this  get -- he can 20 

give instructions to his client.  He obviously 21 

doesn't like the way Mr. Traverso is disclosing 22 
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facts and so he's trying to hide it under the 1 

attorney-client privilege.  2 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Parsons is inquiring 3 

about specific conversations I had with my client 4 

that's protected, and my client does not have to 5 

testify about it, the protection is absolute.  6 

I'm not going to agree with him because he 7 

doesn't like the way the hearing is going.  I'm 8 

just not going to.   9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I've not 10 

seen this before.  Yes? 11 

 MS. MILLER:  I just was agreeing that 12 

attorney-client privilege is pretty basic. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And as I stated 14 

before the document speaks for itself, I mean on 15 

the face of the document it says why it was -- I 16 

don't think it's irrelevant.  I mean, we are all 17 

and this on the face of it it was stated why it 18 

was requested and whether or not who -- and if 19 

Mr. Traverso had a conversation with an attorney 20 

or whatever, whoever, the purpose of it or the 21 

reason why it was done it's here and I -- I would 22 
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ask you Mr. Parsons, let's, I think you've made 1 

your point and maybe we can move on to something 2 

else. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, on the  4 

Reason for issuing a bar notice? 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO: No. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, on the 27th what time 7 

of the day did you meet with Mr. Scahill? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO: It was after work. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  After work? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  [inaudible 4-21:08] 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  9:30 at night? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Something like that. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, you were [inaudible 4-14 

21:20] 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you had arranged that? 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Who else was there when you 19 

met with him?  20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Rachel was there. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Anybody else?   22 
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 MR. TRAVERSO:  My wife. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  And your wife.  Okay.  2 

Lynn.  All right tell me how long did the meeting 3 

giving this bar notice last? 4 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  About thirty seconds. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, Mr. Scahill had driven 6 

in from Sterling, is that your testimony? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I don't know where he -- 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  And then he came into the 9 

restaurant and signed the document and then left. 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right, we went next door 11 

to the [inaudible 4-21:16] 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  For dinner.  For a drink? 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:   To discuss it. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  To discuss the barring 15 

notice.  So, was the barring notice not clear to 16 

Mr. Scahill when you had him sign it? 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection, speculation, he 18 

doesn't know what Mr. Scahill thought. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right, so, in any 21 

event, your testimony was that you had given 22 
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quite a bit of money to Melles Hospitality Group 1 

and then you learned that [inaudible 4- 22:04], 2 

correct?   3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I didn't -- well, learned 4 

that the rent hadn’t been paid and then at the 5 

same time I learned my wife was giving them 6 

money. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Without notice to you? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, Mrs. Traverso was 10 

giving -- writing checks to Rachel Traverso from 11 

[inaudible] after you made an initial $70,000 12 

contribution until September of 2014 when you 13 

learned that lease -- that there was an eviction 14 

notice. 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right, correct. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  And so, are you telling me 17 

that your first notice of substantial -- there 18 

were like $10,000.00 checks every two weeks, 19 

weren't they? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I believe so, I've seen 21 

records, yes. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Yeah, and so did you sit 1 

down with your daughter and say, "where is this 2 

money going?"   3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Once the -- once I finally 4 

got that he'd spent all his money and the lease, 5 

the rent still wasn't getting paid, yes we had a 6 

sit-down to figure out what the other partners 7 

were doing.  You know, why we're in this state? 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you ascertain where all 9 

that money had gone? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I didn't know. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  You asked but you never 12 

found out. 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  And when you were there, 15 

and by the way let's see did you go to 237 Second 16 

Street in the period from September 1, 2013 when 17 

the lease was signed, until the time of the 18 

eviction action in September of 2014? 19 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I didn't go there that 20 

often, maybe once a month.  21 

 MR. PARSONS:  How about the lady that was 22 
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writing the checks, Lynn? Did she go too? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, neither you nor your 3 

wife.   4 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you from time to time 6 

go over and help? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, that's -- those were 8 

the occasions, you know there was some task that 9 

needed to be dealt with.  [Inaudible] that was a 10 

major brick pointing task, so [inaudible] a 11 

couple of times. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Brick pointing? 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah.   14 

 MR. PARSONS:  What else?  Was there 15 

anything else you helped out with?   16 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  There was -- I don't know 17 

the timing of it.  Probably that was -- that was 18 

subsequent to that date.  After we basically 19 

created HRH Services I went over and helped out 20 

more often.  Prior to that, no that was about it, 21 

painting and brick pointing.  22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, let me ask you, did 1 

you have an understanding who was doing the work 2 

on the building in that period between September 3 

of 2014? 4 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  What do you mean by who? 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, then, if you'd say 6 

"okay with all of this money coming in it must be 7 

going to very expensive contractors to do this 8 

work."  Did you entertain that idea? 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  The time, like I said when 10 

I discovered the payments I was not really 11 

concerned about every penny was spent, I was 12 

concerned about what was going to happen next. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, were you concerned 14 

about the state of the building at the time? 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I was.  It needed a long 16 

way to go.  That was another reason to be 17 

concerned. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, I can understand your 19 

concern, why would you not want to know where the 20 

money had gone in that year from September of '13 21 

to September of '14.  Who's getting the money and 22 
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where is it going? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I assumed it was being 2 

spent on the rent. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you ask? 4 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  After looking at the 5 

checks I'm realizing that Melles was not involved 6 

in paying anything.  We simply surmised that most 7 

of those checks were probably paying the rent.   8 

 MR. PARSONS:  In the period from 9 

September 1, 2013, to September 2014, in the time 10 

that you went there did you see any improvement 11 

or any sort of evidence that construction was 12 

being done. 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It was but it was going 14 

slow.  I can't remember why it was. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, if it was going slow 16 

where was the money -- who was doing the 17 

construction? 18 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I don't know. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you ask? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you want to know if 22 
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there were contractors eating up the money that 1 

you were feeding into the operation? 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  At that point in time I 3 

didn't know I was feeding that kind of money 4 

there.  5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Oh, you found that out from 6 

your wife? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  After I found out about my 8 

wife, that's what I told you, my concern after 9 

finding my wife was funding the business was 10 

going forward, not so much what had happened in 11 

the past.  Because it was clear that we needed a 12 

long way to go and it was -- you know -- the only 13 

pockets in this business were mine and you know -14 

- that was not going to continue.  There either 15 

was going to be another partner or if was going 16 

to take it over, you know, this whole company 17 

being mine to lose.  It's not -- I'm not gonna 18 

fault Melles or Mr. Scahill.   19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Just continue the 20 

operation.  What about the state of things in 21 

September of 2015? 22 
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 MR. TRAVERSO:  Sure. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  I mean all this money -- 2 

and you can -- but -- and you didn't know where 3 

it was going, and all you knew was that your wife 4 

was funding this project -- 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now, you paid the landlord 7 

off and stopped the eviction action, right? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Didn't there come a time in 10 

December of 2014 when lo and behold there's 11 

another eviction action by the landlord, right? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, that was the one 13 

that more or less we instigated because I stopped 14 

paying the rent.  I stopped funding MHG so they 15 

had to find other sources for their rent, so yes, 16 

naturally they were going to face eviction 17 

proceedings again, that is what occurred. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Checks were still going 19 

between September of 2014 and the time that you 20 

decided to create this new HRH Services, correct? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Those might have been 22 
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probably to pay the landlord toward the 1 

completion of the assignment of lease. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  $40,000.00. 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  So it was probably this 4 

money for paying -- yes, paying for the 5 

assignment.  The attorney's fees, drafting 6 

assignment and the [inaudible 4-28_33] 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  When you found out this 8 

revelation in September of 2014, did you tell 9 

your wife, "I don't want you writing any more 10 

checks to Rachel to be put into this restaurant 11 

business at 237 Second Street"? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I didn't have to tell her, 13 

she -- she -- was [inaudible 4-28:55]  14 

 MR. PARSONS:  `Did she in fact -- if you 15 

didn't have to tell her, then I take it you 16 

didn't tell her to stop funding this operation -- 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Correct?   All right.  And 19 

so does it come as a shock to you that she kept 20 

right on writing checks in the period from 21 

September of 2014 until December of 2014?  Does 22 
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that shock you? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  In September? 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes.   3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Like I said, those I 4 

believe were for starting up HRH. I can't really, 5 

without seeing the checks, at that point in time 6 

monies were not -- monies were going to Rachel 7 

for various reasons possibly but they were not -- 8 

it was basically to get HRH started, not to form 9 

Melles. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay and then you kept -- 11 

am I correct that by June of 2015 you and your 12 

wife have written checks in addition to the70 you 13 

already advanced of $285,000.00.   14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I couldn't argue with 15 

that.  I would say it's probably about right. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, now. Was your --when 17 

you say that you created HRH Services in December 18 

of 2014, were you going to be a hands on guy to 19 

make sure that now that you're in it, you're 20 

taking over this lease and it's going to be run 21 

in a business-like and profitable manner?   22 
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 MR. TRAVERSO:  To the extent, I mean you 1 

know -- to the extent can it help my daughter?  2 

Yes.  My daughter is pretty good at [inaudible 4-3 

30:28] and I trusted her to do the day to day 4 

business.  I was just going to handle [inaudible 5 

4-30:42] 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, so you were aware 7 

that the funding was still coming regularly from 8 

you and your wife, the operation. 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, I understood that we 10 

took on the lease so it was now our 11 

responsibility to get it started. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think you testified just 13 

now that your role was you laid out the strategy, 14 

if I quoted you correctly on that -- after you 15 

got into the operation. 16 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Strategy? 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Are you a strategist? 18 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  In terms of -- I don't -- 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  That's fine.  I'm going to 20 

ask you --  21 

MR. TRAVERSO:  Of legal strategy yes, basically 22 
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you know that sort of thing.  Because that was 1 

basically my money so strategy with respect to -- 2 

you know -- what to put -- what to invest in in 3 

terms of equipment, that sort of thing. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Does your wife, Lynn, work? 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was she working back in 7 

2013, '14, '15? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now, you were asked 10 

something about a fraudulent lease assignment.  11 

Do you remember being asked questions by the 12 

attorney? 13 

 [inaudible] 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that the term 15 

fraudulently assigning a lease was language used 16 

by the attorney of Mr. Melles in the lawsuit that 17 

they brought against HRH Services? 18 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I don't -- I don't really 19 

recall, attorney being used it anywhere.  Just 20 

[inaudible]. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  You don't recall the word 22 
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fraudulent? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No.   2 

 MR. PARSONS:  I don't know where, do you 3 

know where Mr. Bianco got this? 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  It's in the 5 

hearing notice. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, let me ask you, Mr. 7 

Melles accused HRH Services and Mr. Scahill of 8 

fraudulently assigning an asset of Melles 9 

Hospitality Group [inaudible 4-32:37].  Is that 10 

correct? 11 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  That's correct. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  And so a lawsuit was filed 13 

and a trial began before Dr. Judge Rankin in 14 

Superior Court.  Right? 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right.   16 

 MR. PARSONS:  And that trial -- you 17 

testified in that trial, right?   18 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  You were present for the 20 

trial. 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Sure.   22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Who did testify in that 1 

case?   2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Basically, I think the 3 

plaintiffs and we had Mr. Scahill and that was 4 

it. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now, was it your 6 

decision to settle that case?   7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes.   8 

 MR. PARSONS:  You didn't like the way the 9 

evidence was coming in, I gather? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  More or less, yes. Yeah. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  What concerned you that you 12 

decided you were going to pay $165,000.00 to stop 13 

this accusation by [inaudible 4-33:30] 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons, I'm -15 

- I'm -- I apologize but I'm not sure where 16 

you're going. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  I understand.  18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But, all right go 19 

ahead. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right, sir.  What 21 

prompted you to pay $165,000.00 to stop the 22 
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lawsuit in which HRH was alleged to have 1 

fraudulently obtained a lease? 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  We settled because the, 3 

with the continuances and the way the trial was 4 

going, my legal fees were going through the roof, 5 

so the settlement was actually just a little bit 6 

more than what my attorneys fees cost.  It was 7 

solely a business decision.   8 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, there -- you paid legal 9 

fees of almost $165,000.00?   10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No only, well I mean when 11 

you total up the landlord -- I had to pay the 12 

landlords' attorneys, I had to pay my attorney, 13 

so yeah it was thousands.  It came out to over 14 

$100,000.00. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, your daughter earlier 16 

testified that she thinks that you spent 17 

$600,000.00 toward this business.  Is that 18 

correct? 19 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It's [inaudible]. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, a lot of that was for 21 

legal fees for this allegedly fraudulent lease 22 
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assignment, is that right? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I was -- that's too much, 2 

so yeah. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  And then since then, since 4 

December of 2015, you've been paying the landlord 5 

the lease for that. 6 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Which is $6600.00 a month. 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right and have you ever 10 

sat down with your daughter and pointed out the 11 

costs of this building -- of this project? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Sure. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you ever say, "you know 14 

Rachel I think it would have been cheaper to buy 15 

a building than to try to open this one at 237 16 

Second Street"? 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I don't think I could 18 

argue with that. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  And given all the money 20 

that you are out of pocket, did you ever ask for 21 

an accounting from Martin Scahill about how much 22 



245 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

money he allegedly had put into this project? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, it was not necessary 2 

because we were, at the time I discovered all 3 

this, I was -- I started cutting them out, I was 4 

cutting out Melles. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Cutting out Martin and 6 

cutting out Melles? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  And you cut him out what, 9 

effectively Tuesday or Wednesday of this week? 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Characterization. 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, when we started HRH 14 

Services. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you sit down with Mr. 16 

Melles and say, "I'm cutting you out." 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, no. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  How did you, how did you 19 

break it to Mr. Scahill that you and your 20 

daughter had created a new corporation and you 21 

were taking it away -- the project away from him? 22 
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 MR. TRAVERSO:  Like I mentioned this was 1 

the condition for us to assign the lease, so he 2 

had, you were approached with your problems, I 3 

don't know -- November of 2014 and so he had 4 

until January until official proceedings were 5 

going to start, to find someone else to come 6 

[inaudible]  So he had plenty of time to think -- 7 

you know -- to find another solution.  So when he 8 

came to me I didn't have to discuss anything.  9 

You know, he was at the end of his rope. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  And he's still a guarantor 11 

on the lease. 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  It's like -- the lease is 14 

sort of like flypaper, you can't get rid of it 15 

can you?   16 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, he's still a 17 

guarantor on the lease, yeah. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  He's still -- You're aware 19 

from the testimony that he continues to come down 20 

to the building, right? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Uh --  22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Objection. 1 

Mischaracterization, previous testimony. 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  He was coming four or five 3 

days a week, I don't -- you know, before, the 4 

hearing on the 6th and when it was apparent that 5 

the board had such issues with Martin Scahill my 6 

wife replaced him.  So, my wife has been 7 

basically seating people down and busing tables 8 

since that day.  That was not found, but we -- 9 

anyway, so yes he was there, but he shouldn't -- 10 

my wife's been there every day and she says she 11 

doesn't see him. 12 

  MR. PARSONS:  That's [inaudible].  You 13 

say when it became apparent that the board found 14 

Mr. Scahill what, like toxic or something like 15 

that? 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection, 17 

mischaracterization.   18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I can't remember the words 19 

but you're motivated by what you perceive the 20 

board's impression of Mr. Scahill is, right? 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection, relevance. 22 



248 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. PARSONS:  It's why he filed the bar 1 

notice. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm going to 3 

sustain the objection.  Go ahead, Mr. Parsons. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I may be heard. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm sorry, I -- no 6 

I'm sorry, I apologize, I'm going to overrule the 7 

-- I apologize. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  I understand a lot of the 9 

motivations in this case.  You reached the 10 

conclusion that Mr. Scahill was perceived by this 11 

board as someone that would be an impediment or a 12 

barrier to getting a liquor license, is that 13 

correct? 14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It appeared that way to me 15 

from the hearing. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  On January 6th. 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  So in other words sitting 19 

here listening to the questions you reached the 20 

conclusion that Mr. Scahill was going to be a 21 

barrier to getting the liquor license, correct? 22 
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 MR. TRAVERSO:  Most of the questions were 1 

about Mr. Scahill, not about me or my daughter, 2 

so, yeah. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, you said, I gather, 4 

"what can we do?" and you came up with the 5 

barring notice, correct? 6 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  We want well -- what could 7 

we do?  How are we going to show that he's not 8 

part of HRH Services?  I mean -- he's not on the 9 

-- he's not a shareholder, he's not an employee, 10 

so apparently we didn't do what -- so basically 11 

the next step was just to keep him off the 12 

grounds. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you have any discussion 14 

with DDOT about letting this guy come to these 15 

hearings at DDOT having him coordinate the 16 

construction, having him serving people in the 17 

outdoor café, did you complain about her allowing 18 

those sort of things? 19 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I mean I didn't -- 20 

like I said before Mr. Scahill was helping out at 21 

the restaurant.  I mean the work he was doing I 22 
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wasn't -- you know he was not getting paid, he 1 

was fine.  We needed all the help we could get.  2 

But apparently -- but balancing that work with 3 

what apparently the board's had issues with, it 4 

was not worth it.  So, we basically told him that 5 

you know, my wife was going to work in his place, 6 

he shouldn't come and that was basically -- you 7 

know -- we were concerned that that was not 8 

enough so we issued the bar notice. 9 

 MR. PARSONS: Thank you. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Questions from the 11 

board?  Yes, Ms. Miller. 12 

 MS. MILLER:  I just have one and that 13 

goes to the barring notice in that it doesn't 14 

have a date on it.  Is that going to be cured?  I 15 

mean it seems like if this is in effect for five 16 

years, you have to know when the start of it is? 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I'm really not an 18 

expert on these so I don't know -- I don't know 19 

if it's ineffective without a date.  But we will, 20 

if that's foreseen as a cure we will issue a new 21 

one. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Directing your attention to 1 

bottom of the exhibit it bears the number and 2 

stamp - it's in MPD form which is the document 3 

that we filled out so this isn't the document. 4 

 MS. MILLER:  Oh, ours is probably cut 5 

off, so it may be. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It's at the bottom we have 7 

-- we have attachment A Barring notice and is 8 

there a barring notice number down there? 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  It says, it's circular 1201 10 

barring notice attachment A barring notice and 11 

bears a date of form, so it's -- 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry, where's the date 13 

of form? 14 

 MS. MILLER:  Maybe we're missing the last 15 

-- 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Right, so at the bottom I 17 

have circular 1201, all right, the next line says 18 

attachment A, the next line says barring notice, 19 

what's on your barring notice? 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  It looks like a cut-off date 21 

which is probably the date of the circular, so 22 
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it's not the date, I'm sorry, it's probably the 1 

date of the form and not -- not the date the 2 

barring notice was issued, but I was pointing out 3 

the MPD form number on there because to respond 4 

to any issue that there is with the sufficiency 5 

of the document. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But no, the question had to 7 

do with how do you know what date this goes into 8 

effect?  Because it's good for five years, so 9 

once you get four years down the road, what date 10 

do you come back to Mr. Bianco -- am I making 11 

myself clear? 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  No, that I understand.  But 13 

her question --  14 

 MR. ALBERTI:   Okay, so how do we know?  15 

What is the date? 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Her question was is this 17 

going to be cured? 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I may --   19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I suppose that's right.  20 

She may have misstated it.   21 

 MR. BIANCO:  They don't  22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  What is the date this goes 1 

into effect?  How does one determine the date 2 

that this goes into effect?  Someone who's not 3 

part of these proceedings, someone who's not you, 4 

someone who just gets hired next year by MPD.  5 

How do they know the date that this went into 6 

effect? 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  They don't.   8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  How do they know when it 9 

ends then?  They don’t.  Thank you. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  They don't. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You never asked, Mr. 12 

Bianco? 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  -- to someone putting its 14 

effective -- 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  This is your client and you 16 

never asked? 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  I never asked when it went 18 

into effect? 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  It was served. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  I know when it went into 22 
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effect.  It went into effect when it's served but 1 

that's not the question that you asked me. 2 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay, let me -- how does 3 

somebody else know when it's in effect? 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  They don't.  They don't.   5 

 MS. MILLER:  They don't. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  They don't.    7 

 MS. MILLER:  Well, it was served, is that 8 

in the record somewhere when it was served? 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  It is.  Mr. Traverso 10 

testified that he served it on Wednesday. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  The 27th of this month.   12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, very good, thank you. 13 

 MS. MILLER:  Mr. Traverso then I guess. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on a minute.  15 

Hold on Mr. Parsons, Ms. Miller is asking 16 

questions so there is no question you need to 17 

respond to so since the board has asked this.   18 

 MS. MILLER:  I mean, Mr. Traverso it's 19 

just kind of vague, I just think you haven't 20 

noticed that it says it's in effect for five 21 

years, then how does anybody know, how do you 22 
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know, then the date that it began? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I -- we assumed its 2 

effective immediately, as of Wednesday, I mean 3 

and five years down the road, to be honest I 4 

didn't think of dating it, didn't think of dating 5 

it I was just following the form, I didn't see a 6 

spot for a date so -- 7 

  MS. MILLER:  Okay, so what happened 8 

on Wednesday that it went into effect?  It was 9 

signed? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  It was signed. 11 

 MS. MILLER:  It was signed but you don't 12 

have a date? 13 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I didn't put it down. 14 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay.  That's all for now, 15 

okay.  Thank you. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go ahead Mr. 17 

Short. 18 

 MR. SHORT:  Good afternoon. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on, can you 20 

turn your mic on? 21 

 MR. SHORT:  Sorry, okay.  December '15 22 
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would that be the same, let's follow up a little 1 

bit on one of Ms. Miller's questions.  On the bar 2 

notice it states "barred individual has been 3 

accused by the DCABC board of being unfit for 4 

licensure."  Where did that come from?  5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I miss-typed.  It was not 6 

typed by me, it was by my attorney. 7 

 MR. SHORT:  Oh, typed by an attorney.  8 

Okay.  Are you aware of any time this board has 9 

said someone was unfit? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I have read various 11 

records from the board, I get some that are the -12 

- under the previous owners, the My Brother's 13 

Place and there was questions from the board that 14 

last hearing and based on the questions -- 15 

 MR. SHORT:  But officially have you ever 16 

seen anything that says --  17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 18 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, so before you did this 19 

notice apparently you didn't think he was unfit, 20 

is that correct? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes, I would say that's 22 
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accurate, yes. 1 

 MR. SHORT:  So, how would him as 2 

currently, Mr. -- 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I know him personally so I 4 

would say he's a warm guy, he's -- very friendly.  5 

You know the problem with this whole barring 6 

notice is that I consider him a friend. 7 

 MR. SHORT:  Could it be considered that -8 

- a friend? 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah. 10 

 MR. SHORT:  You have a friend barred out 11 

only after you come here on January 6th. So that 12 

caused the bar.  Other than that, he's still a 13 

friend, still a good guy. 14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 15 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, and I want to go now to 16 

the protestant's evidence and go to #14, page 88. 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Can I have a copy of that? 18 

 MR. SHORT:  Page 88, line 10 and 11. Will 19 

you read that for the record so I can ask the 20 

question after you read it? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  You want me to read this? 22 



258 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. SHORT:  Yeah, please. 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  We haven't voted this 2 

motion.  Mr. Scahill "Rachel, come on, we've got 3 

some f -- 4 

 MR. SHORT:  You don't have to say the 5 

word, but effing. 6 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Effing people to fire. 7 

Come on." 8 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay.  That was on a public 9 

record and at a public hearing, correct? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Correct. 11 

 MR. SHORT:  Would you say someone like 12 

that has a great character or how would you 13 

describe a person who would talk like that in a -14 

- in a setting like this. 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO: Yeah, this is -- this is 16 

Mr. Scahill's temper.  I wasn't there but it 17 

looks like Mr. Scahill's temper got the better of 18 

him here. 19 

 MR. SHORT:  So if he's running a business 20 

where he's selling alcohol and he's been accused 21 

of some selling to minors, and accused of some 22 
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other things, and probably got a lot of fines 1 

from ABRA and under investigation for several 2 

things, so you -- do you describe his character 3 

as very good? 4 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, I mean, maybe -- 5 

those things, those events happened before I knew 6 

him. 7 

 MR. SHORT:  This event happened last 8 

year.  9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  This event happened last 10 

year but I can understand this.  This is 11 

basically, this could be the end of the 12 

restaurant.  This would have been the end of the 13 

restaurant if I didn't come in and we decided to 14 

throw more money into it and we did that. 15 

 MR. SHORT:  I mean this from the bottom 16 

of my heart.   You seem like a perfect gentleman 17 

and I have two daughters, so I have an affinity, 18 

I understand.  I go the miles for my daughters 19 

too so my hat's off -- kudos to you for that.  20 

But again, this particular person, and you've 21 

known him over the years, is the first time 22 
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you've seen him act this way or talk this way? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO: No.  No.  I've seen, no 2 

I've seen, he'll go off, before.  Yeah, that's 3 

why I said I recognize this is his temper taking 4 

off. 5 

 MR. SHORT:  Can I ask you what kind of 6 

employment you do or what kind of business you're 7 

in? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I'm a patent attorney. 9 

 MR. SHORT:  Excuse me? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Patent attorney.  Okay.  11 

That's all I have.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.   12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, Mr. Alberti. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Mr. Traverso, I'm just 14 

curious here so I'm going to go back to the time 15 

when the lease was originally signed with MHG, 16 

under Mr. Scahill.  Did the purported  17 

[inaudible] was paid with some financial 18 

remuneration or -- that's [inaudible].  Can you 19 

go through that again for me? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  The -- I believe there 21 

were two months' rent that was due with -- with 22 



261 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

late fees and also there's two months' rent, late 1 

fees had to be paid on behalf of MHG and also 2 

again I had agreed to pay the legal fees for the, 3 

effecting the assignment.  So it was that -- I 4 

think it totaled to about $45,000.00 - $40,000.00 5 

-- yeah $40,000.00 somewhere in that 6 

neighborhood.  The rent it's hard to calculate 7 

because the -- 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, the only fees, there 9 

was no money changing hands? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I mean, you know -- if 11 

you saw the restaurant at the time it was -- it 12 

was far from being complete.  You know -- it 13 

required almost you know $200,000.00 at least to 14 

go on from there. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Thank you, I was just 16 

trying to understand your earlier testimony.  17 

[inaudible]  And forgive me for this question, 18 

but I think it's important, because you did make 19 

reference to this.  You said that when the 20 

decision was made to get a barring notice, to 21 

enact a barring notice there was a great deal of 22 
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personal strife that was involved.  What did you 1 

mean by that? 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, I mean -- I mean 3 

basically Martin must have had an interest in the 4 

place -- he put a lot of effort into it, and I'm 5 

sure he had hopes of, you know, somehow coming 6 

back at some point in time. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, your reference to 8 

personal strife was Mr. Scahill's personal 9 

strife? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I'm -- 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Or was it -- was it --  12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, I'm hurting  13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Let me finish. 14 

Is the personal strife with you? Or is it 15 

personal strife with your daughter?  I mean. 16 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I think it was more or 17 

less -- in my family we kind of hold it in, so we 18 

all basically just sat around and said nothing. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Pardon? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  We just sat around and 21 

said nothing. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  You just did that --  1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Sort of just in a 2 

depressed state yes. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Was your daughter -- was 4 

your daughter in agreement?  Full agreement with 5 

this decision? 6 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes.   7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, I want to go back now 8 

to the date on this, or the lack of date on this.  9 

You're a lawyer. 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And I assume that you are -12 

- I get the impression that you're a very 13 

competent lawyer.  You seem to have been 14 

successful in your life.  That says to me you're 15 

a very competent lawyer so you understand law.  16 

I'm sure you could understand our angst over here 17 

about the fact that there's no date on this.  So, 18 

it says on the bottom on the barring notice it's 19 

in effect for five years unless canceled in 20 

writing.  How -- other than -- it has to go back 21 

to at least January of 2012 because that's the 22 
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date that this form was created.  Other than 1 

that, how does anyone have any idea of how long 2 

this barring notice is -- has been in effect? 3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  You know, it's a good 4 

point.  To be honest when I executed it, that was 5 

not my, the dates and that's not my business. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I understand.  I forget to 7 

date things myself, so. 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, yeah. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  What do you do -- a copy of 10 

this goes for signing, what do you do with it?  11 

What do you do with it? 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I gave a copy to Martin 13 

and then I sent a copy to my lawyer. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right. 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, actually my daughter 16 

sent a copy to the lawyer. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You have a copy in the 18 

establishment? 19 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I think my daughter has 20 

it. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So you're part owner and 22 
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you don't know? 1 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  My daughter runs the day 2 

to day operations, there's a lot I don't know. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Got it.  You didn't give 4 

this to the police. 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So they have no idea. 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No, we  8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  They would never have an 9 

idea this is in effect until someone calls them? 10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So if Martin says -- a year 12 

from now, Martin says, "hey I think it's expired.  13 

I signed that a long time ago.  How are they 14 

gonna -- how are they gonna tell -- how are they 15 

gonna say it's still in effect?  It's your word 16 

against his. 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yeah, I can't argue with 18 

that. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, what was the purpose of 20 

having the barring notice? 21 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Again, to -- to -- to 22 
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basically demonstrate that the HRH Services is 1 

completely separate from Martin Scahill. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  I get that.  I 3 

understand that.  It's [inaudible] -- if I was in 4 

your position I'd probably do the same thing.  5 

However, what assurances do I have that he's not 6 

going to show up tomorrow? 7 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I mean, if he shows up 8 

we've put the operation and bar on notice, we're 9 

supposed to call the police, and I think we have 10 

assurance from Mr. Smith --  11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No -- no it doesn't 12 

obligate, no, nothing in this barring notice 13 

obligates you to call the police. 14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  You're right.  Correct. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It's totally up to your 16 

discretion. 17 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Right. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Thank you.  I would have 19 

been disappointed if you didn't understand that. 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, what assurances does 22 
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this board -- I mean, you want to sell this to 1 

the board, you're trying to sell this to the 2 

board and say "look, this is -- this is my way of 3 

showing you that, that, really all of your doubts 4 

that Martin Scahill has any, any involvement 5 

here, I've got a barring notice."  But it -- but 6 

it's -- really it is true it's not worth the 7 

paper it's printed on right now.  So, what 8 

assurances can you give us? 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, I mean, assurances.  10 

You talk about stepping on the property.  I think 11 

with the -- the objective here was really, I 12 

guess-- to show separation.  I mean clearly he's 13 

not a part of HRH Services if there's a barring 14 

notice keeping him off the premises. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You have a barring notice 16 

on him.  Will you allow him back on your property 17 

-- remember you're under oath -- from today until 18 

the five years from January 27, 2016, will you 19 

allow Mr. Scahill on your property? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  With the barring notice?  21 

No, I will not.   22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  You will not.  Will you 1 

withdraw this notice before the five years is up? 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  If there's a basis for it, 3 

I have no idea. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So we have no assurances 5 

that Mr. Scahill couldn't reappear, reincarnate 6 

so to speak, at this establishment a month from 7 

now. 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You're not assuring me --  10 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Again I can't, you know. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, fine.  So, again, I'm 12 

not sure why we should even be looking at this 13 

bar notice.  Unless you want to give me some 14 

assurances, it's irrelevant to me. 15 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Assurances in what way? 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Assurances he will not be 17 

on the property for five years.  I mean, you kind 18 

of -- you're kind of telling us that here.  19 

You're sort of trying to tell us he's not going 20 

to be there for five years, and now when I ask 21 

you under direct questioning, you go, "well, I 22 



269 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

didn't really mean that." 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No, I said if the barring 2 

notice was in place and he showed up I would have 3 

him arrested. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  If the bar -- its 5 

condition.  If the bar notice is in place.  You 6 

have total control of the barring notice.  You 7 

can -- you can rescind it tomorrow, so what 8 

assurances do I have? 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, I don't know how the 10 

barring notice can provide for that.  I don't 11 

know what -- the document itself. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Your testimony could 13 

provide for that. 14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Okay. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You could tell me.  You 16 

could tell me here your assurances today could 17 

tell me how long you will not allow Martin 18 

Scahill to set foot on that property.  Am I 19 

making it plain? 20 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yep, you're making it 21 

plain.  The notice is five years, I can say five 22 
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years, if that's how -- that's how it operates I 1 

can say that we'll get the -- I'll assure it 2 

being effective for five years.   3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You'll assure that this bar 4 

notice is in effect for five years? 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I will. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right. All right.  So 7 

let's switch gears here. You said that -- okay 8 

after that January 6th meeting, all right?  You 9 

know Mr. Scahill disappeared from -- his presence 10 

was no longer at the establishment.  All right?  11 

And so you said your wife replaced him. 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Yes. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  What does that mean? 14 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  Well, he was there four or 15 

five -- like we testified he was there four or 16 

five days a week, busing tables and seating 17 

customers, so we needed those hands, so my wife 18 

basically took place. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, from the time you open 20 

until the time -- sometime in January after the 21 

last hearing, there was a function that he was -- 22 
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a significant function that he was performing 1 

that, if he wasn't performing it, someone needed 2 

to pick up the slack.   3 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I -- I -- don't run the 4 

day to day operation.  I would assume so, that's 5 

why my wife is there. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Thank you.  No further 7 

questions. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I may have follow up 9 

with a few questions. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on, hold on, 11 

hold on -- 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That's Mr. 14 

Bianco's question -- witness, so if he has any 15 

questions for his witness. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  I do not. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go ahead. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  In that barring notice, the 19 

line at the bottom where it says the barring 20 

notice is in effect for five years, unless in 21 

writing? 22 
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 MR. TRAVERSO:  Okay. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Am I correct that the 2 

effect of that is if you were to get your liquor 3 

license you could then cancel the bar notice, 4 

correct? 5 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I have no idea, I'm not an 6 

expert on this.  7 

 MR. PARSONS:  But you're the ones that 8 

signed it. 9 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I signed the barring 10 

notice, yes.  11 

 MR. PARSONS:  I think you indicated that 12 

the strife that came out at some point when you 13 

were talking to Martin and he was recounting the 14 

fact that he had put so much time and money into 15 

the project and you said you thought he might be 16 

thinking of coming back sometime, is that 17 

correct? 18 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  That was speculation on my 19 

part. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  But all he's got to do to 21 

come back sometime is for you to just simply 22 
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cancel the bar notice, right?  After you've got 1 

the liquor license? 2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I have no idea.  I have no 3 

idea.  I am really not sure if I can just cancel 4 

this in writing after what I gave in my 5 

testimony. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you, sir. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  Your -8 

- 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Can I just ask another 10 

question I just want to get your view.  So one of 11 

the things, I'm only one board member here but 12 

you made a commitment to me that you would keep 13 

this in effect.  So if we put that in an order, 14 

would that be a problem for you?  If we issued 15 

this license with an order that said, you know, 16 

this barring notice that bars Martin Scahill from 17 

being in your establishment must be in effect for 18 

five years from the date it was issued, according 19 

to the testimony - is that a problem for you? 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on - hold on 21 

-- I'm not sure if we can -- I mean a liquor 22 
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license is good for three years, so I'm not sure 1 

if we can hold somebody responsible for five --  2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Well, we can talk more, 3 

absolutely.  I'm just  4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm just saying -- 5 

I would say. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I'm just one board member -7 

- 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I will support you 9 

if you say it's a term of a license because I 10 

think that -- how can you hold. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Licenses get renewed too 12 

and any board order that goes into effect is 13 

carried on past renewal.  Mr. Bianco knows that.  14 

The board order goes into effect today telling an 15 

establishment they have to meet some conditions, 16 

when the license expires and it's renewed the 17 

board order continues.  So, legally we can do 18 

this.  I'd like to get Mr. Traverso's -- yes, Mr. 19 

Chair. 20 

 MS. MILLER:  But you --  21 

 MR. SHORT:  On this one second.  I'd like 22 
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to get Mr. Traverso's opinion on this once I get.  1 

We can extend things and often do and always do 2 

in settlement agreements that go beyond the term 3 

of the license and go to the --  4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Right but this is 5 

particularly a board order that -- 6 

 MR. SHORT:  Exactly. 7 

 MS. MILLER:  This is a hypothetical by a 8 

board member. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Alright, it's a 10 

hypothetical by a board member.  I'm asking Mr. 11 

Traverso what his views on that would be. 12 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I'm sorry, one more time? 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  If -- if we issued a board 14 

order that said we will grant this license with 15 

the condition that the barring notice presented 16 

today stays in effect for five years from the 17 

date on which it was issued by you, or signed by 18 

Mr. Scahill. What's your views on that? 19 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  I would not be happy, I 20 

hate to have any restrictions on it, but I think 21 

we have to live with it.  If it came to that, we 22 
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would. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, so could  2 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  This barring notice -- 3 

[inaudible 4-1:04:42] 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, let me ask you this 5 

way.  Could the business succeed with that 6 

restriction?  Would there be any impediment to 7 

its success with that restriction? 8 

 MR. TRAVERSO:  No. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Thank you.  10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go head, Mr. Short 11 

and then after that -- go ahead. 12 

 MR. SHORT:  I would maybe support that; 13 

however until we get a completed barring form 14 

with signatures and an official seal of 15 

Metropolitan Police, I'm not going to accept this 16 

one that was submitted for the record.  17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But the form 18 

doesn't require, the form doesn't require it.   19 

 MR. SHORT:  Do we have a full form up 20 

there? 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Mr. Short, I hear you, I 22 
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hear you I'll get. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I want the record 2 

to be clear in a review of a form there are 3 

certain procedures that should be followed.  If a 4 

business is going to ask the MPD to sign it, I 5 

mean I think that's what the instructions on the 6 

form says though, that's when there is some stamp 7 

on it because the business would ask -- would ask 8 

-- if the business is seeking, if the business is 9 

unable to get the individuals to sign off and 10 

they need the MPD to assist you then the form 11 

says what the person needs to do if you need MPD, 12 

but I digress.  But anyway.  Here you are free to 13 

step down Mr. Traverso. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  We don't have any further 15 

witnesses, the applicant rests. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  We'll take five 17 

minutes and then we'll take five minutes and then 18 

Mr. -- see if you can get your witness. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Tys. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Five minutes. 21 

[off the record] 22 
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[on the record] 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  We're back on the 2 

record.  Mr. Parsons, your first witness? 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir.  One second, 4 

please.  Your Honor, I call at this time Mr. 5 

Christopher Smith to the witness stand. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Chair, before we proceed 7 

with this witness I have a preliminary issue that 8 

I'd like to be heard on and it might be 9 

appropriate to excuse Mr. Smith as we discuss it. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Smith, can you 11 

please step outside, please, for a minute? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Specifically the issue I 14 

wanted to discuss was I would move to strike this 15 

witness or limit his testimony.  I'm going to 16 

explain the basis for my request and the Board 17 

can -- 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I think you 19 

know a whole lot more than I do.  Why don't I ask 20 

Mr. Parsons to give us a proffer because I'm not 21 

-- it's hard for me to strike a witness and I 22 
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have no idea what he's going to testify about. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  I understand how that would 2 

normally be the case, but in this particular 3 

case, my assumption is that he is going to 4 

testify --  5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, go ahead, go 6 

ahead. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  -- consistent with an 8 

affidavit that was been submitted.  So, that's 9 

the basis -- 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Submitted where?  11 

In today's record? 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  It was submitted, actually, 13 

with the protest.  There's an affidavit attached 14 

with the protest and my motion is based on an 15 

assumption that he's going to testify consistent 16 

with that particular -- 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Can I look -- can 18 

someone provide me a copy of this affidavit, 19 

please? 20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But why don't we find out 21 

from Mr. Parsons if that's in fact accurate. 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Right, so that's, 1 

all right.  2 

 MR. PARSONS:  In part that is accurate 3 

because I think they've opened up a lawsuit and I 4 

think that they've opened up the criminal 5 

activity of Mr. Scahill, that's basically -- I 6 

gather that's what -- Mr. Scahill, according to 7 

my lawsuit, according to the testimony of this 8 

witness, in retribution to my filing a protest, 9 

slashed the tires on my car and slashed the tire 10 

on my wife's car and then stole keys from my 11 

office building next door and he took me to court 12 

and got an injunction under false pretenses that 13 

had to be overturned, so there's a lot of things 14 

that is overlap between what I expect this 15 

witness to testify too on the question of 16 

qualifications involving Ms. Traverso, as well, 17 

that sort of fit within the lawsuit that I have, 18 

but I'm not here to try a lawsuit, I'm here to 19 

develop qualifications. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I -- I -- I 21 

guess, I'm not going to have testimony about Mr. 22 
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Scahill's slashing anyone's tire, that's not the 1 

purpose of -- I'm not going to have any testimony 2 

on that.  I mean, if you have him testify about 3 

why is it you believe that this witness -- I'm 4 

sorry -- that this applicant does not qualify to 5 

have the license because Mr. -- they're just a 6 

front for Mr. Scahill, and if you have testimony 7 

from him to say that ties a connection to say 8 

clearly it's not them, it's Mr. Scahill and 9 

everything that's going on here is a dog and pony 10 

show, that's fine because they're trying to cover 11 

for Mr. Scahill, but if we're going to have 12 

testimony regarding criminal activity that Mr. 13 

Scahill did to you, your wife, or Mrs. Smith, 14 

that's not -- this is not the forum for that, 15 

sir.   16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, if I may be heard, 17 

they have already vouched for Mr. Scahill and his 18 

good conduct in their testimony.  They said I 19 

would trust him with anything.  They said that 20 

he's a good guy.  And if he's a good guy then I'm 21 

a bad guy for opposing their application for a 22 
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liquor license.  This is not a good guy, this is 1 

a guy that in fact is criminal and I have put up 2 

with invective and cursing every time I would go 3 

to a restaurant down the street from Mr. Scahill.  4 

I've got him recorded as attacking me on the 5 

street.  And yet, I'm supposed to sit silently by 6 

while they vouch for his good character. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well but that's, 8 

this is not -- the -- the -- forum for that and 9 

Mr. Scahill is not on trial.  As I said before, 10 

if you want -- if this witness can testify to 11 

facts saying that this is a sham, I think this is 12 

one of the words that you have placed in your -- 13 

in your -- that basically they are a front for 14 

Mr. Scahill and this is a sham.  If he is going 15 

to testify about that, that's fine, but I don't -16 

- I don't -- since Mr. Scahill is not on trial, 17 

he is not here to defend himself, I don't -- we -18 

- we can't have someone testifying to say that 19 

Mr. Scahill is a bad actor, is a bad actor in and 20 

of itself, but you would have to tie that into 21 

directly to state that since Mr. Scahill is not 22 
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on trial then you will have to tie it to say that 1 

as the allegation that you have made before that 2 

Mr. Scahill is actually the real owner of this 3 

property and not them. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Can I just have a moment, 5 

please?  6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  In looking at the 7 

affidavit, I mean he talked about he has seen 8 

that Mr. Scahill has sold liquor to My Brother's 9 

case and it's my understanding, and I could be 10 

wrong, that we have had some board orders on that 11 

issue that has tied Mr. Scahill to that matter, 12 

if I am correct.  Am I correct that we have had 13 

board orders saying that Mr. Scahill -- is that a 14 

matter of record? 15 

 MS. MILLER:  I'm not sure what you mean, 16 

because we haven't found him disqualified. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, I'm not saying 18 

-- I'm saying a different, now I'm saying a 19 

different thing. 20 

 MS. MILLER:  Yeah. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm saying have 22 
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there been board orders issued by this board 1 

saying that Mr. Scahill was responsible for 2 

selling liquor to underage drinking -- 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, I don't know --  4 

 MS. MILLER:  There've been a lot of 5 

allegations of that -- 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, no, no, I'm 7 

talking about  8 

 [cross talk] 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  There have been board 10 

orders but -- time out.  There have been board 11 

orders accusing the licensee of My Brother's 12 

Place but not directly saying Mr. Scahill, all 13 

right?  So we still -- any testimony that comes 14 

in relative to whether Mr. Scahill is or is not 15 

guilty of being complicit with those sales I 16 

think is of interest to this board.   17 

 MR. SHORT:  It is. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Because part of -- I mean, 19 

really, what's going on here is that the reason 20 

we're -- the reason -- you're [inaudible 5-08:07] 21 

and this is not just anyone -- anyone.  The 22 



285 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

reason we're concerned about Mr. Scahill's 1 

involvement is our suspicions about he, himself, 2 

being qualified and, you know, the suspicion that 3 

he -- he's not -- he's not -- shown on the 4 

license because he was facing qualification -- a 5 

qualifications hearing, All right?  So, those are 6 

the accusations.  So, I think any -- any 7 

testimony that talks about his qualifications are 8 

relevant to this hearing.  That's my opinion. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm sorry, we have board 10 

members at once. 11 

 MS. MILLER:  I just want -- I just want 12 

to say that we are tied to the notice and the 13 

counts that are set forth in the notice and all 14 

witnesses should have testimony that you can show 15 

is relevant to those counts. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right, let me, 17 

I'm going to go -- this is what I'm going -- this 18 

is what -- let me see -- let me go back, sorry, 19 

hold on. 20 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Mr. Chair? 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes? 22 
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 MR. SILVERSTEIN: This might be of some 1 

help.  We did in fact find My Brother's Place 2 

liable for selling sales to minors and is every 3 

bit of those cases there was testimony in the 4 

hearing itself that Mr. Scahill was present.  5 

Whether that is reflected in the board order is 6 

something I can't respond, whether it was 7 

reflected in the board orders in those particular 8 

notices of violation that Mr. Scahill personally.  9 

I cannot say.  But I know that they were involved 10 

in the hearings themselves because I was involved 11 

in those as was Board Member Alberti. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But Mr. Silverstein, yeah, 13 

I mean, we all recognize that, so that should not 14 

preclude us from getting whatever information --  15 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Exactly. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  We have another witness to 17 

talk about Mr. Scahill's qualifications. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right, All 19 

right, okay, this is --  20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Which may prove him 21 

innocent, I don't know. 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay, this is -- 1 

this is -- this is what, it's allegation, I mean 2 

it's an allegation.  I see -- I see what's in the 3 

affidavit.  This is not -- Mr. Scahill is not 4 

here, I don't know the motivation, so he can 5 

testify about what happened at My Brother's Case 6 

-- My Brother's Place with Mr. Scahill since he 7 

said that he had personal.  Okay, fine, now we'll 8 

take it there.  However, it is not relevant that 9 

Mr. Scahill slashed your tires -- slashed your 10 

tires or his tires.  That has nothing to do here.  11 

If you want him to -- testimony regarding sale of 12 

since -- but again I'll give you some leeway on 13 

that; however, you need to tie -- tie Mr. Scahill 14 

back to this applicant.  It has to be tied to 15 

state this -- as you have stated in your own 16 

words, that this is a farce, that this is a sham, 17 

this is not the board, but it says in your 18 

petition that this applicant, it's a cover for 19 

Mr. Scahill.  So, if you're going to provide that 20 

testimony it has to be directly related to why is 21 

it that you believe that this applicant, that Mr. 22 
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and Mrs. Traverso who are sitting here are not 1 

the true owners of the establishment but Mr. 2 

Scahill is. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir, thank you. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Now, I am not 5 

gonna, I'm not quite sure but recording, but I 6 

and I don't know how folks record, but I don't 7 

think I'm going to allow seven recordings of what 8 

might have happened, because I'm not aware of the 9 

laws in the District of Columbia in the sense of 10 

recording someone without them knowing, so I'm -- 11 

since I'm not aware of the law unless legal tells 12 

me otherwise, I'm not going to allow that to come 13 

in.  So, I mean, I see that there's some 14 

equipment set up there.  I'm not sure of the 15 

purpose, but I hope it's not recordings.  If 16 

you're trying to have --  17 

 MR. PARSONS:  These are public hearings. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  -- have --  19 

 MR. PARSONS:  These are public hearings. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  What? 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You have to allow it to be 22 



289 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

recorded, these are public hearings. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, no, no, no 2 

we're not, I'm not talking about to be recorded, 3 

I think that he wants us to hear testimony of him 4 

recording Mr. Scahill. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Not testimony. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And I don't think 7 

-- 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Oh!  Oh, yeah, all right, 9 

no. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That's what I was 11 

talking about.  Unless legal tells me -- 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That's a whole other issue. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  -- that I can -- 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Sorry.   15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Right.  That's the 16 

push. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No, I got ya.   18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay.  So, I'm not 19 

quite yet ready to go down that road unless legal 20 

has given me some assurance of the guidelines 21 

that we can have wiretaps or recordings of an 22 



290 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

individual in this proceeding, so we're not going 1 

to have that at this moment. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Well I think it probably 3 

depends on where the recording was made. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  It was caught on the 5 

street.  It was in public. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It may have a difference 7 

than if it's made by telephone, I mean, there is 8 

no assumption of privacy on the street if you're 9 

yelling on the street. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, as I stated 11 

before -- 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I'm not [inaudible]  -- let 13 

the lawyers argue that.  14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I -- without legal 15 

telling me, I'm not going to allow it, because I 16 

don't -- this is not my area of law but I'm not 17 

going to open -- if that's going to be part of it 18 

then we probably need to take a break to have 19 

help -- 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  This isn't Mr. Smith's 21 

testimony.  This is set up in anticipation of 22 
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[inaudible] -- We can go ahead with Mr. Smith if 1 

you like. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  So, 3 

but as I said before, I'll give you some leeway, 4 

I see the affidavit since it's stating about My 5 

Brother's Place, it's not about My Brother's 6 

Place, but for what it's worth we'll do that but 7 

I -- I don't think as far as that Mr. Scahill has 8 

slashed your tires, allegedly slashed your tires 9 

or Mrs. Smith's tires -- I mean, that's not 10 

something that we can have here.  I'm going to 11 

allow the testimony.  So, Mr. Smith can come, 12 

once he's looking.  This [inaudible 4-14:40] 13 

sitting on the floor, I was trying to see if I 14 

could get him to -- All right. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Can you raise your 16 

right hand please?  Do you swear or affirm to 17 

tell the truth and nothing but the truth?  18 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right, have a 20 

seat.  Your witness, Mr. Parsons. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Can you raise your 22 
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right hand please?  Do you swear or affirm to 1 

tell the truth and nothing but the truth? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right have a 4 

seat.  Your witness, Mr. Parsons. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, in a loud clear voice 6 

can you please state your name, your address and 7 

your occupation?   8 

 MR. SMITH:  My name is Christopher Smith.  9 

My address is 1031 Michigan Avenue Northeast, 10 

Washington, D.C.  My current occupation is 11 

software sales. 12 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: What occupation? 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Software,  Computer software 14 

sales. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And that, either 16 

put the -- bring the microphone closer to you 17 

because we can't hear you.  18 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  And your occupation again, 20 

sir? 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Software salesman. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Can you tell me 1 

please, how old are you? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  I'm 26. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  And can you -- how far did 4 

you go through school? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  I completed my undergraduate 6 

at Catholic University in 2012, I completed my 7 

graduate degree in business analysis in 2013. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  And, are you 9 

acquainted with an establishment known as My 10 

Brother's Place, at 237 2nd Street Northwest? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, the business was 12 

formerly at 237 Second Street. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Tell me -- how do you know 14 

about My Brother's Place?  How do you know about 15 

it? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Back when I was an 17 

undergraduate at Catholic University, myself, my 18 

friends, my fraternity brothers, it was an 19 

establishment that we frequented. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And did you ever 21 

work there? 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  And for whom did you work 2 

at My Brother's Place? 3 

 MR. SMITH:  For Martin Scahill. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  And can you tell me what 5 

was -- what were your job duties, your title 6 

there? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  During my time at My 8 

Brother's Place as an employee it was my job to 9 

work the door with Martin.  I essentially did 10 

whatever Martin told me.  During the day, after 11 

class I would go to work.  During the day, I was 12 

a busboy and worked in the dish-wash room.  In 13 

the evenings I would work the door with Martin.  14 

He would check IDs and I would collect cash and 15 

wrist band people. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Were you also, 17 

when you were at My Brother's Place, acquainted 18 

with a lady name Rachel Traverso? 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  How did you -- what -- what 21 

-- how did you know Ms. Traverso at My Brother's 22 
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Place? 1 

 MR. SMITH:  She was a bartender there.   2 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Can you just 3 

sort of walk me through -- did you yourself, 4 

being a Catholic student, did you hold social 5 

events at the club? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  Absolutely. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Tell -- can you tell us how 8 

-- what those consisted of? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  What do you mean by consisted 10 

of? 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, I know you say that 12 

you worked with Mr. Scahill at the door and you 13 

were also a co-employee with Ms. Traverso.  Did 14 

there ever come a time while you were working 15 

there that you became aware that under aged sales 16 

of alcohol to youths was occurring? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Can you tell us a little 19 

bit about what you observed? 20 

 MR. SMITH:  What happened was when Martin 21 

and I would work the door together, my only job 22 
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was to take money and wrist band people.  If he 1 

looked at an ID card and said 21, whether the ID 2 

was real or fake, we didn't have any other check 3 

other than looking at the ID.  I would wrist band 4 

the person and collect the cash.  It was $5 for 5 

overage, $10 for underage.  Meanwhile, as I said, 6 

I had attended Catholic University and I started 7 

working for Martin by the time I was a senior, 8 

working the door as stated, and I would know the 9 

kids were freshmen.  I would know the freshmen 10 

from around campus, I would know the freshmen by 11 

their faces.  I would know that they weren't 21.  12 

And often I would tell Martin 'I know that that 13 

person is not 21' but if the person came with a 14 

good enough falsified identification, Martin 15 

would say 21, and I would wrist band them and 16 

collect the money as I was told.   17 

 MR. PARSONS:  As far as this wrist 18 

banding, what -- I know these people know but for 19 

my own benefit, when you wrist band someone is 20 

that a way that you mark them to indicate they 21 

are of age to purchase alcohol? 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  Well, there are two 1 

wristbands always.  There was always one wrist 2 

band for over 21 and a wrist band for under 21.  3 

What -- are they -- how do you -- what's the 4 

differentiation between the two? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  A difference in color, a 6 

difference in pattern, you know there were all 7 

those paper wrist bands that you can get like at 8 

Party City, you know, like one night over 21 9 

might be orange with stars and under 21 might be 10 

red with a blue stripe.   11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Now you indicated 12 

that Ms. Traverso was a bartender.  Was she also 13 

working as a bartender at the time that you and 14 

Mr. Scahill were working on the front door? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Can you -- you've 17 

indicated that you knew that Martin was allowing 18 

and wrist banding people under the age of 21, is 19 

that correct? 20 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.   21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Were sales of alcohol being 22 



298 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

made to these people that were so wrist banded? 1 

 MR. SMITH:  If you had a 21 wrist band, 2 

yes you were able to purchase alcohol.   3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Do you know if Ms. 4 

Traverso was aware of the way that the law was 5 

being thwarted? 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Speculation.  He 7 

has no basis to testify as to what Ms. Traverso 8 

was or was not aware of. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  He may have some -- the 10 

woman is -- he may actually have the facts. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  His witness can't testify 12 

about what's in Ms. Traverso's mind, what she 13 

knows or doesn't know. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  He may have the facts. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I think 16 

there are two things.  Are you saying that the 17 

law, that Ms. Traverso is supposed to sell 18 

alcohol to someone who has an over 21 wrist band?  19 

Are you asking that she knew the person was under 20 

21 and was -- was -- the bottom line is if the 21 

question is that if Ms. Traverso was selling 22 
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liquor to folks who had the under 21 -- I'm sorry 1 

-- the over 21 wrist band, if she realized, if 2 

she knew that was a law, if they had a wrist band 3 

so over the 21 she could sell it to them, if 4 

that's the question that you are asking, I'm 5 

overruling it?  I'm sorry -- I'm sustaining the 6 

objection.  If the question is that she knew that 7 

he was allowing under 21 folks in by giving them 8 

wrist bands, then I'm gonna -- I think I'm 9 

confusing myself.   10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Mr. Chairman? 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No but let me 12 

just, let me finish this.  If the question is 13 

that Ms. Traverso was aware that the law says 14 

that -- or she's aware that if you're over 21, 15 

you're given an over-21 wrist band and she's 16 

selling liquor to the folks who are -- who have 17 

the appropriate wrist band.  If that's the 18 

question, that she's aware of the law then I will 19 

overrule the objection.  But if your question is 20 

that she knew that he was giving under 21 folks 21 

an over 21 wrist band, that objection I will 22 
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sustain.   1 

 MR. PARSONS:  I see that, Mr. Chairman. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes? 3 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Looking to cut through 4 

it, as an old editor, are you asking did she 5 

knowingly sell liquor, did he know that she 6 

knowingly sold liquor to people under the age of 7 

21?  Is that your question? 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, that's not it, 9 

he's talking about the wrist bands. 10 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: No, is it? 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm [inaudible 5-22:36] 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, then why 13 

don't you clarify the question?   14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Why don't you repeat your 15 

question?    16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Because we're all 17 

confused.  It's up to too much interpretation.  18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Just repeat your question, 19 

so the witness will not answer until we hear it. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Fine.  I'd like to just try 21 

to lead to that same line of questioning by 22 
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another tact, if that's okay. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That's fine. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  How -- what were the -- for 3 

what period of time were you employed by Mr. 4 

Scahill at My Brother's Place?  5 

 MR. SMITH:  My employment at My Brother's 6 

Place began in the spring of 2012 and ended 7 

before July 4th.  July 4th was the last operating 8 

day of My Brother's Place of that year. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  So, you were there 10 

up pretty steadily until it closed. 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  When was the place 12 

closed?  July 4th, what year? 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  '14 -- '13 rather.  Sorry. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay.  All right, 15 

go ahead. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, a little more than a 17 

year you were working there. 18 

 MR. SMITH:  And did you -- were you 19 

working the door with Mr. Scahill with some 20 

frequency while Ms. Traverso was there? 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  And can you tell me 1 

what, if anything, you observed about Ms. 2 

Traverso in terms of your employment during that 3 

year period. 4 

 MR. SMITH:  She was a bartender.  I'd go 5 

as far as to say essentially the head bartender.  6 

She was there every time that I was there.  She 7 

normally worked the downstairs bar and frequently 8 

worked the upstairs bar.  We worked together if 9 

she needed somebody kicked out, she would, you 10 

know, wave over to me.  If I was floating around 11 

the inside of the bar, and I'd escort the, you 12 

know, patron out. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Do you know if Ms. 14 

Traverso was aware that underage people were 15 

being wrist band inside My Brother's Place.  16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Speculation.  He 17 

has no basis to testify as to what Ms. Traverso 18 

was or was not aware of. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm going to 20 

overrule the objection, and again whether you 21 

know or not it shouldn't be speculated. 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  Can you repeat the question, 1 

please? 2 

 MR. PARSONS:   Do you know if Ms. 3 

Traverso in that one year period, or a little 4 

over a year you were working there, do you know 5 

if she -- did you ever -- did you know if she 6 

knew that underage people were being wrist-banded 7 

as though they were of legal age to purchase 8 

alcohol?   9 

 MR. SMITH:  To be honest, I do not know 10 

if she did or didn't know.   11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now then, after My 12 

Brother's Place closed in July of 2014, did there 13 

come a time when you received word from Mr. 14 

Scahill about a new venture?  15 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, it was July of 2013.  I 16 

had returned home to New Jersey and Martin had 17 

texted me and called me and spoke with me about 18 

opening the place back up.  You know, it's an 19 

empty shell right now, the place is closed down, 20 

let's put something here.  I've worked with you 21 

in the past, we've worked together, come on back 22 
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down.  We're going to get this place back open 1 

was essentially his message. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Did you in fact 3 

take up his request and join them? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, I returned to Washington 5 

D.C. in August of that year. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Of 2013. 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now, can you tell me, were 9 

you aware that Mr. Scahill and Rachel Traverso 10 

were living together? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Not until I became employed 12 

by them to undertake the project. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right, and at that time 14 

you did learn? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  And I think you indicated 17 

you came back to undertake a project in August of 18 

2013.   19 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Where were Rachel and -- 21 

where were Ms. Traverso and Mr. Scahill living 22 
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together? 1 

 MR. SMITH:  At 708 G Street Southeast. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you have occasion to go 3 

to 708 G Street? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Very often. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  For what reason? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  Most days after work we would 7 

head back there, eat dinner, hang out, play with 8 

the dogs, talk for a little bit, have a little 9 

drink.  But every morning before we went to work, 10 

being that park is so tight down there at that 11 

237 corner, I would drive my car to the 708 12 

location and we would all ride to work together 13 

in the van, and the van was actually -- Martin's 14 

van -- but it's actually, Jim Destival is 15 

Martin's stepfather, the van belongs to his 16 

stepfather.  We would get into that van every 17 

morning and ride down to 237 work all day, maybe 18 

pause for lunch, and then head back to 708 G in 19 

the evening. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  So is it fair to say, Mr. 21 

Smith, that you saw Mr. Traverso -- Miss Traverso 22 
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and Mr. Scahill on a fairly frequent and regular 1 

basis in that period after August of 2013? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  No less than four to five 3 

times a week. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Four or five times a week.  5 

Okay.  Now then, during the time that you and -- 6 

you would visit Mr. Scahill, either at 708 or 7 

while you were working together, did you ever 8 

notice anything unusual that he was doing? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Unusual? 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, I mean, as far as 11 

drug activity? 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did Mr. -- Mr. -- in your 15 

presence, did Mr. Scahill consume cocaine? 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Was Ms. Traverso present 19 

with you during the time that Mr. Scahill inhaled 20 

cocaine? 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance.   22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustain. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  How many times are we going 2 

to go through this? 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  May I, I'm sorry, I'm at a 4 

loss.  If we're dealing with qualifications here, 5 

what --  6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You're still -- 7 

you're still -- I -- I -- don't personally care 8 

about the alleged --  9 

 MR. PARSONS:  It's not a question, it 10 

goes to his character and her condoning his 11 

conduct.   12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Chairman, your ruling 13 

was very clear.  We're not going to talk about 14 

Mr. Scahill slashing tires or allegedly doing 15 

cocaine or any other bad acts that are unrelated.  16 

The only thing that you're ruling allowed for was 17 

discussion about serving of underage folks at My 18 

Brother's Place.  This is well beyond that.  It's 19 

a smear campaign.  It's been what this entire -- 20 

Mr. Parson's goal in this entire proceeding, is 21 

to come in here and say bad things publically 22 
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about my client and it needs to stop.  It's out 1 

of control.   2 

 MR. PARSONS:  If my recollection serves 3 

me correctly, it was Mr. Bianco that said on June 4 

-- January the 6th that Mr. Parsons filed this 5 

lawsuit but they all treat it as frivolous.  They 6 

treated that -- I'm a disgruntled neighborhood 7 

and that I have no grounds whatsoever to have any 8 

protest on this.  But I'm the guy that has to 9 

bear the brunt of the attacks of their -- of 10 

their -- Englishman and I think I should be heard 11 

on that because it goes to the qualifications.  12 

They're trying to get a license and they're going 13 

to put the very same villain back in my -- 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay so, okay so, 15 

what I have asked you, sir, you -- I mean this  16 

 MR. PARSONS:  They make me out as 17 

disgruntled and when I try to offer evidence of 18 

wrongdoing all of a sudden Mr. Scahill [cross 19 

talk] 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I don't have a 21 

police record that says that Mr. Scahill was 22 
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convicted of having  smoking cocaine or doing 1 

whatever it is, I don't know what he does.  2 

That's not -- I -- and assuming I did -- what am 3 

I going to do with that?  And I'm just asking --  4 

 MR. PARSONS:  It's illegal. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  There's nothing 6 

that board can do with it.  The board granted, 7 

because you have brought a lot of information to 8 

the board, and so, therefore, the board believes 9 

that you have some relevant testimony, and what -10 

- what I expect from you, sir, is for you to 11 

state that in this qualification, that Ms. 12 

Traverso and her dad, her father, that they're 13 

not the true owners of this establishment, it's 14 

Mr. Scahill.  That's what I wanted us to talk 15 

about.  To tie them together to say they're not 16 

the true owners, it's Mr. Scahill and so that's 17 

why -- and Mr. Scahill is that.  But, I've not 18 

heard that.  So, I've not heard that yet. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  I will proffer to the court 20 

that the condoning of this kind of criminal 21 

conduct by an applicant for a liquor license I 22 
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think goes directly to their qualifications.  1 

They -- these actions were going on repeatedly 2 

and that's what I'm trying to develop in my 3 

evidence. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, I -- 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  We can't put Mr. Scahill on 6 

trial.   7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I -- I -- I -- and 8 

you're, and I'm going to say this and maybe, but 9 

I'm going to say thing but you brought a witness 10 

to testify about what this applicant is condoning 11 

who your witness probably was there condoning it 12 

too, so, therefore, so , therefore, I could sit 13 

here and say that I'm not going to listen to 14 

anything he says because that's not relevant 15 

because he's just -- he is just as a bad actor as 16 

Mr. Scahill, because he --  17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Whoa, whoa, whoa. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm just saying. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  She condoned it, if she 20 

condoned it and he condoned it --  21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Then he's a bad -- 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  The board doesn't have to 1 

condone this.  That's why I'm here. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  We can't try this.   3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Chairman --  4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm -- I'm sorry? 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  I renew my motion to strike 6 

this witness.  There's nothing here.   7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  No, I wouldn't strike him.  8 

His earlier testimony was fine and I have 9 

questions. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I've asked that 11 

before, we need to limit, I've instructed you, 12 

Mr. Parsons, where I'll give you some leeway but 13 

that's not Mr. Scahill's allegedly criminal 14 

activity.  If you're talking about his criminal 15 

activities at My Brother's Place or whatever the 16 

names of the establishments fine.  But I'll give 17 

a perfect example, sir.  Smoking marijuana in the 18 

city -- and we're not talking about marijuana -- 19 

but it might be -- folks might have a problem 20 

with it, but D.C. government said it's fine, the 21 

feds say it's not so -- I'm not necessarily going 22 
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to say it's criminal activities but that's not, 1 

we can't talk about that here.  So, just, you can 2 

talk about My Brother's Place -- 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I can just develop the 4 

evidence to rebut this argument they're making 5 

that I'm a disgruntled old man that's the 6 

adjoining landowner. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I haven't heard 8 

that, that's not part of this.  That's not part 9 

of. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- he filed a lawsuit! 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  But that's not 12 

part of this hearing.  Hold on, hold on, hold on.  13 

That's not part of this hearing.  This is what 14 

this hearing is about.  It's a qualifications 15 

hearing on whether or not this app -- these 16 

applicants are qualified to have -- to get a 17 

license, and what I need you to do as I said 18 

before, is to tie it -- I allowed you to talk 19 

about My Brother's Place and the testimony, 20 

that's relevant because that talks about Mr. 21 

Scahill involved in another ABC establishment 22 



313 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

that we have licensed.  So, if you have others 1 

like that, do you want to talk about, and then, 2 

because I'm giving you some leeway, you are going 3 

to tie it in to say that the Traverso's are not 4 

the true owner, it's Mr. Scahill's -- fine -- but 5 

you have to tie it together.  But I'm not gonna 6 

settle for no slashed tires, the allegation of 7 

slashing the tire, you have another forum you can 8 

address that to.  Even if it's true, there is 9 

nothing that the board can do if you prove that 10 

Mr. -- even if you prove that Mr. Scahill slashed 11 

your tire, or Mr. Smith's tire, we can't do 12 

anything about that.  It's like, okay, enjoy, 13 

it's a Friday afternoon and we can state that 14 

that adds some enjoyment to the -- kind of keeps 15 

us on our toes -- but there's nothing we can do 16 

about that, so let's move on.  I -- I -- I -- 17 

counsel has objected to the -- to this witness.  18 

For the record, you've preserved the record that 19 

you have objected to this witness but I'm also -- 20 

I might rule later on that I will agree with him 21 

and say that I'm going to prevent any further 22 
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testimony if we don't get to what we -- what 1 

you're trying to prove here, sir.   2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go ahead. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  In the period from 5 

September 1 of 2013 up until, say, the middle of 6 

2014, were you doing construction work at 237 7 

Second Street? 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  And was anyone else working 10 

there with you? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Martin Scahill, Rachel 13 

Traverso, a young man named Joseu and a young 14 

lady named Mayra. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Are you acquainted 16 

with Lynn and Richard Traverso? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.   18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did they perform any work 19 

there during that period? 20 

 MR. SMITH:  A little bit later on after 21 

that period, before I was fired from working with 22 
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them, Richard and Lynn had come to help plaster 1 

the walls and put paper up on the walls. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  Mr. -- is there a binder on 3 

here? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 5 

 MR. PARSONS: Okay, good.  I want to 6 

invite your attention to Parsons Exhibit #4, 7 

that's tab 4.  Have you seen those documents 8 

before? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, I have. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  What are they, please? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, what this is, this is a 12 

setup for behind the bar, for the downstairs bar.  13 

I remember them because Rachel drew them.  14 

Essentially it's meant to mirror  the two service 15 

stations on each side, they're meant to mirror 16 

one another, so one bartender has everything that 17 

he needs on one side, the other bartender has 18 

everything he needs on the other side. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do the documents in Exhibit 20 

#4 -- are they the drawings of the renovation 21 

that was being performed at 237 Second Street 22 
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after you began working there in 2013? 1 

 MR. SMITH:  Just a moment.  Can I have a 2 

quick second to look at these? 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Please do. 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Can you repeat your question 5 

again, please? 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yeah.  Are these the 7 

drawings that were used to carry out the 8 

renovation work at 237 Second Street after you 9 

joined the workers there in 2013?   10 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  And these were 12 

drawn by Rachel, you said? 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  What was Rachel's 15 

role in the, I guess, who were you employed by as 16 

you worked at -- in that period from 2013 to 17 

3014. 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, I was employed by 19 

Martin, and shortly thereafter Martin and Rachel 20 

got engaged, but Martin made it clear to me that 21 

I was still employed by him, directly by him. 22 



317 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. SHORT:  Speak up, please. 1 

 MR. SMITH:  I'm sorry.  Yes, I was 2 

employed by Martin and directly by Martin.  Even 3 

after Rachel and Martin got engaged, Martin made 4 

it clear to me that I was still directly employed 5 

by him. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Now then, the 7 

work that was being -- can you kind of just 8 

describe the work that was being performed, that 9 

you and the others were doing there at 237 Second 10 

Street in that period? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Sure.  In that time we 12 

essentially gutted the place.  Every single job 13 

that we did uncovered another job.  We removed 14 

the floors in the main bar area because they were 15 

rotted out and saturated old wood.  We removed 16 

the ceiling in the main bar area.  We removed the 17 

flooring in the dish wash area.  We removed the 18 

flooring in the basement.  We redid the bathrooms 19 

and the entire basement was restructured.  New 20 

studs, new drywall, repainted everything, laid 21 

down new tiles, fixed the electrics.  Martin and 22 
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I actually, well mainly Martin, but Martin and I 1 

redid the electrics in there.  Martin did -- 2 

redid a lot of the drains because most of the 3 

drains oddly enough ran uphill.  So, Martin 4 

gutted those out and we got the PVC pipe and 5 

installed the drains, fixed a lot of the 6 

plumbing, the water.  It was a complete 7 

renovation and it was very dirty and grueling 8 

work. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did -- you indicate that 10 

you and Martin were doing the drains, I gather 11 

the plumbing? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, yes.   13 

 MR. PARSONS:  The plumbing and the 14 

electrical --  15 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Is Mr. Scahill a licensed 17 

plumber or a licensed electrician? 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object and the 19 

reason for my objection is two-fold:  1) 20 

Construction or renovation or remodeling that 21 

took place in 2013 has absolutely nothing to do 22 
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with the qualifications of Rachel Traverso 1 

whatsoever, or Richard Traverso whatsoever.  2)  2 

It's law of the case.  This board has already 3 

ruled on this specific issue.  Mr. Parsons is 4 

again, in an effort to smear my client, 5 

suggesting and going to put on evidence that 6 

there's this unlicensed work or my client was in 7 

violation of the construction codes or some other 8 

trumped up charge that he's going to put on 9 

against my client, and in considering such 10 

things, in October of 2013 this board issued an 11 

order with regard to the Melles Hospitality Group 12 

application and in that order, this board made it 13 

clear that as a result of the case of Dupont 14 

Circle Citizens' Association this board cannot 15 

sit in judgment of construction code violations 16 

because that's within the purview of another 17 

agency.   18 

 If Mr. Parsons is coming to this board  19 

and says 'here's a list of five notices of 20 

infraction from DCRA' that's different.  But 21 

that's not what he's doing. He's coming here, 22 
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putting on evidence from a witness saying and 1 

there was all this unlicensed work done in an 2 

effort to try and prove something with regard to 3 

the propriety of the establishment that my 4 

clients are trying to open.  It's not admissible.  5 

It's not admissible as a matter of law and it's 6 

not admissible as a matter of this board's prior 7 

ruling in the Melles Hospitality case. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons? 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  If we are interested in 10 

qualifications and we have evidence that these 11 

applicants, they were working there, and Mr. 12 

Scahill when knowingly undertaking work 13 

circumventing the required permit provisions that 14 

are enacted for the safety of our city, then I 15 

submit that goes to the qualifications. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Based on -- and 17 

legal did provide me a briefing in the case that 18 

was cited, Citizens' Association, I think, that 19 

was cited by -- 20 

 UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Dupont Circle Citizens' 21 

Association and the ABC Board, 766 A Second 59. 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I did read that in 1 

preparing for this case.  I guess someone thought 2 

that it was going to come up, so I'm -- the 3 

objection is sustained.  4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Now, did there come a time, 5 

Mr. Smith, that you learned of a stop work order 6 

by DCRA at the building? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.  8 

 MR. PARSONS:  And was that one that was 9 

dated December 17 of 2013.   10 

 MR. SMITH:  I believe so.   11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  It was around that time that 13 

we got it. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Were you aware of more than 15 

one stop work order for unpermitted work? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did there come a time when 18 

Mr. Scahill and the Melles Hospitality Group 19 

began posting permits for plumbing and electrical 20 

in the window? 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  And to your -- can you tell 1 

us what you knew about that? 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object again.  3 

It's the same objection, it's not relevant and 4 

it's precluded. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Whoa whoa.  This goes to 6 

fraud.  This is a fraud that they were posting 7 

permits that were using -- in which they had paid 8 

off contractors to get them the permit and then 9 

Martin did the work.  This is fraud.   10 

 MR. BIANCO:  This specific issue -- this 11 

is the specific issue that he is again falsely 12 

raising, was this specific issue that was decided 13 

in October of 2014 when the board definitively 14 

stated since DCRA dismissed that matter in its 15 

entirety, it couldn't be raised and it still 16 

shouldn't be raised.  17 

 MR. PARSONS:  That was one permit.   18 

 MR. BIANCO:  This -- let me be clear on 19 

this. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Wait a minute, there was 21 

multiple, there were plumbing permits for which 22 
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the work was not done by a licensed person, there 1 

was one electrical permit where they missed, it 2 

was to a guy named Garcia who came in and said it 3 

wasn't him and it turned out it was the board's 4 

error, but then they used Mr. Thompson of Empower 5 

Electric and he was the one that dropped the 6 

permit for Mr. Scahill who did the electrical. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  This board can't adjudicate 8 

CRA violations. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  The objection is 10 

sustained. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Whoa whoa.  Just let me 12 

make my record. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, sir. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  These are not DCRA 15 

violations these are fraudulent procurement of 16 

permits knowing that the work is not going to be 17 

done by a licensed technician but by the people 18 

at the work site.  I think that is highly 19 

relevant on the issue of qualifications. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Your objection is 21 

heard, sir.  Go ahead. 22 



324 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. PARSONS:  Sorry? 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I said I heard 2 

your objection, I sustained your objection and 3 

you have stated your disagreement with my ruling. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you ever?  Oh, let's 5 

strike that.  Now, to your knowledge did Mr. 6 

Scahill ever hire a private investigator while 7 

you were working there in the building? 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you know -- can you 10 

explain to us why he hired a -- why a private 11 

investigator was hired. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, after you filed some 13 

paperwork, or there was something going on with 14 

you and your case, Martin became suspicious that 15 

you had put listening devices into the wall, into 16 

the common adjoining wall. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection, relevance. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Thank you. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Did you, did there come a 21 

time when you learned that I had filed a protest 22 
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petition with ABRA regarding the application of 1 

Melles Hospitality Group. 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  I believe that 4 

that protest was filed on Friday, August the 15th 5 

of 2014, is that correct? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.  7 

 MR. PARSONS:  That same day, am I correct 8 

that you observed Mr. Scahill slash the tires of 9 

my wife's car? 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  Relevance.  We 11 

dealt with this specifically. 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  Wait, wait.  If I may make 13 

a representation.  You said it's got nothing to 14 

do with it, but my petition directly, I mean  15 

within hours after the petition was filed the 16 

tires on my car -- on my wife's car -- got 17 

slashed and two days later when my car -- the 18 

tires were slashed.  If this is intimidation or 19 

retribution, I submit that that is highly 20 

relevant on the issue of qualifications.  And the 21 

contemporaneously they are right together.  You 22 
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file a protest, you get your tires slashed.  I 1 

think this board is entitled to know this. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  I think it's another effort 3 

at an unfounded, unsupported smear of my client 4 

and it shouldn't be allowed, not to mention the 5 

Chair has already ruled on the issue. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm going to 7 

sustain the objection.  You have to move on, sir. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  When did you last -- 9 

for how long a period of time did you work at the 10 

premises at 237 Second Street? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  From August of '13 to January 12 

22nd of '15. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  2015? 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm sorry, what 16 

was the period again? 17 

 MR. PARSONS:  August of 2013 until 18 

January 22 of 2015. 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  During that 21 

time you became aware, I gather, that there was -22 
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- that Ms. Traverso and her father had filed a 1 

new -- a new corporation or a new entity to run 2 

the business? 3 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  That would have 5 

been, I think, in December of 2014, correct? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Tell me, as a result of the 8 

creation of this new entity, did you observe any 9 

change in the way that Mr. Scahill was running 10 

the business? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, Martin would, the same 12 

that Abraham was out -- previously whenever I 13 

would go and pick up something from Martin, 14 

either from like GovDeals or Rasmus I would sign 15 

the paper work, at first when I originally 16 

started working, I would sign HRH, you know, 17 

Christopher Smith for HRH. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Is that HRH LLC? 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. And then, when Abraham 20 

came on, Martin instructed me that it was Melles 21 

Hospitality so I would sign things MHG after I'd 22 
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pick something up, and then December '14, Martin 1 

said Abraham's out, we're HRH again.  So, I 2 

assumed that we had originally been back to HRH. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  And so, but in 4 

terms of control of the operation, the business, 5 

the construction that was under way at 237 Second 6 

Street, did there ever come a time when Martin 7 

was not running the show? 8 

 MR. SMITH:  No, Martin was always in 9 

charge. 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Now, there came 11 

-- did there come a time when you were 12 

discharged? 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Describe for me the 15 

circumstances of that. 16 

 MR. SMITH:  On the night of January 21, 17 

Martin and I stayed up until --  18 

 MR. SHORT:  What year? 19 

 MR. SMITH:  -- 2015.  The night of 20 

January 21 of 2015, Martin and I had stayed up 21 

'til 3:00 in the morning.  We were at an auto 22 
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warehouse in Bethesda and we were using the paint 1 

tents there to paint the chairs, the red chairs, 2 

red and black chairs that are currently in the 3 

restaurant I assume, I haven't been to the 4 

location since January 22nd of 2015, but Martin 5 

and I stayed up until 3:00 a.m. doing that, and 6 

then we left.  We went back to the 708 location.  7 

I got in my car and said to him, you know, 'what 8 

time do we want to be at work tomorrow?' He said 9 

9:00 in the morning as usual.  I said, 'okay, no 10 

problem.'   11 

 So, I went home, got very little sleep, 12 

returned to work on time and Martin wasn't there.  13 

I tried to call him, I -- this day, actually, I 14 

did not go to the 708 G Street location for work, 15 

I drove straight to the restaurant itself.  16 

Martin wasn't there, neither was Rachel.  I tried 17 

to call Martin.  I texted him.  I got no answer.  18 

So, I returned to my home in Brookland.  I tried 19 

calling Martin a few more times and then I came 20 

to work at about 1:00 that day.  He was extremely 21 

cross with me, started yelling, acting erratic, 22 
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screaming, telling me that he was done, that he 1 

couldn't do this anymore, and I was, like 'what 2 

are you talking about?  What's wrong?  I mean, we 3 

stayed up all night doing work and you weren't 4 

here when I got here this morning.'   5 

 So, he left, him and Rachel actually 6 

left, and I remained at The Alibi with Martin's 7 

sister, Wendy.  We were cleaning off the bar, 8 

cleaning the floors, doing general sprucing up 9 

and cleaning because this was coming towards the 10 

tail end of the work.  Later on that same day, I 11 

want to say about 4:45 - 5:00 -ish, Martin came 12 

back and we had an argument, and he started 13 

yelling at me and screaming at me and telling me 14 

he was done, 'I can't do this anymore, you're 15 

fired, get out' and all this stuff and I said, 16 

'okay, no problem.'  I did yell back at him.  I 17 

told him 'fine, I will leave, I'm happy to leave, 18 

but I will take all my personal property with 19 

me.'   20 

I had some tools, maybe like a T-shirt and like a 21 

pair of shoes that I had left there, like my work 22 
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shoes that I had left there.  I gathered my 1 

personal property.  Martin yelled at me a little 2 

bit more.  I told him to bleep himself and I 3 

left, got in my car and drove home. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  And, have you been back to 5 

My Brother's Place since then? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  I have not been back to the 7 

237 location. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  I mean HRH. 9 

 MR. SMITH:  I have not been back to the 10 

location whatsoever. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  In terms of the 12 

running of the operation from August of 2013 13 

until January 22 of 2015, was there ever a time 14 

when Rachel was running the show?  Or was giving 15 

the orders or was it always Martin? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Always Martin.  Unless, like, 17 

Martin had to, like, run out either to DDOT or 18 

DCRA or here or wherever he went or if he was 19 

meeting people, then Rachel would be, like, left 20 

in charge, but she would, like, have her tasks of 21 

the day essentially from Martin. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  Thank you, I don't 1 

have any further questions of Mr. Smith. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Bianco? 3 

 4 

 CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. BIANCO: 5 

 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Smith, I only have a few 7 

questions for you.  I'm going to try to keep it 8 

brief. 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir.  10 

 MR. BIANCO:  At the beginning of your 11 

testimony you talked about the times that you 12 

worked at the door at My Brother's Place. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you ever work the door 15 

without Mr. Scahill? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  No.  17 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, every time you were at 18 

the door, Mr. Scahill was there as well. 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Every time I was at the door, 20 

Martin was there, and there were sometimes 21 

additional people there as well.   There would be 22 
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days that the line would be down the corner and 1 

around the block, so it would be Martin, myself, 2 

usually maybe Didier, maybe no more than four 3 

people. 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you were in charge of 5 

wrist bands and cash? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  And where did you get the 8 

wrist bands from? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Martin. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  And when did he get them? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  At the beginning, before the 12 

night.  Like, when the first crowd would start to 13 

show up, he would run downstairs and get the box, 14 

the box had change in it, dollar bills, five 15 

dollars, and the wrist bands as well. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Where was the box kept? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  The box was kept in the 18 

office.   19 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you had access to the 20 

office? 21 

 MR. SMITH:  No, I did not. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  What happens if you would 1 

run out during the course of the night? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  I would -- Martin would 3 

handle it.  If I had run out of change, you mean?  4 

Or wrist bands? 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  I mean wrist bands. 6 

 MR. SMITH:  Wrist bands?  Martin would 7 

handle it.  He had more downstairs in the office. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  It was your testimony, and 9 

correct me if I'm wrong, that you would see 10 

people arrive at My Brother's Place and you knew 11 

they were underage and Martin let -- Martin 12 

instructed you to wrist band them anyway. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  It was Martin checking the 14 

IDs.  If there was somebody I knew -- allow me to 15 

clarify that.  If there was somebody I knew who 16 

was underage who presented a fake ID, I would 17 

tell Martin "that person is not over 21" but at 18 

Catholic University with a freshman class of 1000 19 

students I don't know everybody, especially being 20 

a senior. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Right.  So, if you saw 22 
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somebody who you knew was under 21, you would 1 

tell -- you would tell Mr. Scahill? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  And it was your testimony 4 

that he would instruct you to wrist band them 5 

anyway? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  No.  If I informed him that 7 

the person was under 21, I would put an under-21 8 

wrist band on that person and collect ten 9 

dollars.  10 

 MR. BIANCO:  I see. 11 

 MR. SMITH:  On the other hand, if someone 12 

came with a fake ID, and presented it to Martin, 13 

of which there were many fake IDs that Martin 14 

either accepted or took away, you know if Martin 15 

accepted the fake ID we didn't black light, we 16 

didn't scan IDs, the person was banded 21.   17 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, I just want to make sure 18 

I understand your testimony. 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Please. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  If you saw somebody who you 21 

knew was under 21 -- 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  Mm hmm. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay?  And Martin checked 2 

the ID -- 3 

 MR. SMITH:  mm hmm. 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  You then told Martin that 5 

person is under 21 and you didn't give them an 6 

over 21 wrist band, correct? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  I did not, no.   8 

 MR. BIANCO:  So you weren't letting them 9 

in knowingly being under 21. 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Anyone who I knew was under 11 

21 I would inform Martin that they were under 21. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  And he went along with you 13 

on that. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay. 16 

 MR. SMITH:  But -- but -- but as I said, 17 

if someone came up to me with -- came up to 18 

Martin with a fake ID, I mean, he would -- 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, if somebody comes in 20 

with a fake ID, shows Martin, you don't otherwise 21 

tell him "hey, I know that person, they're under 22 
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21" and that person would be able to get in. 1 

 MR. SMITH:  Sir, that's not what I said.  2 

I said that if I knew somebody who was under 21, 3 

follow me, if I knew somebody who was under 21 4 

and Martin looked at a fake ID for that person, 5 

and I knew that person, I would say, "no, Martin, 6 

that person is a freshman, he is under -- or she 7 

-- is under 21" Martin would look at the ID, ask 8 

them for their real one, if they gave him the 9 

real one as they normally did, being caught with 10 

a fake ID, they would be allowed in but banded 11 

under 21. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Under 21. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Great.  Thank you for the 15 

clarification.  You gave some testimony about a 16 

stop work order in 2013 that you were aware of 17 

that was issued? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.   19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Was that stop work order 20 

eventually lifted during the course of your 21 

employment? 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  To be truthful I do not know.  1 

Even after we got the stop work order we did 2 

continue to work, we'd just work at night.  I 3 

knew it was a stop work order because it was on 4 

the front door.  I mean, I saw it on the front 5 

door.  And Martin took it off of the front door 6 

and wasn't happy about it.  All we did was 7 

continue working at night. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you didn't know when or 9 

if it was lifted. 10 

 MR. SMITH:  I don't know if it was. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  And brief -- Sorry about 12 

that, Mr. Smith, I just had to confer with my 13 

client briefly. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  No worries. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Were you aware -- how did 16 

you become aware when Melles Hospitality Group 17 

switched over to HRH Services? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Easy.  Martin met with 19 

Abraham and Hallie who were both with, of course 20 

Abraham Melles, with Melles Hospitality Group.  I 21 

knew Abraham a little bit.  Martin had been 22 
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bringing him around.  Martin had described him as 1 

a friend.  Also I knew of Abraham, I used to work 2 

on U Street a long, long time ago in college.  3 

Abraham has some businesses there.  And Martin 4 

outright said to me, you know, "Abraham's going 5 

to invest in Melles -- rather into the business, 6 

into the Alibi" and Abraham came up. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Right.  How do you know when 8 

it switched over from Melles Hospitality to HRH 9 

Services? 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Martin told me. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Again, Martin told me, Martin 13 

informed me. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  When did he inform you of 15 

that happening? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  I wanna say October of '14, 17 

maybe a little earlier, honestly that was long 18 

ago, I can't remember, but Martin was the one who 19 

informed me that -- 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Is it possible it was 21 

January of '15. 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  No, I don't think so. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  And you haven't been back 2 

there since January 22nd of 2015? 3 

 MR. SMITH:  You got it. 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  And it's your testimony that 5 

you were terminated by Martin and not Rachel? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  By Martin. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you have any discussion 8 

with Rachel on that day of January the 22nd? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Discussion when? 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  At any point during that 11 

day. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah, earlier in the day, 13 

Rachel and I had spoken earlier in the day before 14 

I left, before Martin fired me.  Actually, while 15 

Martin and I were arguing with one another I did 16 

speak with Rachel very briefly just requesting 17 

that she get my personal property, whatever it 18 

may be, if I had any, out of the office. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  And did she? 20 

 MR. SMITH:  I don't think I had any 21 

property in the office at all.  I had tools in 22 
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the dish wash area.  I think my shoes were behind 1 

the main bar, and my, I think like my book bag 2 

and, like, my gloves were in the main bar area. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, Rachel's not the one 4 

that informed you that you were terminated and to 5 

gather your things? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  No, no.  At no point did 7 

Rachel inform me, it was all Martin. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Great, nothing further, 9 

thank you. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Board members?  11 

Yes, Mr. Silverstein. 12 

 CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SILVERSTEIN 13 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Thank you, Mr. Smith.  14 

Do you have -- did you ever tell Ms. Traverso 15 

that a customer was under 21 and yet she 16 

continued to serve that individual? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  I never saw Rachel outright 18 

serve another customer who was under 21, but 19 

Rachel did serve me when I was under 21, and 20 

multiple fraternity brothers of mine. 21 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Did she know? 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 1 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: She knew, how do you? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  I was a freshman in college. 3 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: And she knew that? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah.  The fraternity --  5 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: She knew your age? 6 

 MR. SMITH:  I'm sorry? 7 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: She knew your age? 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.  The fraternity at 9 

Catholic University way back when before Martin 10 

took over the door, a gentleman named Nelson 11 

essentially ran the business and Nelson let my 12 

older fraternity brothers run the door and that 13 

is how I, like, first kind of sort of, for lack 14 

of a better term, got my feet wet.  I mean, the 15 

younger fraternity guys, we would get slipped 16 

wrist bands by one of Nelson's people, you know 17 

under the table.  We'd walk up and, you know, 18 

Rachel knew that we were the freshmen, and yeah, 19 

that's true, Rachel served me when I was 19. 20 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: During your time as an 21 

employee there, do you have any direct knowledge 22 
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of any staffer in there, including Ms. Traverso, 1 

using illegal drugs while working inside the 2 

licensed establishment? 3 

 MR. SMITH:  During the time of My 4 

Brother's Place?  Yes.  Using illegal drugs at My 5 

Brother's Place by the employees?  Absolutely.   6 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Tell me more. 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, the kitchen staff:  8 

Cocaine, marijuana, I'm not too proud -- not too 9 

ashamed -- to admit I've smoked marijuana before, 10 

I had never used cocaine, I've seen bartenders -- 11 

I never saw Rachel use marijuana or cocaine while 12 

working. 13 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: You never saw Ms. 14 

Traverso use illegal drugs while working in this 15 

licensed establishment? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, it was My Brother's 17 

Place.  I never saw Rachel Traverso use 18 

marijuana.  As the Alibi, yes I have used 19 

marijuana with Rachel Traverso at the Alibi 20 

location, and Martin as well. 21 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Do you have any direct 22 
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knowledge or anyone harassing illegally, or 1 

soliciting others to harass illegally -- anyone 2 

directly because of this protest against this 3 

liquor license? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 5 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Directly as a result?  6 

Tell me more. 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Absolutely.  The day that a 8 

protest was filed by Mr. Parsons -- I can't 9 

forget it -- Martin went ballistic when he 10 

received it.  He lost his mind.  He was yelling 11 

and screaming at the common wall, yelling death 12 

threats, just erratic and bizarre and I told him, 13 

you know, I said, "Martin, relax, calm down, you 14 

know this is too much, chill out."  No he went on 15 

and on and on and on about it.  Then he went 16 

downstairs, started working on the tiles for a 17 

little bit.  Rachel was not present when this was 18 

going on. 19 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Ms. Traverso was not 20 

present. 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Ms. Traverso was not present 22 
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when this was going on.  Martin started to 1 

arrange the tiles but he was still grumbling and 2 

yelling and screaming sporadically.  Then Martin 3 

went and got like a razor blade knife, one of 4 

those little ones that you can break off the tip 5 

to resharpen the knife, you know the ones.  And 6 

he took that, he went outside, he saw that Mr. 7 

Parsons' car was outside, and I watched him, I'm 8 

like, "what are you gonna?"  And then I was like, 9 

"Oh, there you go."  Then he slashed the tire.  10 

That day, I told him, you know, "that's too much, 11 

that was silly, that was unnecessary."  I left 12 

for the rest of that day.  I didn't come back to 13 

work Saturday and then I called Martin on Sunday 14 

and I said, "are we working today?"  He said, 15 

"yes, we are working today."   16 

 So, I went down to the location, I 17 

actually took the metro that day.  Went down to 18 

the location.  We started, you know, resuming 19 

work, planning what we were going to do for that 20 

day.  Martin was still working on the tile.  I 21 

had been working on a wall upstairs and smoothing 22 
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out that wall, so we had a good amount of work to 1 

be done.  Martin came to me and said, "Chris go 2 

down to the homeless shelter there   -- to the 3 

Mitch Snyder Homeless Shelter there -- go down 4 

there and find me somebody."  I said, "for what?"  5 

And he was like, "well, I need some help, go find 6 

me somebody."  You know, sure, no problem, no 7 

problem at all.   8 

 I walked down there, saw a guy and said, 9 

"hey, I’m working at a restaurant down the 10 

street, we're working on building it, do you need 11 

a little bit of work?  We'll pay you $20."  The 12 

guy said, "sure, no problem."  He came back with 13 

me to the restaurant location and once again 14 

Rachel was not there.  Martin gave him a similar 15 

knife, it was a different color, but the exact 16 

same type of knife that he had used two days 17 

prior, and he gave that knife to this gentleman 18 

and said to him, "I'll give you $20 if you go 19 

slash two of the tires on the red Jaguar 20 

outside."  I looked at Martin and I said, "are 21 

you serious?  Are you serious?"   22 
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 So, I grabbed my book bag, took my gloves 1 

and prepared to leave.  And as I was leaving I 2 

was walking up the stairs next to the Department 3 

of Labor and I watched the homeless man slash the 4 

tires.  Later that evening, I called Martin and I 5 

told him, "I don't want anything to do with that 6 

sort of behavior anymore.  But, I still wanted to 7 

work, but I don't want to be part of that" 8 

because I thought, you know, that I could be in 9 

trouble or held accountable for that.  I went and 10 

found this man for you to tell him to do 11 

something like that. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, you knew you were 13 

complicit in this. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  If that's what it is, yes.  I 15 

did not know what Martin had intended for the man 16 

to do when I went and got him but the fact of the 17 

matter is, is that yes, I did go and get that 18 

man. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  No further questions, sir. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I have one 21 

question to ask you.  You stated that when Ms. 22 
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Traverso knew that she served you alcohol when 1 

you were a freshman. 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Is that correct? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Were you wearing 6 

that wrist band, over 21 wrist band? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Sometimes, it depended --  8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm asking you 9 

when you stated that she served you alcohol as a 10 

freshman, were you wearing an under -- over 21 11 

wrist band. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Allow me to answer. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm sorry? 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Allow me to answer. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm -- 16 

 MR. SMITH:  What happened was very often, 17 

most often, the young men of the fraternity we 18 

were just handed wrist bands under the table, all 19 

of us, some --  20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on -- hold on 21 

-- hold on -- hold on -- hold on -- 22 



349 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. SMITH:  --times we did not need to 1 

wear the wrist bands in order to be served.  2 

Normally, I was wearing an over 21 wrist band, 3 

yes. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  When I 5 

ask you a question, I need you to answer the 6 

direct question, okay?  You made certain 7 

statements and I want to know, so if I ask you a 8 

question, I need you to answer the direct 9 

question.  When your lawyer asks you a question, 10 

if you need explanation, you explain it to him, 11 

but if I ask you a question, I need an answer and 12 

I want you to answer.  You stated that she knew 13 

that you were a freshman.  How did she know that 14 

you were a freshman? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Because she knew the other 16 

fraternity brothers -- 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I said how did she 18 

know?  You stated, okay I'm asking a question.  I 19 

need you to listen to the question I'm asking you 20 

and answer the question sir.  The direct question 21 

I'm asking you -- you stated that she knew you 22 
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were a freshman.  How did she know?  How did you 1 

know that she knew that you were a freshman. 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Because I was introduced to 3 

her as a freshman pledge by one of the older 4 

fraternity brothers, the older --  5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  And, 6 

did she know that you were 19 years old? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  How did she know 9 

that you were 19 years old? 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Because we had spoken about 11 

it previously, or at some point as, like, we got 12 

to know each other better, outside of the bar.  13 

Sometimes we would stay until the bar closed.  It 14 

just came up in conversation but she absolutely 15 

knew.  Especially, I speak for myself when I say 16 

that I was 19, an older fraternity brother 17 

introduced me to her and her to me, and said, 18 

"this is Chris, he's one of our freshman 19 

pledges." 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay, but as a 21 

freshman that doesn't necessarily mean you're 19, 22 
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so that's what I'm trying to find out.  When did 1 

you tell -- when did -- how -- how did she -- you 2 

can be -- you can be a freshman and not be -- and 3 

you could be 21 but that doesn't necessarily mean 4 

you are 19, and so, therefore, the question I'm 5 

asking you, how did you know that she knew that 6 

you were 19 when she was serving you the liquor? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  It came up in conversation 8 

later on.  I can't specifically remember when, 9 

we're talking back to 2008, 2009, so --  10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You know, you have 11 

been very specific on certain on things, so I 12 

need you to be very specific and respond to the 13 

question, so if you don't know, you need to say 14 

no, but, anyway.  Other members will have 15 

questions they want to ask.  Go ahead, Mr. 16 

Alberti. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Mr. Smith, I'm going to 18 

continue in that vein, since we're there. 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Excuse me, Mr. Alberti, I 20 

can't hear you that well. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I'm sorry.  I'm going to 22 
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continue in this line -- in this same line of 1 

questioning since we're on that track right now.  2 

So, I think you're testifying that there came a 3 

time when you were introduced as a freshman 4 

pledge to Ms. Traverso. 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And she sold you alcohol. 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir.  Yes. 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Did she ask you for an ID 9 

after being introduced as a freshman pledge? 10 

 MR. SMITH:  No. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  And them you said at 12 

some point you got to know her better. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And it was your impression 15 

that she knew you were under 21. 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Why did you have that 18 

impression? 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Essentially, as I said, as we 20 

got to know each other better, you know being 21 

introduced to her and being around her and the 22 
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Brother bar staff and other bartenders and 1 

Martin, along with my fraternity brothers, you 2 

know, very often staying there until very early 3 

hours of the morning, we came to talk a lot.  I'm 4 

very sure that in conversation at some point, you 5 

know, maybe Martin, maybe somebody else, maybe 6 

Rachel, had asked, you know, how old we really 7 

are, something like that.  Or the older 8 

fraternity brothers would mention it.  As I said, 9 

that conversation was very long ago, but I do 10 

know that she knows. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  During that time, or around 12 

that time, do you know how old Rachel was? 13 

 MR. SMITH:  No.  Personally, I do not.  I 14 

never bothered to ask her. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, I mean you refer to the 16 

alcohol in the early days, you said that Mr. -- 17 

the owner, Mr. Nelson was in charge, right? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, Nelson Arias. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Oh, Nelson Arias.  Mr. 20 

Arias was in charge.  So, when did Mr. Scahill 21 

come to work there, perform any tasks for the 22 
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establishment? 1 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, Martin and Nelson had 2 

known each other for a very long time.  This is 3 

through my conversation with Martin.  You spent a 4 

lot of time with Martin so we would talk about a 5 

lot.  Martin and Nelson knew each other for a 6 

very long time and they had been friends a very 7 

long time, and Nelson would have Martin come in 8 

to essentially manage the location, especially at 9 

night, to run the door.  So, before July 4th of 10 

'13 when the location shut down, Martin had been 11 

working at My Brother's Place much longer than I 12 

had been. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Oh, so Martin was there -- 14 

Martin was working there when you were introduced 15 

to the establishment. 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Oh yes, yes. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Just wanted to 18 

understand that.  So, when did you say, when did 19 

you start frequenting the establishment? 20 

 MR. SMITH:  It would have been fall 21 

semester of 2008. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  Fall semester of 2008. 1 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.   3 

 MR. SMITH:  The first time I went to the 4 

establishment was fall of 2008.  I actually began 5 

to really frequent the establishment in the 6 

following spring semester. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, 2009.  8 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, when you were a 10 

frequent customer in 2009, did you see Mr. 11 

Scahill there? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  All the time. 13 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All the time? 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah, you know. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  What was his -- what was he 16 

doing there? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  He'd run the door, he would 18 

be inside managing the bartenders.  He was just 19 

all around essentially an employee managing the 20 

place.  I didn't know his exact role then.  Or 21 

his exact job title. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Did he ever allow 1 

you in without checking an ID? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When did you meet Ms. 4 

Traverso? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  The same time I met Martin. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When was that? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Originally and initially met 8 

them in fall of '08, got to know them and really, 9 

like, meet them in spring of '09. 10 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay. 11 

 MR. SMITH:  To clarify, I also pledged to 12 

fraternity in spring of '09.  So that's when my 13 

in at the restaurant --  14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  How did you come to meet 15 

Ms. Traverso, was she a customer?  Was she 16 

working there? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  She was a bartender there. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  She was a bartender.  19 

Spring of 2009, she was a bartender. 20 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.  Fall of 2008 she was a 21 

bartender.  Okay. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  How often -- how often did 1 

you go in 2009?  So let's say 2009 through -- 2 

throughout 2009, from the spring of 2009 on -- 3 

how often did you go? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  All the time.  That whole 5 

semester, that was our hangout especially for the 6 

young -- 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  What do you mean all the 8 

time?  What's that mean?  How often? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  At least once a week -- at 10 

least once a week -- at least once a week, 11 

Friday, yeah, Saturday and also on Thursday they 12 

had $15 all you can drink Thursdays, so I'd be 13 

there on Thursday, too. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, how often was Ms. 15 

Traverso there? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  She was there at least two 17 

out of the three days, if I made it all three 18 

days, I would see her maybe Friday-Saturday or 19 

maybe Thursday-Saturday, or Thursday-Friday.  But 20 

I would see her at least twice a week in the 21 

beginning. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  So, when did you start -- 1 

when did you actually start working there? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Not for years later.  Not 3 

until I was a senior.  Not until I was a second 4 

semester senior. 5 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, so from the time you 6 

were a freshman until you were a senior, did you 7 

frequent -- 8 

 MR. SMITH:  My Brother's Place? 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Until it closed, I guess. 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, yes.  It actually closed 11 

in 2013 after I completed grad school. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Right. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  I worked there throughout 14 

grad school as well. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.   16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And how often did you see 17 

Ms. Traverso there then? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Every time I was at work.  19 

Every time I was at -- 20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Not when you were working, 21 

before when you were a patron. 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  When I was a patron?  About 1 

twice a week, twice a week, no less than once a 2 

week, during the time that I was a patron I 3 

turned 21 in January of 2011 so myself and my 4 

friends we didn't frequent My Brother's Place as 5 

much but we still would go regularly and I still 6 

would see Rachel regularly. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  What's regularly mean? 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Maybe once a week at that 9 

point.  We would stop by there once a week.  10 

Maybe like on a Monday evening after  everyone's 11 

done with work, internship, class -- we would get 12 

together, myself and a few fraternity brothers 13 

and head down there. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Was Ms. Traverso there more 15 

often than not? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah. 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Was she there how often?  18 

Like --  19 

 MR. SMITH:  Well every time I was there 20 

she was definitely there.  So, in that time after 21 

turning 21 I want to say I started seeing her 22 
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maybe like 4 times a month.   1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, thank you.  So, when 2 

did you start working there -- you know the 3 

construction work you were doing?  When did that 4 

start? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  For the Alibi?  Or for -- for 6 

the Alibi then. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Well, at that location. 8 

 MR. SMITH:  At that location. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Doing that construction. 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Doing the construction, 11 

renovation work, we began work in August of 2013. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  August of 2013? 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And you said that you 15 

continued working regularly until January? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  January 22nd was my final day 17 

there. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  22nd -- 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Of 2015.  20 

 MR. ALBERTI:  2015. 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, a little more than a 22 
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year ago.   1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Am I correct that you were 2 

working pretty regularly? 3 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah, every day. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Every day? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  During that period? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah. 8 

 MR. ALBERTI:  All right.  How'd you get 9 

paid? 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Martin would pay me in cash. 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Martin would pay you in 12 

cash. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Martin would pay me in cash. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Weekly?  Monthly? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Weekly. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Weekly.  Did anyone else 17 

pay you? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  No, only Martin. 19 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Martin would pay. 20 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah.  Every Friday Martin 21 

would say, "Oh, I'm going to the bank" and he'd 22 
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head off to the bank and he'd come back and give 1 

me the $400 of $500. 2 

 MR. ALBERTI:  When's the last time you 3 

got paid? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Ooh, that's funny.  Because 5 

Martin hadn't paid me at all in January, he 6 

hadn't paid me in December, he hadn't paid me in 7 

November.  I want to say the last time he may 8 

have paid me was in October, but I -- I wrote it 9 

down -- I had written it down.  But there were a 10 

few times that he just didn't pay me, and times 11 

that he didn't pay me, but he would always 12 

promise me that when we got the restaurant open 13 

and got the restaurant going, that I would 14 

receive back pay from it. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, did you ever discuss 16 

pay with Ms. Traverso? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  No. 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It was only Mr. Scahill 19 

that you discussed pay with? 20 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah. 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  During the later part of 22 
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2014 and going into January 2015, did you ever 1 

take directions from Ms. Traverso? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  No. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It was always Mr. Scahill? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Always, yeah.  Martin was my 5 

direct boss.  I would ask him questions and he 6 

would give me answers and commands. 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  And that was going on 8 

through January of 2015? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Mm hmm. Unless Martin ran out 10 

or something or he had something he had to do 11 

during the day.  Then Rachel would be in charge.  12 

But Martin was, I guess, the leader of the 13 

operation. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay.  Did he ever discuss 15 

with you the sort of business structure of what 16 

was going on? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  What do you mean? 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  You know, we have shifts in 19 

companies, I mean you know that Melles owned the 20 

company for a while --  21 

 MR. SMITH:  Mm hmm. 22 
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 MR. ALBERTI:  I think you testified that 1 

it was HRH and then Melles and then -- 2 

 MR. SMITH:  HRH again. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That's what you testified, 4 

all right? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes.  Yes. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  But when it went from 7 

Melles to HRH, was that the same HRH as the 8 

earlier company as far as you knew? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  As far as I knew, it was 10 

Martin's HRH, again HRH stands for Her Royal 11 

Highness, that's Martin's entity, so when Martin 12 

said we were back to HRH, I was under the 13 

influence and believed him that it was just him 14 

again. 15 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Did he ever discuss any of 16 

the financial dealings of the establishment with 17 

you? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Here and there he would say 19 

things like Abraham, referring to Mr. Melles, 20 

Abraham hasn't paid me enough, Abraham hasn't 21 

done anything for me lately, referring to monies, 22 
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but really that was the extent. 1 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I have no further 2 

questions, thank you. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, Ms. Miller. 4 

 MS. MILLER:  Good evening.  I just want 5 

to cut to the chase here, because our hearing is 6 

about qualifications and my question to you is do 7 

you believe that Ms. Traverso, Rachel Traverso or 8 

Richard Traverso is unfit to have an alcohol 9 

license? 10 

 MR. SMITH:  Do I believe that personally? 11 

 MS. MILLER:  Yes. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Personally, to Rachel I would 13 

say no. 14 

 MS. MILLER:  No what? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Because --  16 

 MS. MILLER:  I know she is fit -- or no -17 

- 18 

 MR. SMITH:  No, she is not fit. 19 

 MS. MILLER:  She is not fit. 20 

 MR. SMITH:  She's not fit. 21 

 MS. MILLER:  In your opinion. 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  In my opinion and did I base 1 

my opinion on the fact that I know the 2 

relationship between Martin and Rachel? 3 

 MS. MILLER:  Know? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  I'm sorry? 5 

 MS. MILLER:  In the present tense?  You 6 

know the relationship? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Knew. 8 

 MS. MILLER:  Knew. 9 

 MR. SMITH:  Excuse me, allow me to 10 

rephrase that.  I knew, in the past tense -- 11 

 MS. MILLER:  Knew? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  -- the relationship between 13 

Martin and Rachel.  As of January 22nd, I have 14 

not had any regular communications with them.  We 15 

have had incidents.  August the 27th at the DDOT 16 

Board, Martin currently has a HATS order against 17 

him which protects myself and Mr. Parsons.  18 

Martin grabbed me that day.  He grabbed me by the 19 

shoulders --  20 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay, I'm asking you about 21 

Ms. Traverso. 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  Ms. Traverso sat there 1 

laughing and giggling and making jokes behind my 2 

back.  She's completely ruled over by Martin.  3 

Martin is a very domineering person.  Martin is a 4 

very persuasive person.  Also, at the June 5 

hearing for Mr. Melles, Rachel in court, in front 6 

of the judge, stuck up her middle fingers at me 7 

and told me to "F" myself, in court.  So, 8 

personally, to answer your question, no I do not 9 

think that Rachel is fit for licensure. 10 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay.  And my other 11 

question, last question, is have you worked for 12 

any other alcohol establishments other than the 13 

ones we've discussed here?   14 

 MR. SMITH:  No.   15 

 MS. MILLER:  Okay, thank you. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes, Mr. Short. 17 

 MR. SHORT:  Thank you for your testimony, 18 

Mr. Smith.  Your testimony has been quite 19 

compelling and it sounds like you really got tied 20 

in -- 21 

 MR. SMITH:  I'm sorry, sir? 22 
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 MR. SHORT:  You really got tied in at a 1 

very young age. 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 3 

 MR. SHORT:  And the act of going to the 4 

shelter to pick someone up and that person 5 

cutting those tires could [inaudible 5-1:26] 6 

prison for years.  So, you're complicit.  Excuse 7 

me.  So, you have some complicity in this. 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 9 

 MR. SHORT:  You realize you're testifying 10 

and this is the public records. 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 12 

 MR. SHORT:  So, you're telling the truth 13 

and the whole truth. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Absolutely.  I wouldn't have 15 

said that I smoked marijuana or that I went and 16 

found somebody to commit a crime, against my 17 

knowledge, without --  18 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, so a licensed -- a 19 

licensed alcohol business in Washington D.C., 20 

they have some very strict rules about illegal 21 

acts.  So, your testimony is you were complicit, 22 
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along with applicant and others in the business, 1 

doing illegal drugs.  2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I -- I --  4 

 MR. SHORT:  I asked him was he complicit? 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, it's not, 6 

it's not illegal in the District of Columbia to 7 

smoke marijuana --  8 

 MR. SMITH:  It was at that time. 9 

 MR. SHORT:  When did that become legal? 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm just saying, 11 

but, I do want the record, but, so you need to 12 

answer the question based on -- I just wanted the 13 

record to be heard. 14 

 MR. SHORT:  The law to legally grow or 15 

smoke marijuana just took place 2014.  When did 16 

you observe smoking marijuana and people using 17 

cocaine in the establishment that you're 18 

testifying about today?  What years? 19 

 MR. SMITH:  2013, 2014, 2015.  Even up to 20 

January 22nd of 2015.   21 

 MR. SHORT:  When you were a freshman and 22 
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you first started going there with your brothers, 1 

was there any illegal drug use going on then? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 3 

 MR. SHORT:  So what year was that? 4 

 MR. SMITH:  2008, 2009, 2010. 5 

 MR. SHORT:  So, I know marijuana was not 6 

legal then.  There are probably a lot of people 7 

still in prison right now for smoking marijuana 8 

or selling marijuana.  And getting to that point, 9 

did you observe any selling or anyone passing out 10 

drugs in the club to --? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, but it was neither Ms. 12 

Traverso nor Mr. Scahill.  They were Nelson 13 

Arias' associates that were doing that. 14 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, so neither one of them 15 

knew that this was going on? 16 

 MR. SMITH:  I can't answer that, because 17 

I don't know what they did and didn't know, 18 

honestly.  Whether Martin did know or whether 19 

Martin didn't know, whether Rachel knew, whether 20 

Rachel didn't know, I don't know. 21 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, and it is your 22 
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testimony that you feel that Martin has a very 1 

strong, highly opinionated personality? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 3 

 MR. SHORT:  And that he still has a hand 4 

in the business as it goes right now? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 6 

 MR. SHORT:  Why would you say that? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Well, why I can say that is 8 

because not very long ago, after The Alibi opened 9 

up some of my friends from college went on down 10 

there and had dinner -- well, they ate, I don't 11 

know what they had -- but a few of them texted me 12 

later on and said, "hey aren't you, like, in the 13 

business with Martin?  Aren't you down there 14 

working in the old Brothers with Martin, the food 15 

was great, yada, yada, yada," and I said, "No, 16 

I'm not in business with Martin anymore. I don't 17 

work for Martin."  And they just laughed and 18 

said, "oh, yeah, we saw Martin, we talked to 19 

Martin, we laughed with Martin about My Brother's 20 

Place." 21 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, and that was what, what 22 
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date was that? 1 

 MR. SMITH:  I could tell you if I have my 2 

phone. 3 

 MR. SHORT:  Yes, please, give us the 4 

date. 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Would you like me to get my 6 

phone? 7 

 MR. SHORT:  Yes, please.  And before you 8 

answer that again, were these students of 9 

Catholic University at this present time? 10 

 MR. SMITH:  No. 11 

 MR. SHORT:  These were former. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Former, alumni, along, they 13 

were in my grade, so. 14 

 MR. SHORT:  What -- can you give us a 15 

date and time you talked with them about -- 16 

 MR. SMITH:  For, for.  How do I say this?  17 

The way that we communicated was through a new 18 

app called Snapchat.  Where you can send messages 19 

and text to people.  It saves the date and the 20 

time, but it doesn't show the --  21 

 MR. SHORT:  What's the date and time? 22 
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 MR. SMITH:  It just shows the date. 1 

 MR. SHORT:  What's the date? 2 

 MR. SMITH:  The date on there is January 3 

the 12th. 4 

 MR. SHORT:  Of 2015? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 6 

 MR. PARSONS and MR. ALBERTI:  '16. 7 

 MR. SHORT:  2016. 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Excuse me, 21016, excuse me. 9 

 MR. SHORT:  Thank you very much, Mr. 10 

Alberti. 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, the young lady that --  12 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, that's good enough. 13 

 MR. SMITH:  Okay. 14 

 MR. SHORT:  You have that on your phone, 15 

that's a part of, that's what I have on the 16 

record that you're not just coming off the top of 17 

your head. 18 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah, right. 19 

 MR. SHORT:  You're using your phone, they 20 

said they talked with Mr. Scahill. 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 22 
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 MR. SHORT:  This establishment --  1 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 2 

 MR. SHORT:  On January 12, 2016. 3 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, yes, yes, that was --  4 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, now this question goes 5 

back to Catholic University.  I don't know if 6 

you're aware or not, if you are I want you to 7 

comment.  The Catholic University wrote this 8 

board, they're very concerned about this business 9 

and the number of students going down there 10 

getting involved in illegal acts and coming back 11 

to campus drunk.  Can you comment on that? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Absolutely.  On top of having 13 

been written up for incidents involving alcohol 14 

at Catholic University coming back from My 15 

Brother's Place, times when I was in the 16 

fraternity and the fraternity was working the 17 

door, before Martin really took over the door, 18 

when the fraternity was running it, the older 19 

guys in the fraternity, I was implicated 20 

personally.  I had to go see Dean Omar Torres, 21 

Amy Kerr, I believe, yeah, Amy Kerr, Dean Rachel 22 
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Wainer, as well as the disciplinary, David Best 1 

at CUA and was  held accountable for my actions.  2 

At that time I was told personally that as an 3 

underage student I was no longer, by CUA, allowed 4 

to work the door, I didn't work again, the door, 5 

and everything, until I was over 21.  I had to do 6 

community service.  I had to write a letter home 7 

to my parents and I had to pay a fine.  So, yes, 8 

Catholic University fully knew and I was 9 

involved. 10 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, so you paid the fine to 11 

the school. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Absolutely. 13 

 MR. SHORT:  Okay, so what are you doing 14 

right now?  Are you employed anywhere now? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 16 

 MR. SHORT:  Where are you employed now? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  It's funny.  February of last 18 

year, February 2nd, I made the decision to get 19 

sober -- 20 

 MR. SHORT:  Good. 21 

 MR. SMITH:  -- and I continued to be 22 
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sober to this day and I met a young man in AA who 1 

was very good with computer software and I'm also 2 

very tech savvy, very good with software as well, 3 

and we decided to open up a software business 4 

together --  5 

 MR. SHORT:  That's good, yeah.  So your 6 

testimony today is you overcame the situation of 7 

being employed at that establishment.  You're 8 

doing well now, you're sober, and you're -- 9 

you're -- you're hoping that this doesn't happen 10 

to other young people, is that fair to say? 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 12 

 MR. SHORT:  All right.  Thank you very 13 

much again for your, again very compelling, 14 

testimony.  That's all I have, Mr. Chair. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right. You 16 

guys can ask questions on follow-up questions; 17 

however, I made a ruling before that I didn't 18 

allow  questions on these criminal -- alleged 19 

criminal conduct -- so I'm not going to allow 20 

follow-up on that.  Mr. Bianco, if you have -- if 21 

you'd have objected to the questions being asked 22 
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by the board member I would have made a ruling on 1 

that.   2 

 MR. BIANCO:  [inaudible 5-1:34:00]. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I have seen here 4 

and seen attorneys object to board members 5 

questioning and - 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  I generally do so sparingly. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I've seen it done 8 

-- I've seen it done -- and I myself have 9 

questioned it, but I was told that that's 10 

appropriate for to occur. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  I try not to. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  With that -- with 13 

that said --  14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Yeah --  15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  -- that did not 16 

open the door up for questions that you had 17 

initially objected to and I sustained the 18 

objection, so by all means, so please do not 19 

violate your own rule.  I've been a since the 20 

ruling to ask questions that you had previously 21 

objected to and I had sustained your objection.  22 
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If that's done, I would allow Mr. Parsons the 1 

opportunity. 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  No further questions, your 3 

Honor. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, no, he wasn't 5 

done yet, but yeah. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  Oh, oh, I misunderstood. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Oh, I thought you were going 8 

to Mr. Parson. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Oh, I'm sorry, I 10 

forgot that he's your witness. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  I have no questions. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. 13 

Pars -- Mr. Bianco. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Unless he asks one that 15 

triggers one. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, from the time that the 17 

lease was assigned to HRH Services, which was on 18 

January 15th of 2015, through your last day of 19 

employment, seven days later, January 22nd, 2015, 20 

did you notice any change in the operations? 21 

 MR. SMITH:  No, what do you mean by 22 
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operations?  Like the hierarchy of who was in 1 

charge?  No, it was always Martin.   2 

 MR. BIANCO:  And at that point customers 3 

weren't being served, right?   4 

 MR. SMITH:  No.  5 

 MR. BIANCO:  Food wasn't being ordered. 6 

 MR. SMITH:  No. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  A restaurant wasn't being 8 

run. 9 

 MR. SMITH:  No. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  It was a construction site. 11 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And Martin was acting 13 

as the foreman of the construction site, would 14 

that be a fair assessment? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  Yeah. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  You were terminated 17 

from this job, right? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  By Martin, yes. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  I want to talk about 20 

the day you were terminated a bit. 21 

 MR. SMITH:  Go ahead. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Were you intoxicated when 1 

you arrived to work?  2 

 MR. SMITH: No. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Did you have a driver's 4 

license during that period of time? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, and I still do. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  You weren't -- your license 7 

wasn't suspended then. 8 

 MR. SMITH:  Never has been. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, you weren't terminated 10 

because you drove to work on a suspended license 11 

and showed up intoxicated? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  That's ridiculous.  That's 13 

preposterous.  I still had my license, I can go 14 

get it to show you. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  And that was the case in 16 

January '15, you weren't on a suspended license 17 

in January? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  I've never had a suspended 19 

license in my life. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  You testifi -- it was your 21 

testimony that, in your opinion, Ms. Traverso is 22 
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not fit for licensure, correct? 1 

 MR. SMITH:   Based on the question that 2 

the board member asked me, yes. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  And -- and if I understood 4 

correctly, the basis for your opinion is that -- 5 

is because of her relationship with Martin, is 6 

that a fair assessment of your -- ? 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Not just that, sir.  Also, 8 

Ms. Traverso herself.  Also, Ms. Traverso 9 

herself.  Giving me the middle finger --  10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Right. 11 

 MR. SMITH:  -- in the courtroom at the 12 

Melles hearing. 13 

 MR. BIANCO: Mm hmm. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Would you want somebody to 15 

have an ABRA license that gives you a middle 16 

finger in a courtroom? 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  So. 18 

 MR. SMITH:  But you ask the questions.  19 

I'm sorry. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  It's okay, I appreciate the 21 

testimony.  So, your opinion is based on Rachel 22 
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giving you the middle finger and the fact that 1 

you were terminated from this employment and the 2 

fact that they owed you money, the fact that 3 

Martin grabbed you at a hearing -- that you're 4 

engaged in a criminal case right now? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  I don't believe that I 6 

mentioned in my answer to her question anything 7 

about me being terminated, anything about me 8 

being owed money or whatever else it is you tried 9 

to sandwich in there. 10 

 MS. GIRARD:  But all those things are 11 

true, correct? 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Can you restate them again? 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Sure. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Please. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  Sure.  This is an employer 16 

who you have a negative opinion about.  This 17 

employer you alleged terminated you wrongfully.  18 

This an employer you allege owes you money.  This 19 

is an employer that you allege grabbed you -- 20 

 MR. SMITH:  I never actually alleged that 21 

he owed me money.  I said that I had not been 22 
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paid.  I never said that he owed it to me, I 1 

never had any notion that I was going to go after 2 

him to collect money. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Well, hold on, so are you 4 

saying they don't owe you money? 5 

 MR. SMITH:  I'm not saying it one way or 6 

the other.  I'm not saying yes or no. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Well, I'm asking directly, 8 

do they owe you money? 9 

 MR. SMITH:  I'll restate again, they did 10 

not pay me for the time that I completed there. 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Great. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  So, if you want to write down 13 

that I was owed money, that's your writing it 14 

down, I never stated that for the record. 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, you're saying that they 16 

don't owe you money but they never paid you for 17 

work that you did? 18 

 MR. SMITH:  If that's how you want to say 19 

it. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Do I , do I, I'm asking you 21 

-- 22 



384 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Hold on. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  This bickering. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Bianco ask a 3 

question.  Mr. Smith, answer the question. 4 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir.  5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  There should be no 6 

back and forth.  If Mr. Bianco asks a direct 7 

question you can ask whatever questions you need 8 

to do and the witness answers the question. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Now, at the conclusion of 10 

your testimony you said some things that 11 

indicated that you're in recovery. 12 

 MR. SMITH:  Yes, sir. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Congratulations on that. 14 

 MR. SMITH:  Thank you very much.   15 

 MR. BIANCO:  That is an amazing 16 

accomplishment. 17 

 MR. SMITH:  That is appreciated. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  But I want to, I want to 19 

focus on the period before that.  You're an 20 

actively alcoholic or drug addict? 21 

 MR. SMITH:  I would drink alcohol often 22 
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to excess. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  And that was during your 2 

period of employment at My Brother's Place? 3 

 MR. SMITH:  At My Brother's Place?  When 4 

I was in college, yes.  But the nights I was 5 

working I wouldn't really drink during while I 6 

was working. 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  During the period of your 8 

employment at The Alibi.  9 

 MR. SMITH:  Martin and I would drink a 10 

lot, yeah.  We would -- after work -- head to 11 

Hamiltons next door, eat and drink.  We would 12 

head to 708 G, use marijuana and drink. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  And that would be on a daily 14 

basis? 15 

 MR. SMITH:  At least four days a week. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  During working hours? 17 

 MR. SMITH:  After work. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  After work only? 19 

 MR. SMITH:  Sometimes at work we would 20 

have a drink, yes.  Sometimes at lunch in the 21 

middle of work we would have a drink, yes. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Brief indulgence.  I don't 1 

have anything further, thank you. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No questions? 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes sir.  No sir.  Thank 4 

you. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You're excused, 6 

sir.  You can step down. 7 

 MR. SMITH:  Thank you, sir. 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Do you have any 10 

other witness, any other witness or evidence you 11 

need to present, sir? 12 

 MR. PARSONS:  At the hearing on the 6th I 13 

had my associate with me and we would have been 14 

able to conduct a usual question and answer.  He, 15 

unfortunately, had a hearing today, so with the 16 

court's permission I'd like to just give my 17 

testimony on my own.  Nobody's questioning me.  18 

I've nobody to feed the questions. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I guess there is -20 

- I guess the way you're asking, what's going to 21 

be the difference between the testimony that 22 
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you're giving now and the quest -- and when 1 

you're going to give a closing statement? 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  It'll be considerably 3 

different.  I'm going to be trying to make 4 

certain factual presentations in the testimony to 5 

give a basis to argue to the extent the 6 

inferences exist in there later. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And Mr. Bianco 8 

would have an opportunity to cross examine you? 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  He will indeed.  Thank you, 10 

sir. 11 

 UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  If he wants to sit 12 

there that might be -- 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You can, well, you 14 

don’t have to sit over there, just -- if you can 15 

raise your right hand, please. 16 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Do you swear or 18 

affirm to tell the truth and nothing but the 19 

truth, so help you? 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  I do. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay. 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  My name is Charles Parsons.  1 

I reside at 129 C Street SE, Washington D.C. 2 

20003, and my office is located at 128 C Street 3 

Northwest.  So I live on one side of the Capitol 4 

and my office is on the other.  My wife and I own 5 

128 C Street and we also own the building next to 6 

it, 126 C Street.  I have owned these buildings 7 

since 1984, I think it is, '84 or '85 at 126.  I 8 

bought 128 later and I renovated 128 and moved 9 

into it and I've had my law practice in there 10 

since 2000, June of 2000.  Over that time, I have 11 

shared a common wall with the establishment at 12 

237 Second Street Northwest.   13 

 For a long period of -- and I've been in 14 

that neighborhood, my office before I moved to 15 

126 was at 400 First Street Northwest at the 16 

corner of 1st and D, so I know this area 17 

extremely well.  I mean, I've been there 18 

continuously since 1975.  In any event, for -- 19 

when I formally moved into 128 C Street in 2000 20 

it was My Brother's Place right next door and it 21 

was run by a gentleman named John McManus, and 22 
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Mr. McManus was an extremely easy man to work 1 

with and we got along very nicely.  If there was 2 

noise, if there was rats, if there was broken 3 

bottles, if there was barf on the sidewalk or 4 

that sort of thing, all I had to do is go see 5 

John and it would be -- it would be ironed out.  6 

I had no trouble.   7 

 Unfortunately, in 2004, John sold out his 8 

interest in My Brother's Place to Nelson Arias, 9 

or his group, Arias Incorporated.  To be honest 10 

with you, and I know they occupied My Brother's 11 

Place and ran it from 2004 until the middle 12 

sometime of 2013.  I wasn't sure when they were 13 

closed -- when they went out of -- when they were 14 

evicted.  But in any event, that proved to be 15 

very problematic.  There -- Mr. Arias and his 16 

group could be -- we had a lot of rats, we had a 17 

lot of underage drinking going on with barf -- 18 

they seem to know how to come around the corner 19 

onto C Street and barf all over there and break 20 

their beer bottles there.  No amount of 21 

complaining, no amount of argue -- requesting the 22 
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Arias group to stop that or to "let's try to get 1 

along as neighbors" did any good.   2 

 Perhaps the most troubling thing is  3 

toward the end -- toward the latter stages before 4 

2013, was the noise that was coming through my 5 

wall.  I know that I could hear chipping going on 6 

on the other side and from time to time I would 7 

go over and see what was going on and they were 8 

chipping the plaster off the common wall.  There 9 

were times when they would have -- they had rock 10 

bands in on the second floor, but the big thing 11 

was they had these powerful woofers by the bar on 12 

the first floor, and they would start cranking 13 

those up at 4:00 in the afternoon when my 14 

associate and my paralegals and I were working 15 

there.  And all we'd go over and complain.  And 16 

it was a very surly group that -- that didn't 17 

really pay much attention.   18 

 In any event, when 2013 came, and Nelson 19 

was evicted, I started watching to see what was 20 

going to go on in their place.  And over that 21 

time I actually met Ms. Bisker who is an owner of 22 
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the building and Mr. Luttner who is her business 1 

agent.  And I asked them what -- what was going 2 

on, and they said they had a new tenant and I 3 

said fine, I'd really like to try to work with 4 

these people because if we can just cut out the 5 

sound things will be hopefully good.   6 

 So, Mr. Scahill, I met Mr. Scahill as I 7 

recall for the first time.  I thought I had seen 8 

him around but I didn't go over to My Brother's 9 

Place very much.  But -- but when I met him, I 10 

said, "look the big concern that I have here is 11 

the sound coming through my building and, you 12 

know the broken bottles."  Oh, well we'll work 13 

with you on that.  So, from about the beginning 14 

of September up until the first week of December 15 

I was literally going in there -- where my office 16 

is, I go around the corner -- around the 2nd and 17 

C Street corner, and I go usually down to a deli 18 

called Capitol Café where literally the food you 19 

buy you weigh, you only pay for what you put on 20 

your plate.  They weigh it and you pay for it.   21 

 So, I would go buy it and on the way I 22 
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would stop in very regularly and when the 1 

construction was going on and I can tell you that 2 

I became concerned because I was observing -- 3 

they had yanked up the flooring, they exposed the 4 

joists, there was a lot of dripping water in 5 

there, and there was a lot of structural work.  6 

There was walls being taken out down in the 7 

basement and I could see lally columns being 8 

placed to hold up these joists, and literally 9 

when you walk in there you could look right down 10 

through the first floor into the basement.  It 11 

was a very, very extensive construction job, and 12 

there were no permits. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object  14 

 MR. PARSONS:  And I actually -- 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object, as to 16 

again the discussion of construction, the 17 

allegations of no permits, all of the other 18 

things that we've been over numerous times, that 19 

Mr. Parsons has been instructed are not 20 

admissible as evidence.  I'm going to ask that he 21 

be required to abide by the previous rulings and 22 
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to allow me to make objections if he's going to 1 

continue to wade into areas that he's already 2 

been instructed numerous times not to. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained and you 4 

are aware, Mr. Parsons, what these areas are. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  In any event around the 6 

first week of December I became aware of roof 7 

work being done and I could hear people walking 8 

on top of my roof. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.   10 

 MR. PARSONS:  And as a result of that -- 11 

all right, go ahead. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's overruled 13 

because he just said that there was roof work and 14 

he heard people on it, so that's -- 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm just trying to 16 

anticipate where we're going.   17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Don't anticipate.  18 

Let him go there first. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  I -- I will -- 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  It's a little tougher when 21 

he's going into the narrative than it would be 22 
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with questions. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I know. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm doing my best. 3 

 MS. MILLER:  True, true, that's true. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go ahead. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  When I heard people on the 6 

roof, I went around to My Brother's Place, I went 7 

inside, I crawled up a ladder, and there was a 8 

hatch that had been removed and I could see 9 

workmen working on the parapet which is atop the 10 

common wall between my building and the -- and 11 

where the -- My Brother's Place was.  I could see 12 

that these guys were sawing and they were 13 

cutting, and within a week I had water coming 14 

down inside my building --  15 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object.  16 

There's a superior court case dealing with this 17 

issue, it's not an issue here, it has nothing to 18 

do with qualification. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Overruled.  I 20 

don't -- I -- he's just -- I'm hoping just giving 21 

us some background to get to the point, so -- 22 



395 
 

OLENDER REPORTING, INC. 
1100 Connecticut Avenue N.W., #810, Washington, D.C. 20036 

Washington: 202‐898‐1108 • Baltimore: 410‐752‐3376 
Toll Free: 888‐445‐3376 

 MR. PARSONS:  As a result of the water 1 

that came into my building, I called DCRA and a 2 

stop work order was placed on My Brother's Place.  3 

That ended any cordiality between myself and Mr. 4 

Scahill and the people that were working for him.  5 

The people that I was aware that were working for 6 

him was Ms. Traverso, I know Martin was there, 7 

his sister was there, Mr. Smith was there, and 8 

there were -- there was a couple of other people 9 

but I didn't know who they were.  But they had 10 

this stop order.   11 

 So, after a time the stop work order was 12 

removed but I stopped going -- I was persona non 13 

grata at My Brother's Place, so, of course, I 14 

didn't go over there anymore.  But over the -- 15 

the -- the -- now this as I say, the stop work 16 

order was issued December 17th of 2013, the order 17 

got lifted I think sometime in February, and I 18 

became very concerned -- well -- when I say I'm 19 

persona non grata, when I would walk around the 20 

corner to go to the restaurant, Mr. Scahill, a 21 

British gentleman, had a very very invective way 22 
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of speaking.  He was cursing.  He was always 1 

cursing me.  He cursed my associate, Charles 2 

Krikawa, when we would go there.  He was 3 

obviously very, very incensed that we had called 4 

attention to the authorities and stopped this 5 

work for a time.  I then started going to DCRA 6 

because I knew the work that was going on was 7 

there, was illegal --  8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- so I went to the permit 10 

department and pulled records on them -- 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Where is he going? 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Overruled for the 13 

moment. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay. Now then, I want to 15 

focus on the nonstop, ongoing verbal attacks on 16 

myself and on my staff as I went around the 17 

corner. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to object. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm -- I'm -- I'm 20 

-- I will sustain the objection so let's -- let's 21 

move on from there, sir.  22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  Okay, well, it became 1 

aggravated to the point that I got a recording 2 

device to wear when I would walk around the 3 

corner, because, and my children were getting a 4 

little afraid of this -- of the ongoing abuse 5 

that was -- that was happening.  I mean, you're 6 

there and -- 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  8 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- you don't know what it's 9 

like to be constantly barraged with these "hey, 10 

fuck face!" -- "hey, you" -- it just went on and 11 

on --  12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay.  I have on my 14 

recording there Mr. Scahill blasting me as I 15 

walked along on a public street on my way to 16 

lunch -- 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  -- and I would request 20 

leave of court to play the recording because it 21 

gives you an idea of what I was enduring. 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Sustained.  I'm 1 

not going to allow that, so.  I -- and this is 2 

difficult, but I still need to give you your 3 

opportunity, so we need to talk about why is it 4 

that you believe Ms. Traverso is not the true 5 

owner -- Ms. -- Mr. and Mrs. -- Mr. Traverso and 6 

Ms. Traverso are not the true owner of The Alibi 7 

and that Mr. Scahill is, and why Ms. Traverso -- 8 

Mr. Traverso and Ms. Traverso are not qualified 9 

to own the establishment? 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  It is a fiction 11 

to suggest that Mr. Scahill is not running -- 12 

still running -- the show.  Ms. Traverso is not 13 

capable of running the show.  Ms. Traverso always 14 

defers to Mr. Scahill, and I've seen this in the 15 

-- when I was visiting over there -- Ms. Traverso 16 

has a dream of running a bar but she realizes 17 

that only Martin has the skimming skills and the 18 

scheming skills to be able to run a bar. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Ah --  20 

 MR. PARSONS:  The street savvy. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, yes I prefer 22 
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your change of --  1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Street savvy?  Okay.   2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yeah, that's 3 

better than the scheming, that's saying that 4 

something is being done illegal and we don't know 5 

anything about that so, All right go ahead. 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  In any event, this new 7 

entity -- I became aware in late 2014 that there 8 

was a dissension within the Melles Hospitality 9 

Group.  I knew that Mr. Scahill and Ms. Traverso 10 

were dismayed that they -- he was not making 11 

political contributions and he was never there.  12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I would hope -- I 13 

would hope that you're not reading from 14 

something. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  No.  I'm making notes.  16 

When -- I did -- I didn't know what -- once they 17 

had opened the lawsuit I wasn't sure what the 18 

scope was going to be allowed about -- they said 19 

they'd treat the lawsuit like it's frivolous.  I 20 

didn't know to what extent the merits of the 21 

lawsuit of the tire slashings and whatever was 22 
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going to be allowed into evidence. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That's not allowed 2 

over here. 3 

 MR. PARSONS:  Well, All right.  But bear 4 

in mind this case has had nearly three years to 5 

fester and for the kind of matters that they 6 

have.  But when I saw posted in the window of My 7 

Brother's Place that they were applying for a 8 

liquor license and I learned that Nelson Arias 9 

had let the original license expire, I filed a 10 

protest.  That protest that I filed, which I'd 11 

never done -- I didn’t -- I'd never done one 12 

before so I didn't know exactly what all should 13 

be in it.  I filed it on Friday, August the 15th.  14 

On that very, very same day the first tire 15 

slashing incident occurred. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Objection.  17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Again, objection.  18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Go ahead, Mr. 19 

Parsons. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Chairman. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes? 22 
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 MR. BIANCO: I'd like to move that we 1 

strike the last two sentences from the record. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, the record -3 

- sure -- I don't have a problem with that.  Mr. 4 

Parsons, if there was an attorney asking you 5 

questions then it would be easier to object -- 6 

 MR. PARSONS:  I understand. 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, but you are 8 

aware of the parameters of your testimony so I'm 9 

just asking that you keep as closely as possible 10 

to the parameters. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  Let me just say 12 

that I do have an active law practice and the -- 13 

the -- involvement that I have with the people 14 

next door has been a major drain of time on me.  15 

As I began to see the activities that were going 16 

on over there, I started going over DCRA pulling 17 

corporate records.  I wanted to follow exactly 18 

who was behind this ongoing -- I mean -- the work 19 

was never being finished and yet I kept hearing 20 

from all these people about all the money that 21 

was being poured into this building.  They 22 
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weren't using contractors, and yet the money -- I 1 

was hearing $500,000.   2 

 In any event, I became aware that in the 3 

middle of 2015 that Mr. Melles had sued Scahill 4 

and HRH services for assigning the lease.  So, 5 

naturally I started trying the follow the docket 6 

sheet for that case.  I wanted to know exactly 7 

what was going on on the other side of my common 8 

wall there and hope just to kind of follow it.  9 

If -- if Mr. Scahill would be tossed out, could I 10 

try to work with whoever the new people were that 11 

were going to be there.  But over -- let me just 12 

say that in, I think it was, February of 2015, I 13 

was sitting at my desk in my office and  I was 14 

advised that a Mr. Smith had come by my office 15 

and wanted to talk to me.  And I knew who he was 16 

because he had been next door.   17 

 He apologized for all of the things that 18 

he was aware of that had gone on and said that he 19 

would work with me, he wanted to work with me.  I 20 

didn't find him, he found me.  I didn't trust him 21 

-- my associate, Johnny Kirkawa -- and I went out 22 
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to lunch with him.  I wanted somebody to hear 1 

what was going on because I had a lawsuit going 2 

against these people and I didn't want anything 3 

to be -- thought to be a foul.   4 

 And that is when he told me the things 5 

that he's testified to today.  He was the inside 6 

voice for the operation that was going on over 7 

there.  He brought clarity to a sort of situation 8 

that had been very, very difficult for me 9 

because, as I say, I had been to the Capitol 10 

Police, I had  been to the Metropolitan Police 11 

about the incidents that occurred, and I was told 12 

constantly "you don't have the evidence."  Mr. 13 

Smith provided the link that gave rise to the 14 

detective at the Capitol Police being able to 15 

take action against Mr. Scahill.  But I know 16 

this, that whatever Scahill did, he did with Ms. 17 

Traverso knowing and condoning that work.  For 18 

example, let me just tell you the picture, 19 

Exhibit #13 in Parson Exhibits, shows Ms. 20 

Traverso and Mr. Scahill at that August 27, 2015 21 

hearing in which I appeared and I had Mr. Smith 22 
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appear to answer questions by the Public Space 1 

Committee regarding that enclosed exterior 2 

sidewalk.   3 

 There was, in fact, as Mr. Smith said, a 4 

HATS order in effect.  And let me tell you what 5 

HATS order stands for, because  the Court had 6 

issued it.  It stands:  "There shall be no 7 

harassment, assault, threats or stalking by Mr. 8 

Scahill against me or Mr. Smith."  Mr. Scahill 9 

violated that on two occasions and he's been 10 

charged criminally for that.  These are the cases 11 

that are set for trial on the 16th of February.  12 

Now, as you can see, Mr. Scahill's role at the 13 

DDOT hearing, the transcript is there, he made it 14 

abundantly clear -- Ms. Traverso just simply sat 15 

there while Mr. Scahill provided the testimony 16 

for the applicant for that public space permit.  17 

In all respects, Mr. -- you asked me how can I 18 

show that there is -- that HRH is nothing more 19 

than the alter ego, or the camouflage for Mr. 20 

Scahill, it's never stopped.   21 

 The lawsuit at the -- in June -- in June 22 
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and July of 2015, the hearing at the DDOT or 1 

Public Space Committee, always Mr. Scahill was 2 

the one that was -- that ran it.  This body was 3 

present on Jan -- on June the -- on January the 4 

6th in which you heard that Mr. Scahill, up until 5 

the first hearing January 6th when all this 6 

window dressing was taking place, was at the 7 

Alibi four days a week, five hours a day.  I 8 

thought that was going to be contested.  I hired 9 

investigators to go over and have lunch at My 10 

Brother's Place to see if in fact Scahill was as 11 

active in running the show then -- this was in 12 

October and November of 2015, as he had been all 13 

the time before.   14 

 The photographs that I have, Exhibits 19 15 

through 23, show Mr. Scahill either doing the 16 

construction work there at 237 Second Street, 17 

working in the exterior patio, serving and quite 18 

literally running the show.  I think Mr. Traverso 19 

and his testimony about this -- the bar in order 20 

-- stated it succinctly.  All he has to do is 21 

vacate the bar in order -- he's the one that has 22 
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the power to do that.  And he also said -- it 1 

came out -- that if Martin ever thought about 2 

coming back -- this had to do when the strife was 3 

coming up -- and he said, well you know Martin 4 

was very upset, he always, and thought about 5 

maybe, might be wanting to come back.   6 

 I assure this board Martin Scahill has 7 

never stopped running the operation at 237 Second 8 

Street and if you grant a liquor license he'll be 9 

right back there doing the things he's always 10 

done -- making my life miserable with his 11 

behavior and doing the same sort of things he was 12 

doing when he was 49% interest owner in My 13 

Brother's Place.  That's all I have to say. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. 15 

Parsons.  Mr. Bianco if you have any questions to 16 

[inaudible 5-2:06:40] 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  I do, but I want to check 18 

with my client very quickly, she might want to 19 

cut it off here, but I want to talk to her first. 20 

[off the record] 21 

[on the record] 22 
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 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  We are back on the 1 

record.  Yes, Mr. Bianco. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  We've compromised and I've 3 

agreed to ask only three or four questions and 4 

then we're going to cut it off. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Mr. Parsons. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  I am going to try to tailor 9 

my questions to the original hearing notice and 10 

try to stay on point.  In the hearing orders, one 11 

of the issues that's outlined is whether the 12 

applicants, my clients, have given a false 13 

statement in their initial application by filing 14 

a fraudulent lease agreement in an attempt to 15 

mislead the board that it has a valid lease 16 

agreement.  And what my question is to you, what 17 

evidence, testimony or documentation do you have 18 

that Rich or Rachel knew there was any 19 

impropriety with that lease agreement prior to 20 

filing it with the board. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  The lease agreement. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Correct. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm not going to take on 2 

the lease agreement. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, I'll tell you that I 5 

know I -- from having read the transcripts of the 6 

trial in mid 2015, that they -- there was an 7 

allegation of a fraudulent assignment, but it's 8 

obvious the Traversos have worked some kind of 9 

deal out with Bisker and they're paying $6600 a 10 

month in there, so I'm not taking the lease on, 11 

it's the operation that they have. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Very good. 13 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Mr. Parsons? 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Sorry? 15 

 MR. SILVERSTEIN: Could you speak more 16 

clearly and don’t shield me, I'm trying to read 17 

your lips. 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  I'm sorry, sir.  I'm sorry.   19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Very good and thank you, Mr. 20 

Parsons.  And second in the hearing notice, and 21 

we have had some discussion on this point today 22 
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that there is an allegation that my clients 1 

forged your signature on the DCRA application for 2 

a roof permit.  And I believe the document we are 3 

specifically talking about there is your exhibit, 4 

Parsons Exhibit #8, page 19. 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Correct. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Which is the 3307 notice. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Correct. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  My question's going 9 

to be the same.  What evidence do you have, 10 

testimony or document, that you can point to that 11 

demonstrates that Rich or Rachel Traverso forged 12 

your name on that document. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:   Okay, you're asking me to 14 

prove a negative.  All I can say is that I know 15 

for a fact that -- from her testimony -- that 16 

Mrs. -- Ms. Traverso filled in part of the 17 

notification form.  Let me just put it into the 18 

context. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  Please. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  There was a stop work order 21 

for illegal roof work that was in place on 22 
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December the 17th of 2013.  As Ms. Traverso said, 1 

they were desperate to get the work -- get the 2 

leak in the building stopped, so they -- they -- 3 

and since there's a stop work order they had to 4 

go through the steps of getting a permit to do 5 

the roof work.  So, I know that -- and of course 6 

I have leaking on my side of the roof too.  I 7 

know from having deposed Mr. Scahill that the 8 

handwriting on Page 19 of Exhibit #8 on the upper 9 

left hand side is his, and Ms. Traverso has 10 

admitted that the handwriting in the upper right 11 

hand corner is hers.  I know Mr. Scahill wrote in 12 

the part where it says, Dear Mr. Parsons, my name 13 

is, and I know that the signature of the owner is 14 

Mr. Scahill. But what I do know also very clearly 15 

is that Rachel and Martin needed the permit and 16 

they needed this form in order to get it.  That 17 

much I know.  And they wanted it, and they knew 18 

that we had a schism going between myself and 19 

Traverso and Scahill.  We know that Ms. Traverso 20 

went to DCRA with Martin.  Nobody else had a 21 

motive to forge my signature on there except Ms. 22 
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Traverso and Mr. Scahill.  Their handwriting is 1 

on it.  I can't say definitively whether it was 2 

Ms. Traverso or Mr. Scahill, I need handwriting 3 

exemplars of this particular kind of signature, 4 

but this I can tell you very clearly, that is a 5 

forgery and that forgery was used to get a permit 6 

and that permit is what they relied upon to get 7 

the roof work going. 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  So, the answer to my 9 

question then is you have no evidence other than 10 

your assumption of their motive. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  No sir, I have plenty of 12 

evidence.  Their handwriting is on it -- 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Uh huh.   14 

 MR. PARSONS:  They did it.  The singular 15 

thing is the signature which is obviously not 16 

mine and is forged at the bottom.  Who?  I mean 17 

they were both there.  The signature, handwriting 18 

is on it, it defies all logic to say one or the 19 

other of them did not do it. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  And you were so sure 21 

of that that -- 22 
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 MR. PARSONS:  It's process of 1 

elimination. 2 

 MR. BIANCO:  You were so sure of that, in 3 

fact, that one of them did it that you engaged a 4 

handwriting expert, did you not? 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  I did. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  And that handwriting expert 7 

generated a port -- a report, did he not? 8 

 MR. PARSONS:  He did. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  And that handwriting expert 10 

who generated a report that you yourself hired 11 

specifically found that it was not Rachel -- that 12 

it was not Rachel's handwriting that forged your 13 

signature, and it was not Martin's handwriting 14 

that forged your signature did he not? 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  No, that's not correct. 16 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  I'm going to show you 17 

the document that -- 18 

 MR. PARSONS:  Sure. 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm going to mark it, it's 20 

for impeachment purposes. 21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  I just want to make sure 1 

that I turn it to the right page.  I got the 2 

wrong page.  We'll withdraw that question.  3 

That's all I have, thank you. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Do we have any 5 

questions by any board members?  No?  All right, 6 

thank you Mr. Parsons. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Do you have any 9 

other witnesses? 10 

 MR. PARSONS:  I have no other witnesses.  11 

I move my exhibits into evidence. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  There's 18 of them.  They 14 

weren't moved as we went.  I may have had some 15 

objections to that. 16 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Now's your chance. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Do we want to deal with 18 18 

exhibits and objections right now?  19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  I mean I can -- 21 

 MR. ALBERTI:  We have no choice. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  -- go through and do it.  1 

All right.  I'll go through this as quickly as I 2 

can.  Number one -- okay.  I thought they took 3 

judicial notice of #1.  Exhibit #1 I have no 4 

problem with, that's an order, correct? 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Correct. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Yes.  So Number 1 7 

is in the record? 8 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 1 is in.  Number 2 is 9 

another order of the board, no problem, that's 10 

fine. 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 2 is in 12 

without objection. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 3 appears to be a 14 

record from DCRA.  We don't contest that.  That's 15 

fine. 16 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 3 is in 17 

without objection. 18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 4 are drawings we 19 

would object to on relevance grounds.   20 

 MR. PARSONS:  If I may be heard, these 21 

are drawings done by Ms. Traverso that were used 22 
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to do the construction work. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  We had testimony 2 

on #4, we had direct testimony on #4 so I, I hear 3 

-- sorry? 4 

 MR. BIANCO:  They have in January 6 on 5 

them also. 6 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That's what I'm 7 

saying.  So, #4 since we had testimony by the 8 

witness and there are -- I think you had enough 9 

to cross examine, so #4 will be admitted. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  I don't think there's any 11 

harm, that's okay.  I made my objection, it's 12 

preserved, that's fine. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Correct. 14 

MR. BIANCO:  I'm not worried about #4. Five we 15 

have an issue with.  It's a Prince of Petworth 16 

blog post.  We objected to it when, on January 17 

the 6th.  There hasn't been any discussion about 18 

it today.  We renew our objection.  It can't be 19 

authenticated.  The writer is not identified, not 20 

here, there's no date on it, it has no relevance 21 

to anything, there's no reason for it to be in 22 
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there. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parson? 2 

 MR. PARSONS:  I won't fight it. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, #6 is not a 4 

part of the record, 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I don't have a #5, 6 

so #5 is not a 7 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It's the photos. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay so #5 is not 9 

a part of the record. 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 6 -- 11 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Wait, wait, wait -- can we 12 

just pause for one moment?  The tab numbers are 13 

before or after the exhibit? 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  They are before, sir. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  That's part of the 16 

problem, 17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  That's part of the problem 18 

because #1 -- #1 is -- it's -- yeah  19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Identify the 20 

document as you go forward. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  I don't have a 22 
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document #7, so I don't know what that is. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So what was -- I'm 2 

sorry -- what was document #6? 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  #6 is the DCRA record.  It's 4 

a DCRA record with an application ID.  It says 5 

property address in the upper right of the 6 

property and it appears to be a search of the 237 7 

Second Street address. 8 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Do you have a 9 

problem with that? 10 

 MR. BIANCO:  I have no problem with that. 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 6 is a part 12 

of the record. 13 

 MR. BIANCO:  I don't know what 7 is.  I 14 

just don't have one. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 7 is a 16 

picture of --  17 

 MR. ALBERTI:  So, what do you have as #8?   18 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 8 I have a building 19 

permit. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No number 6 is a 21 

picture of two individuals. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Number 7. 1 

 MS. MILLER:  7. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 7 is a 3 

picture of two individuals. 4 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Number 7 is a picture of 5 

two individuals and says notice if you meet any 6 

of the following criteria, blah, blah, blah.  I'm 7 

going to show it to you because I think that you 8 

may want to see it.  I'm just guessing. 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Thank you. 10 

 MR. ALBERTI:  The great Kreskin over here 11 

is -- 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  We object to this. 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  What is number 7, 14 

Mr. Parsons? 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Number 7, I believe was 16 

presented when Ms. Traverso testified on January 17 

the 6th as being -- it was the document she 18 

posted in the window of My Brother's Place the 19 

day after a temporary restraining order hearing 20 

at the courthouse. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right number 7 22 
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is not admitted.   1 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Number 8, a building 2 

permit.  I have no problem with that.  It's an 3 

Agency record. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 8 is a part 5 

of the record. 6 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Let's go back to #7.  7 

What's the basis of your objection?  Just for the 8 

record so I -- 9 

 MR. BIANCO:  Relevance. 10 

 [Cross talk] 11 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 9 is a lease 12 

assignment between Melles Hospitality and HRH 13 

Services.  No objection.  14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 9 is a part 15 

of the record.  If we could just have one person 16 

speak.  Number 9 is a part of the record. 17 

 MR. BIANCO:  Okay.  Number 10 appears to 18 

be the license application from HRH Services.  No 19 

objection. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 10 is a 21 

part of the record. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  Number 11 is a DDOT 1 

permitting -- online permitting system search 2 

results.  I have no problem with that, it's an 3 

agency record. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 11 is 5 

admitted. 6 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 12 is also a DOT 7 

search of the online permitting system.  Again, 8 

no objection to that. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 12 is 10 

admitted.  I don't know what #13 is, that's one I 11 

don't have a copy. 12 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It's the lovely picture of 13 

the -- 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 13, sir? 15 

 MR. BIANCO:  There was testimony about it 16 

today but it's neither here nor there so we're 17 

not going to object, it's fine. 18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So number 13 is a 19 

part of the record, admitted. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 14 is the transcript 21 

of the August 27th DOT hearing.  No objection to 22 
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that Agency record. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 14 is 2 

admitted. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 15 is a September 11, 4 

2015 letter from DDOT approving -- I'm sorry -- 5 

denying an enclosed sidewalk café application, 6 

but approving an unenclosed sidewalk café 7 

application, so we don't object to that.  It 8 

appears to be an Agency record.   9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 15 -- I'm 10 

sorry, number 15 is a part of the record, is 11 

admitted. 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Right.  Number 16 is an e-13 

mail that we didn't have any discussion about 14 

today but I know I objected to it in the last 15 

hearing.  It is purportedly a communication 16 

between Rachel Traverso and Karen Wirt from the 17 

ANC.  We objected to that on relevance grounds 18 

and renew that objection now. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Parsons? 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, this was an e-mail -- 21 

it was shown to Ms. Traverso during her testimony 22 
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on January 6 and it was basically, you'll recall, 1 

they're saying there was absolutely no connection 2 

between Rachel Traverso and My Brother's -- or 3 

the -- 237 Second -- well it's impeachment if 4 

nothing else.  "I am a new business, I have 5 

nothing to do with the previous business.  I was 6 

not an owner.  It is true my ex-fiancé was one of 7 

the owners" -- I mean, these are admissions and 8 

frankly she goes on to explain her reason for the 9 

British-American pub.  This is stuff she was 10 

cross examined on, I think an adequate foundation 11 

was laid for it.   12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Did Ms. Traverso 13 

write this -- is this an e-mail Ms. Traverso 14 

wrote? 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  She conceded that when I 16 

cross examined her.   17 

 MR. BIANCO:  I believe -- I believe 18 

that's accurate, that she did concede that.  19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It's admitted. 20 

 MR. BIANCO:  Number 17 is bank records 21 

from a Martin Scahill/Rachel Traverso account.  22 
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We have no objection to that. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 17 is 2 

admitted. 3 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Is that bank account still 4 

open? 5 

 MR. BIANCO:  It's not actually, that's 6 

one of the exhibits we provided is the 7 

documentation showing the account was closed in 8 

July. 9 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Okay, just because the 10 

account number is here I wanted to make sure that 11 

we -- 12 

 MR. BIANCO:  Right, they correspond, 13 

yeah. 14 

 MR. ALBERTI:  Well, we don’t have 15 

anything in our records that reveals private 16 

information. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, do you have an 18 

objection to #18? 19 

 MR. BIANCO:  I'm still looking. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay. 21 

 MR. BIANCO:  Yeah, 18 is [inaudible] LLC 22 
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bank record.  We have no objection to that. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Number 18 is a 2 

part of the record. 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  #19, 20, 21 and 22, and 23 4 

are all photographs.  No objection.   5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You said you do 6 

what? 7 

 MR. BIANCO:  No objection.  19 through 23 8 

no objection. 9 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So 19, 20, 21, 22 10 

and 23 are part of the record. 11 

 MR. PARSONS:  So, it would appear that #5 12 

and #7 are the rest of -- is that correct? 13 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I unfortunately 14 

did not keep -- but yeah, the record will reflect 15 

-- reflect that all the documents are part of the 16 

record except for exhibits #5 and #7 as part of 17 

this exhibit.  And so, we have accepted your -- 18 

the documents.  All right.  The parties have 10 19 

minutes to make a closing.  Each side has 10 20 

minutes to make a closing argument, and I mean 10 21 

minutes.  That was established in the beginning 22 
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and there is a clock there and so please be 1 

[inaudible]  Mr. Alberti.  Let me go back  to my 2 

--  Now, do the parties wish to move forward to 3 

the closing or to take a short break to prepare 4 

your closing? 5 

 MR. PARSONS:  Could we have a short 6 

break? 7 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Okay, so, we will, 8 

it's 6:44. We will take a recess until 6:50. 9 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you. 10 

[resume on the record 2:37:33) 11 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  Do the 12 

parties wish to make a closing argument?   13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, sir. 14 

 MR. BIANCO:  Yes, please. 15 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right, so 16 

you'll -- you have 10 minutes and so each side 17 

will be allotted 10 minutes, the applicant going 18 

first. 19 

 MR. BIANCO: I won't take 10 minutes. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And -- yeah, go 21 

ahead. 22 
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 MR. BIANCO:  I promise.  So, in the last 1 

few minutes preparing for this, one of the things 2 

I like to do for closing is I'll talk to my 3 

client, and quite often they're their best 4 

advocates, and so I turned to Rachel and said, 5 

"what do you want me to say?" and she said it so 6 

well I almost want to turn to her and let her say 7 

it now, but her comments I think are very telling 8 

about this entire application process and 9 

hearing.  This isn't My Brother's Place, that's 10 

not what this is.  It's not a suspension hearing, 11 

or a further show cause or something like that 12 

for whatever happened in 2011, 2013, this is a 13 

new application and it's 2016 and 237 Second 14 

Street is not a college dive bar anymore.  15 

Hundreds -- literally hundreds of thousands of 16 

dollars have been spent transforming it into 17 

something else, into what it is today, into The 18 

Alibi.  It's way more upscale.  This isn't about 19 

slinging drinks for dollars in a college dive 20 

bar.  That's not what Rachel Traverso is about.  21 

It's not what her goal is.  It's about a passion 22 
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for her.  It's a culmination of three years 1 

'worth of work for her to try and get this place 2 

open.  3 

 And mostly I think it's about creativity, 4 

and as evidence for that we need only look to her 5 

experience that we talked about in the last 6 

hearing and today, she's a graduate from NYU, not 7 

in math or science, but in fine arts.  She is an 8 

artist and she's looking to create something like 9 

artists have a desire to do.  And at this point, 10 

Alibi is the creation, and we want to bring it to 11 

a point where it can actually open and be 12 

realized.  The evidence that you heard was, we 13 

think, specifically tailored to the issues that 14 

the board wanted to hear about.   15 

 Number 1, is Mr. Scahill intertwined in 16 

this business and I think the answer to that is 17 

no and certainly not anymore.  So, if you had any 18 

doubts you shouldn't now.  We provided 19 

documentation of pay schedules -- I'm sorry -- of 20 

schedules, of payroll journals, we provided bank 21 

account information showing that financially 22 
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Rachel Traverso and Mr. Scahill don't have their 1 

finances intermingled anymore, that HRH Services 2 

is separate and apart from anything that Mr. 3 

Scahill was running in the past.  It's a separate 4 

bank account.  Only Rachel is a signer on that 5 

bank account.  We provided information about Mr. 6 

Scahill's residence.  There were some allegations 7 

that last time we were here that they were still 8 

living together on G Street and we've provided 9 

his driver's license showing that's not the case.  10 

We've provided evidence that he works somewhere 11 

else and not at The Alibi.  We've provided 12 

evidence that he doesn't get paid by The Alibi.  13 

And the last thing and what I think is probably 14 

most important and the most talked about was the 15 

barring notice.  He's barred from the premises 16 

and Rich Traverso, when really put to it by Mr. 17 

Alberti about whether or not he would be willing 18 

to keep that in place for five years said yes, 19 

and I think any reluctance probably comes from me 20 

because we try to fight for licenses without 21 

restrictions.   22 
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 One of the things we preach on this side 1 

of the bar is trying to get licenses without 2 

restrictions.  So, reluctantly so, but we think 3 

it's extremely important that  -- I don't know 4 

whether they'd be willing to accept it but 5 

they're the ones that brought it to the table.  6 

They -- they didn't wait for the board to come in 7 

and say "yes, you can have your license but on 8 

these conditions" so they take their -- they take 9 

their business serious enough to take that -- to 10 

take that step and would be willing to take it a 11 

step further if that's what the board wanted to 12 

do.  The next thing that they were, I don't want 13 

to say were accused of, I think that's probably 14 

too strong a word, but the next thing that they 15 

were asked to address was the issue of whether or 16 

not they presented a fraudulent lease assignment 17 

and I think we've likewise answered that question 18 

definitively.  The lease assigned that they 19 

presented was not fraudulent.  They didn't have 20 

any knowledge whatsoever and couldn't have had 21 

any knowledge that Mr. Scahill  did not have 22 
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corporate authority or didn't follow the 1 

appropriate formalities when he signed the lease 2 

assignment.   3 

 At the time they presented it in January 4 

of 2015, they believed that all the I's had been 5 

dotted, the T's had been crossed and it had been 6 

drafted by the owner's attorney, it had been paid 7 

for substantially.  A substantial amount of money 8 

was paid by Mr. Traverso in exchange for the 9 

assignment.  There was nothing even remotely out 10 

there that would suggest that this was not on the 11 

up and up.  When they found out there were 12 

disputes between the partners of Melles 13 

Hospitality Group, that case ended in litigation 14 

which was ultimately settled, again with Rich 15 

Traverso writing a big check to make sure that 16 

all partners had signed off on the lease 17 

assignment from Melles Hospitality Group to HRH 18 

Services.   19 

 As the board summarized in the order, the 20 

three main issues raised by Mr. Parsons and his 21 

volume of documents were the alleged forgery of a 22 
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DCRA application for a permit and we had some 1 

substantial testimony on that.  I would implore 2 

the board to read that document.  On its face it 3 

clearly states that the neighboring property 4 

owner does not have to sign off in order for 5 

someone to get a permit to do roofing or to do 6 

work on a property line.  The specific section of 7 

DCMR cited within the notice.  I would also ask 8 

that you speak with your attorney on that issue 9 

and get advice, but it's pretty clear the way 10 

that law was drafted in effect from 2010 through 11 

2014, that if you are performing work on a 12 

property line you are required to give your 13 

neighbor notice.  If your neighbor signs off and 14 

says "yes, you can come onto my property" then 15 

you have a duty to safeguard your neighbor's 16 

property and if the neighbor refuses to sign and 17 

does not say "you can come on my property" then 18 

you have no duty to safeguard your neighbor's 19 

property.   20 

 So, it would have been in Rachel and 21 

Richard's interest if Mr. Parsons never signed.  22 
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They would have had no duty to safeguard his 1 

property.  Maybe they wouldn't be intertwined in 2 

a multi-million dollar D.C. Superior Court 3 

litigation over damage to a roof, had Mr. Parsons 4 

not signed the document.  So, it was -- the 5 

allegation of forgery simply doesn't make any 6 

sense for my clients.  They didn't need his 7 

signature.  His signature actually hurts them.  I 8 

don't know that the testimony hammered that point 9 

home so I wanted to make sure I did that in my 10 

closing.  The alleged failure to comply with an 11 

order of DDOT.  There is absolutely no evidence 12 

that they failed to comply with an order of DDOT.  13 

The only evidence you have on the record is the 14 

Certificate of Use granting their outdoor 15 

sidewalk café.   16 

 It's true they had an enclosed sidewalk 17 

café and that was noncompliant but that structure 18 

was in existence since the 70's.  Rachel didn't 19 

put it there, Rich didn't put it there.  Mr. 20 

Scahill, the -- everybody's enemy Mr. Scahill -- 21 

didn't put it there.  It predated anybody 22 
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involved in this case and had nothing to do with 1 

them, was dealt with appropriately and ultimately 2 

dismantled at the order of DDOT so there was in 3 

fact no compliance.   4 

 The last thing I want to say is pretty 5 

straightforward and doesn't deal with the 6 

evidence.  It is, people deserve a chance.  What 7 

we're asking here for is a chance.  We're asking 8 

for a chance for Rachel to realize the dream that 9 

she's been working towards for the last three 10 

years, the tireless nights that she spent 11 

planning and renovating and doing all the things 12 

that it's going to take to operate this as a 13 

business.  She's willing to put in the time, 14 

she's got the brains, she's got the ability, 15 

she's got the support of her family and we think 16 

she deserves the chance and that's really what 17 

we're asking here.  Thank you.  18 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. 19 

Parsons. 20 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you.  The first thing 21 

I want to do is to thank each and every one of 22 
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you.  This has been a long proceeding, we've had 1 

two days, and I want to thank Ms. Miller, Mr. 2 

Alberti, Chairman Anderson, Mr. Short and Mr. 3 

Silverstein for the careful attention that you've 4 

given this case.  Throughout this proceeding, 5 

I've watched you, I've watched as the witness 6 

testified, I've watched you in the questioning, 7 

and for that I really appreciate the attention 8 

you've given this case.  I hope you appreciate 9 

this is a very important case to me and my wife. 10 

We own a building and that building has been 11 

under assault for some time.  Now, as I recall 12 

the evidence with you, and the evidence that came 13 

in this courtroom and is in the binders that you 14 

have.  I'm going to try to review this evidence 15 

as honestly and accurately as I can, but if any 16 

time I say anything that doesn't square with your 17 

recollection of what you heard from that witness 18 

stand or what you perceived from the demeanor of 19 

the witnesses, please disregard it, don't hold it 20 

against me.   21 

 You're the judges of this case, nobody 22 
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else.  Now, I want to ask this question:  Most 1 

trials do come down to a single issue, the 2 

credibility of the witnesses.  Who has been 3 

telling you what strikes you as honest and 4 

accurate and who is coming to you with these 5 

paper defenses after the first hearing?  You know 6 

and I know that from the -- that this bar notice 7 

says "well we concluded after the first hearing 8 

we were never gonna get a license from these 9 

people because Martin was pretty clearly, from 10 

the evidence, unfit.  Rachel and he were 11 

together, and he didn't have good character, he 12 

is, he's toxic to our application.  So that's 13 

when we had these paper defenses created.  Let's 14 

go out and get a bar notice" and when you read 15 

the bar notice it's signed, undated by Mr. 16 

Traverso.  He can, at any time, withdraw this bar 17 

notice once he gets the liquor license, Martin's 18 

right back in there doing what you've heard from 19 

Mr. Smith and from, you can see from the 20 

evidence, Mr. Scahill is just wanting to do.   21 

 The evidence shows that there's new 22 
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corporate presentations, but the same cast of 1 

characters are before you seeking your approval 2 

to proceed with a license at 237 Second Street, a 3 

license that has already been impugned by your 4 

earlier careful analysis of how that building had 5 

been run before and by, frankly, the same people.  6 

So, you heard the evidence.  They said, "oh, 7 

Rachel would like a chance, but who, really, 8 

wants the chance to run a liquor -- to have a 9 

liquor license at that building?  It's the 10 

elephant in the room that never testified.   11 

 Ask yourself this, where is Mr. Scahill?  12 

We've heard his name repeatedly.  We know that he 13 

-- Rachel has never given him back his ring, 14 

there's been no breakup in this relationship.  15 

Mr. Smith described how Ms. Traverso was always 16 

sort of in need of Martin to  run this operation.  17 

There is no new applicant here.  It is the same 18 

people as before.  The question of the forgery.  19 

You know and I know that it's not my signature on 20 

it.  It was something filed -- it's a fraud on 21 

the DCRA people to be -- to try to get a building 22 
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permit when a forgery has been put on it.  And 1 

Ms. Traverso's handwriting and Mr. Scahill's 2 

handwriting are all over it at a time when they 3 

wanted that permit after the stop work order.   4 

 Ask yourself are these people -- have 5 

these people shown themselves to you to be candid 6 

and trustworthy with something as important as a 7 

liquor license?  I submit that they have not and 8 

I urge you, I urge you to deny this license to 9 

these people.  Thank you. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Thank you Mr. 11 

Parsons.  Do the parties wish to propose findings 12 

of fact and conclusions of law or waive their 13 

right to do so?  14 

 MR. PARSONS:  Yes, but I ask this.  Do we 15 

-- can -- I -- the transcript comes pretty 16 

quickly.  What sort of timeline are you 17 

envisioning for filing of facts and conclusions 18 

of law?   19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  It would be 30 20 

days after receipt of the transcript.   21 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thirty days?  Oh fine.  22 
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That's -- I can live -- yes, please. 1 

 MR. BIANCO:  We will also file. 2 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  I'm sorry, what? 3 

 MR. BIANCO:  We will also file. 4 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  All right.  If the 5 

parties -- the transcript will be e-mailed to the 6 

parties in approx. three weeks hopefully.  If you 7 

change your mind about filing, you should inform 8 

us.  I was going to say to you if -- that we 9 

would issue a decision in 90 days and if we would 10 

have deliberated on this matter next Wednesday, 11 

but since we're now waiting for -- since we're 12 

now waiting for the file -- the concl -- the 13 

filing, so that decision will be delayed. 14 

 MR. PARSONS:  All right.  So, roughly 15 

three weeks.  We're almost February, so the 16 

transcript will come out at the, say the last 17 

week of February, that means we would have until 18 

the last week of March --  19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  You have 30 days 20 

after the transcripts are released to send your 21 

response. 22 
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Mr. Scahill  1 

 MR. PARSONS:  We receive an order from 2 

you setting the deadline? 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  No, I'm not sure 4 

how the  5 

The deadline is the day after service, after you 6 

get the order, it's the day after. 7 

 MR. PARSONS:  Do you tell them in an e-8 

mail? 9 

No.  If they want to ask. 10 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Well, legal will 11 

provide you -- the legal staff will provide you 12 

guidance. 13 

 MR. PARSONS:  Okay. 14 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Guidance, at least 15 

instructions, but I have here it's 30 days after 16 

receipt of the transcript -- transcript that the 17 

answer -- your conclusions --  18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  It will be e-mailed, the e-19 

mail sent. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, when the e-21 

mail is sent then you will know that you have 30 22 
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days to file the answer. 1 

 MR. PARSONS:  Sure.  The e-mail triggers 2 

the starting date. 3 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  The starting date. 4 

 MR. PARSONS:  Gotcha. 5 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  And I assure you 6 

that if you guys want to bring closure to this 7 

matter, then once you send your answers, and I 8 

assure that the board will give you a speedy -- a 9 

speedy answer -- a speedy decision -- a reasoned 10 

and speedy decision.  I'm not gonna say that 11 

you're going to wait 90 days to get the decision.  12 

Okay?  That's what the order is but I'll assure 13 

you that you'll get an answer within a reasonable 14 

period of time.  All right. 15 

 MR. PARSONS:  Thank you. 16 

 MS. MILLER:  It probably goes without 17 

saying but just in case, you need to serve each 18 

other as well as the board. 19 

 MR. PARSONS:  Gotcha. 20 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  So, with that 21 

said, as the Chairperson of the Alcoholic 22 
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Beverage Control Board for the District of 1 

Columbia, in accordance with section -- with D.C. 2 

Code section 2574B of the Open Meetings Act, I 3 

move that the ABC board hold a closed meeting for 4 

the purpose of seeking legal advice from our 5 

counsel on Case #15-PRO-00096 qualifications 6 

hearing, the Alibi, pursuant to D.C. Code section 7 

2574B.4 of the Open Meetings Act and deliberation 8 

upon Case #15-PRO-00096, the Alibi, for the 9 

reasons cited in D.C.  Code 2574B.13 of the Open 10 

Meetings Act.  Is there a second? 11 

 MR. SHORT:  Second. 12 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Short has 13 

seconded the motion.  I will now take a roll call 14 

vote on the motion before us that has been 15 

seconded.  Ms. Miller? 16 

 MS. MILLER:  Agree. 17 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Alberti? 18 

 MR. ALBERTI:  I agree. 19 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Short? 20 

 MR. SHORT:  I agree. 21 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Silverstein? 22 
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 MR. SILVERSTEIN: I agree. 1 

 CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:  Mr. Anderson -- I 2 

agree.  As it appears that the motion has passed, 3 

I hereby give notice that ABC Board will recess 4 

this proceeding to hold a closed meeting in the 5 

ABC Board Conference Room pursuant to Section 6 

2574B of the Open Meetings Act.  We have now 7 

adjourned and thank you for your testimony.  It's 8 

7:11. 9 

 10 

(Whereupon the above-entitled matter was 11 

concluded.)  12 

 13 

 14 


